Wellfleet Selectboard

Note: Start Time of 7pm

The Wellfleet Selectboard will hold a public meeting on May 24, 2022, at 7:00 p.m. This
meeting will be held via Zoom Video Conference and In Person at the Wellfleet Adult
Center 715 Old King’s Highway (in accordance with the temporary suspension and
enhancement of the Open Meeting Law requirements by the General Court of the
Commonwealth of Massachusetts. Instructions for a Zoom video conference meeting which
also allows phone dial-in are given below):

1.

Join the meeting hosted in Zoom by using the following link:
https://us02web.zoom.us/i/85689604806?pwd=blpl VFFBZzViQOxNWkZKMm9iMVdrd
z09
Audio, video, chat, and screen sharing functions will be disabled during the public
session. Request to participate by using the “raise hand” function. Meeting ID: 856 8960
4806 | Passcode: 611877
a. Raise hand in smartphone app — touch bottom of your screen and select “more” -
hit “raise hand” button
b. Raise hand on computer — hit “participants” button on bottom of screen — hit
“raise hand” button on bottom of participants panel
c. Please make sure you properly identify yourself before speaking, rename yourself
by selecting the participants button and choosing “more” (or by holding down on
your name on a smartphone app) and selecting “rename” - full, legal names only.
d. Please join the meeting on time.
You may also listen to the meeting by calling in on a phone to +1 929 205 6099 and enter
Meeting ID: 856 8960 4806 | Passcode: 611877 Landline callers can participate by
dialing *9 to raise their hand.
Y ou may submit questions and comments to the Town using the following email:
executive.assistant@wellfleet-ma.gov Comments made during the meeting via e-mail
will be sent to Selectboard members AFTER the meeting.
Meeting materials are attached to this agenda, available online at Wellfleet-ma.gov. It is
recommended that phone participants access materials in advance of the meeting.
Please follow the following general instructions:
a. Keep your phone muted at all times when not talking; no one is allowed to
unmute themselves during the meeting.
i. Selectboard meetings are NOT interactive. If public comments are
allowed that’s all, comments only, not questions.
ii. If the Chair is allowing comments during the meeting the number of
comments will be limited and may be no longer than one minute.
b. Do not use speakerphone; do not use Bluetooth devices; mute all background
noise.
c. Please do not speak until the Chair asks for public comments or questions and you
have been recognized by the moderator and unmuted.
d. After the business section is complete no public comments are permitted. Future
agenda items are from the Selectboard, no one else.




7. It is anticipated that the meeting will be recorded by the Town. Anyone else desiring to

record the meeting may do so only after notifying the chair and may not interfere with the
conduct of the meeting in doing so.

IL

III.

Announcements, Open Session and Public Comments

Note: Public comments must be brief. The Board will not deliberate or vote on any

matter raised solely during Announcements & Public Comments.

Use of Town Property

A. Rebecca Amoldi ~ Use of various beaches and spots throughout Wellfleet ~ She
will report her meetings with recreation and beach departments.

B. Scott Francis ~ Challenger Sports ~ Baker’s Field ~ 6/27/22 —7/1/22 (3:30pm —
7:30pm) & 8/22/22 — 8/26/22 (9am — 12pm)

Licenses

A. Fox & Crow ~ Application received May 6, 2022, from The Fox and Crow Inc.;
Trudy Vermehren owner 6 Commercial Street, Wellfleet MA, to transfer the
Annual all Alcoholic Restaurant License, Common Victualer License and Annual
Business License from 6 Commercial Strect Wellfleet, MA; to 70 Main Street
Wellfleet, MA.

B. Fitzgerald Hill LLC, Grant Hester & John O’Toole ~ owners of 70 Main Street
location ~ alteration of premise and amending liquor license to allow Fox & Crow
to operate at that location.

C. The Wellfleet Beachcomber ~ Todd E. LeBart, Mgr. requesting a tent license on
the property.

Business 1

A. Donation of 4 parcels of land from Guenther Back’s estate to the Town of
Wellfleet into the Care & Custody of the Conservation Commission ~ Tax
Accessor Nancy Vail

B. COPS Grant ~ Chief Hurley

C. 2022 Municipal Hazard Mitigation Plan ~ Chief Hurley

Public Hearings

A. Beach Rules & Regulations Amendment — LeCount Hollow ~ DeVasto

B. Shellfish S 7.12,7.12.2, 7.13.3 Minimum Productivity Appeal ~ James Gray
and Allison Gray, Wellfleet, MA, for license #7312 consisting of 0.5 acres on
Old Wharf Road.

C. Shellfish S 7.12, 7.12.2, 7.13.3 Minimum Productivity Appeal ~ David Paine and
Kristi Johns, Wellfleet, MA, for licenses #s 851, 863 and 861-B consisting of a
total of 2.5 acres on Field Point

D. Shellfish S 7.12, 7.12.2, 7.13.3 Minimum Productivity Appeal ~ Keith Rose and
Lisa Dexter, Wellfleet, MA, for licenses #s 95-25 and 95-26 consisting of a total
of two acres on Egg Island

E. Shellfish S 7.12, 7.12.2, 7.13.3 Minimum Productivity Appeal ~ William
Young, Jr., Wellfleet, MA, for grant #01-04 consisting of three acres on Indian
Neck

F. Status of License Holder Aquacultural Research Corporation (A.R.C.) of
Shellfish Grant License #792 with regards to Sections 7.8.1. Eligibility



VL.

VIIL.
VIIL
IX.

XL

XIL

Requirements, 7.8.2. Domicile Requirement and Exception, 7.8.8. Aquaculture
Research and Development Projects

G. Shellfish S 7.12, 7.12.2, 7.13.3 Minimum Productivity Appeal ~ Aquacultural
Research Corporation, Dennis, MA, for grant #792 consisting of three acres on
Indian Neck

Business I

A. Public Meeting to discuss findings and recommendations of the finance
team’s internal review of FY2020 & FY2021

B. Annual Town Meeting Review

C. CBA’s

D. Instructions to other bodies/boards/committees on how to meet in person.

Selectboard Reports

Town Administrator’s Report

Topics for Future Discussion
Correspondence and Vacancy Reports

Minutes

A. April 26, 2022
B. May 6, 2022
C. May 10, 2022

Adjournment



SELECTBOARD

AGENDA ACTION REQUEST I
Meeting Date: May 24, 2022

ANNOUNCEMENTS, OPEN SESSION AND PUBLIC
COMMENTS

REQUESTED BY: Wellfleet Selectboard

DESIRED ACTION: | Announcements to the board and public

PROPOSED NOTE: Public comments must be brief. The Board will not
deliberate or vote on ay matter raised solely during Announcements

MOTION: & Public Comments.
SUMMARY:
ACTION TAKEN: Moved By: Seconded By:

Condition(s):

VOTED: Yea Nay Abstain




SELECTBOARD

AGENDA ACTION REQUEST I I
Meeting Date: May 24, 2022

USE OF TOWN PROPERTY

REQUESTED BY: Rebecca Arnoldi

DESIRED To approve the use of various beaches and spots throughout

ACTION: Wellfleet ~ Arnoldi will report to the board about her
meetings with recreation and beach department heads.
I move to approve the use of various beaches and spots
throughout Wellfleet following all stipulations made by the
beach and recreation director and any town property used
shall be returned to is original state before it was used to the
satisfaction of the beach and recreation departments.

SUMMARY:

VOTED: Yea Nay Abstain




Ong\na_},

APPLICATION FOR PERMIT TO USE TOWN OWNED PROPERTY P\ ‘
TOWN OF WELLFLEET

300 MAIN STREET
WELLFLEET, MA 02667

Applicant ?g eprilo.. :;\;\3” nOe Vs Affiliation or Groupw:';‘ 1 M' :;:1 gijm;fm %,m
Telephone Number_ 8 {7} - Qe AHY % Mailing Address_ A2 1 Dy Yo ;’nl«k o

Email address € ¢inecC o Qraotd y @ \{&hgg conn Aol Cleek GAA

Town Property to be used (include specific area) DEOGIOrNS YWe vy Dﬂ*’t\“} C)“f\i;} O ?\?Q{,h

Mane Reach Liecde Tims Q@nm__&i m;&m@ The Gubk

Date(s) andhours ofuse @Jmﬁlmv&&i&wi&&&i& Tk W:\,,&.\,\A @‘i S&f){:
yO =

8 o
Describe actwny?mcludmg purpose, number of persons involved, equipment to be used, parkmg arrangements,
food/bcverage service, etc. Also, please indicate if fees will be charged by applicant.

Woold Lxe do Addervise o gm«gisgﬁng ;Euwa_;xw SSRGS -
oo _Yoe beacn mam g_uo0 Wierent nodiure
ram$ . Ney ous e Ammm %ﬂ& mﬁewwﬂg
m;gg DOULCS . . se . = e

Describe any Town services requested (police details, DPW assistance, etc.)

none oeede & e

NOTE TO APPLICANTS: All applications must be accompanied by a non-refundable $50.00 processing fee.
Appllcatmns must be received at least 30 days prior to the first event date to ensure that all reviews can be completed
prior to the event. This application is only for permission to use Town property. Any additional licenses, such as food
service permit, etc., may be required and it is the applicant’s responsibility to secure the same.

Action by the Board of Selectmen:
____Approved as submitted

Approved with the following condition(s): _

_ Disapproved for following reason(s). ___ . .

N
Date: iu" e &Vs A Processing Fee:*mi‘ $50.00. . ?‘A” Rf E:

Fee:

(over)



APPLICANT IS RESPONSIBLE FOR OBTAINING ALL NECESSARY PERMITS AND INSPECTIONS

" Health/Conservation Agent:

H

E Comments/Conditions:

| Permits/Inspections needed:
3
i
i

Palice ﬁépmgfwtl;iént; o

Commcnts?Condltwns

Inspectnr of Bulldmgs

Comments/Conditions: N j A

Permits/Inspections needed:

H

oo s e e e it Gl SENANE S ——

———

{ Fire Department:

- AN J"‘w“—@ a;._nJl—‘Uj
‘ Comments/Condmons i

'DPW:

3 v~ q .
%Comments/Cox%;:ii;s 9. Q"j X RNy
i
|

Harbormaster
Comments/Conditions

{
!
N;A

Recreatlon

ﬁNe,ec& Ib Know ¥ne AM dases o Ymes
CRASRDES RS Mo Beagn 10

* z:e{:r Linak wikh Kee.

ﬁm, o W %0 vecommend RO

uge Of N\Q-i‘jf) Peadn on rors dany

W’wmmﬁs w Judy neh doe ¥

apEwes crokY $oarou reni ARG

plage 1 Fhat locotion

Community Services Director:

e G- NO ({

. Comments/Conditions: ﬁ‘m“ké?(ﬂ. LU\S)
'~ Newscomb VMohouwd Beguess - adb Mﬁ'\\)\ s

PUST Be pfE Ythe quarded Deodn |
§ tad ‘K‘\C,\QX}J\J;S 0N Sk’ ’(\Q}.)-Q‘ \fwd
%i)ﬁ\ ek Bearn Stienar 08 vehude Qun-§

Q_Ezeam 0l

m

| Shellfish:

;
!
; Comments/Conditions

N A

T Town Administrator:

H
Comments/Conditions




BE Body and Earth- Yoga Nature & Art Adventures!
(Rebecca Arnoldi DBA be body and earth)

Mission: Decpen body awareness, ecological awareness & creativity to promote health &
wellbeing of participants and the life that surrounds us.

Promeotes:

» connection with self, community and the natural world

» health and wellbeing

+ grounding and calm

« strength, stability and flexibility

* creativity

» positive ecological choices & protection of the natural world

Programs:
Yoga: Gentle Kripalu style trauma-sensitive yoga

Nature Walks: guided nature explorations

*Beach walk :A peaceful walk along the beach to explore the flora and fauna we see and

find. Explore traits of resiliency that help these beings survive harsh conditions. Our
exploration will be guided by the interests and findings of participants.

sMarsh Walk: Explore a tidal salt marsh and the flora and fauna we sec there.

Explore traits of resiliency that allow these beings to survive harsh conditions. Stretches

breath awareness, and mindful walking to connect more deeply with our surroundings
and ourselves. Our walk will be guided by the interests and findings of participants.

*Tree ID Walk: Explore branching patterns, bark, buds, leaves, flowers and fruits of the

trees we see and the cultural and natural history of the different species that
surround us. Participants will learn how to identify several common trees.

Art: Observational expressive drawing & watercolor open to all levels. Beginners welcome!
BE Body and Earth Adventures:

*BE Beach: Yoga+ Nature + Art +optional free write
*BE Marsh: Nature walk+ Art +optional free write



Summer Schedule (subject to change™*)

Mondays : No programs til 8/22

Morning: Be Beach Adventure: TBD -Newcomb/Gut (CCNS parking & access via marsh path)
9-10 Yoga

10-11 Nature/Art

11-11:15 Free write

Tuesdays:
Morning: Be Marsh Adventure (Duck Creek)

9:30-10:30 Marsh Walk
10:30-11:30 Sketching the Marsh
11:30-11:45 Free write

Afternoon: Be Beach Adventure (TBD Mayo/Newcomb/Gut)
4-5PM Yoga

5-5:45PM Nature/Art Exploration

5:45-6PM Free write

Wednesdays & Sundays: occasional programs for individuals and small groups by request

Thursdays:

morning:Be Marsh Adventure (Duck Creek)
9:30-10:30 AM Marsh walk

10:30-11:30PM drawing & painting the marsh
11:30-11:45AM Free write

afternoon: Be Beach Adventure (TBD, Gut, Newcomb Hollow)
4-5 PM Beach Yoga

5-5:45PM Beach Nature/Art

5:45-6PM Free write

Fridays:

morning: Be Beach Adventure (TBD Gut/Newcomb Hollow)
9-10 Yoga at Beach

1030-1145 Nature/Art

11:45-12 Free write

Note: Detailed schedule in progress to work around other activities run by other yoga instructors,
guides, recreation, town events etc. Some of the following activities/dates and times may be
changed in accordance with such. Open to suggestions regarding locations, programs, schedule,
marketing etc. If any of the above days/times/locations do not work for any part of Wellfleet
town government I am happy to change as needed.




Details and Logistics :
# Participants: 2-10.
Vehicles: 0-11Carbon-free transportation encouraged (esp. bike/walk/bus)

Locations:

- Newcomb Hollow(outside protected area)

- Mayo (outside of Rec, craft fair, other yoga classes etc.)

- Gut (using NPS parking and Marsh path)

- DuckCreek

Fees: $18 for 45min-1 hr program

$36 for 2+ hr. combo program

Discounts: 10% discount for locals. Pay what you can (for anyone who needs)

$36 membership, 20% discount on programs (may add additional benefit to these)
$180 Unlimited programs for one month “

$360 unlimited programs for the season
(may donate a percentage of proceeds to an conservation cause to be determined)

13

Primary season: summer. Occasional programs F, W, Sp. in person programs. Some virtual/
hybrid programs during F,W,Sp.

Pilot program Summer 2022 July- Sept. No programs August 11-16



| ®
ACORD
V

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)
05/17/2022

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND,
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the
terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the

PRODUCER
Citadel Insurance Services, LC
2600 W Executive Pkwy, Ste 500

Alternative Balance LLC
(RIS, ﬁo Ex:1-800-671:3848

CONTACT
NAME:

| A€ noj:1-800-871-3848

) INSURER[S] AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #

Lehi uT 84043_ — INSURER 4 : Hudson Excess Insurance Company ‘ 14484
INSURED INSURERE :

Rebecca Arnoldi, DBA DBA Be Body and Earth INSURER C : -

89 Naples Road pINSURERD :

| INSURERE :

Brookline MA 02446 INSURER F :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,

OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR | ~ [ADDLSUBR POLICY EFF | POLICY EXP
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE Wy POLICY NUMBER (MM/DDIYYYY) | (MM/DD/YYYY) LIMITS
| GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE $ 2,000,000
DAMAGE TO RENTED
| | X | COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY I— PREMISES (Ea occurrence) | $ 300,000
| CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR | MED EXP (Any one person) | § 5,000
A Professional Li WELL-00003-AH147618 | 05/17/2022 | 05/17/2023 | PERSONAL & ADVINJURY | § included
| (Claims Made) _GENERAL AGGREGATE | § 3.000,000 |
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: | ‘ PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG | § 2,000,000
X | POLICY | ch'r | LOC | | | $
| COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY I I | ‘ | | (Ea accident] $
ANY AUTO i ! BODILY INJURY (Per person) | $
ﬁb%S?NED ' f\ﬁ;‘ggULED BODILY INJURY (Per accident) | $
[ NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE $
| HIRED AUTOS | AUTOS | | (Per accident] i
| . |$
Ji UMBRELLA LIAB : | occur | | | EACH OCCURRENCE | $
| ExcEss LiaB | | cLAIMS-MADE 1 | | AGGREGATE $
DED | | RETENTIONS | $
WORKERS COMPENSATION [ [ WC STATU- oTH -]
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY N RN A
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE I E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $
OFFICE/MEMBER EXCLUDED? l:l N/A
(Mandatory in NH) E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $
If yes, describe under T
0 = S bal | E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | §
|
Professional Liability (Claims Made) [ [ w| | .00003-AH147618 | 05/17/2022 | 05/17/2023 | Included
|
1

Premises subject to all policy terms, conditions, and exclusions.

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (Attach ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, if more space is required)
It is understood and agreed that the Certificate Holder is named as Additional Insured per attached CG 20 26 - Additional Insured - Managers or Lessors of

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

United States of America, DOI, NPS- Cape Cod National Seashor
99 Marconi Site Road
Wellfleet

MA 02667

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

Anthony Eardley /z - ;

ACORD 25 (2010/05)

© 1988-2010 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



CG 20 26 (Ed. 04 13)

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

ADDITIONAL INSURED - DESIGNATED PERSON OR ORGANIZATION

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

Schedule

Name of Additional Insured Person(s) or Organization(s):

Per individual Certificate of Coverage.

Information required to complete this Schedule, if not shown above, will be shown in the Declarations.

A.

SECTION Il - WHO IS AN INSURED is amended to include as an Additional Insured the person(s) or
organization(s) shown in the Schedule, but only with respect to liability for "bodily injury,” "property damage" or
"personal and advertising injury" caused, in whole or in part, by your acts or omissions or the acts or omissions of
those acting on your behalf:

1. in the performance of your ongoing operations; or

2. in connection with your premises owned by or rented to you.

However:

1. the insurance afforded to such additional insured only applies to the extent permitted by law; and

2. if coverage provided to the Additional Insured is required by a contract or agreement, the insurance afforded to
such additional insured will not be broader than that which you are required by the contract or agreement to

provide for such additional insured.

With respect to the insurance afforded to these Additional Insureds, the following is added to SECTION Il -
LIMITS OF INSURANCE:

If coverage provided to the Additional Insured is required by a contract or agreement, the most we will pay on
behalf of the Additional Insured is the amount of insurance:

1. required by the contract or agreement; or
2. available under the applicable Limits of Insurance shown in the Declarations;
whichever is less.

This endorsement shall not increase the applicable Limits of Insurance shown in the Declarations.

Copyright, 1ISO Properties, Inc., 2012

CG 20 26 (Ed. 04/13) PRO Page 1 of 1



SELECTBOARD

AGENDA ACTION REQUEST I I
Meeting Date: May 24, 2022

USE OF TOWN PROPERTY

~B~

REQUESTED BY: Scott Francis ~ Challenger Sports

DESIRED To approve the use of Baker’s Field (soccer field)

ACTION:
I move to approve the use of Baker’s Field Soccer Field from
June 27, 2022, through July 1, 2022, from 3:30pm — 7:30pm
and August 22, 2022, through August 26, 2022, from 9am to
12pm. With the soccer field to be returned to pre camp use
each time it is used. For a fee of $110.

SUMMARY:

VOTED: Yea Nay Abstain




APPLICATION FOR PERMIT TO USE TOWN OWNED PROPERTY
TOWN OF WELLFLEET

300 MAIN STREET
WELLFLEET, MA 02667

Applicant._ AT Foncis Affiliation or Group_cmngwmﬂ'g_
Telephone Number J0)-213 - O%ﬁ Mailing Address U A gﬁgmm £h )d
Email address ﬁﬁﬂﬂds_@_ﬁhﬂn%eliﬂﬁ&@“\ U\]M [P0} dC; ex 02483

Town Property to be used (include specific area) CY %6 i {

in_yeore plewiass When (unaing Comps C‘ZON:'ZOM)
Date(s) and hours of use: 6[17“7/1 \/3-30"7-30?“\) T 8]22' 8]26 (Q'ﬂ‘om)

Describe activity including purpose, number of persons involved, equipment to be used, parking arrangements,
food/beverage service, etc. Also, please indicate if fees will be charged by applicant.

boo kIan O QQJO[
NOTE TO APPLICANTS: All applications must be accompanied by a non refundable $50.00 processing fee.
Applications must be received at least 30 days prior to the first event date to ensure that all reviews can be completed
prior to the event. This application is only for permission to use Town property. Any additional licenses, such as food
service permit, etc., may be required and it is the applicant’s responsibility to secure the same.

Action by the Board of Selectmen:

Proof of Insurance Required

Approved as submitted

Approved with the following condition(s):

Disapproved for following reason(s):

Date: Processing Fee: $50.00

Fee:




APPLICANT IS RESPONSIBLE FOR OBTAINING ALL NECESSARY PERMITS AND INSPECTIONS

Health/Conservation Agent:

Comments/ConditW

Inspector of Buildings:

N[ A

Comments/Conditions:
Permits/Inspections needed: Permits/Inspections needed:
need o file a Come pecm
oS Ceqpwed Carnp docoments
Police Department: Fire Department:
Comments/Conditions: W}‘ Comments/Conditions:

DPW:

N/A

Comments/Conditions

Community Services Director:

Comments/Conditions:

'/I/F\,omaa/\))

Harbormaster:

NA

Comments/Conditions

L

Shellfish:

N /A

Comments/Conditions

I .
Recreation:

Comments/Conditions

ekt
Ko,

Town Administrator:

i3

Comments/Conditions




SELECTBOARD
AGENDA ACTION REQUEST I I I
Meeting Date: May 24, 2022
LICENSES
~A ~
REQUESTED BY: Trudy Vermehren ~ Fox & Crow Inc.
DESIRED Approve the Amendment to the Annual Alcohol License address
ACTION: change from 6 Commercial Street to 70 Main Street.
PROPOSED I move to approve the amendment filed May 6, 2022; to the Fox
MOTION: & Crow Inc. Annual Liquor License, changing the address from
) 6 Commercial Street to 70 Main Street.
SUMMARY:
ACTION TAKEN: Moved By: Seconded By:
Condition(s):

VOTED: Yea Nay Abstain




| Ad Preview |

TOWN OF WELLFLEET

PUBLIC NOTICE
In accordance with M.G.L.
Chapter 139, notice is hereby
given that the Wellfleet
Selectboard will hold a
virtual and in person hearing
ot the ACC 715 OIld King’s
Highway on Tuesday May 24,
2022, ot 7:00pm to consider
the following:
e Application received May
6, 2022, from The Fox and
Crow Inc.; Judy Vermehren
owner 6 Commercial Street,
Wellfleet MA, to transfer the
Annual all Alcoholic Restau-
rant License, Common Vict-
valer License and Annual
Business License from 6
Commercial Street Wellfleet,
MA; to 70 Main Street Well-
fleet, MA.

WELLFLEET SELECT-

BOARD

May 12, 19, 2022 7282183

212



Board of Selectmen

Request for Placement on Agenda

Name:_TRUP Y Veemereen

Address: (3 $0 Coces Meex Ro .

Company or Organization Representing: T HE- L2x and (o) (e
PhoneNumber,__ S OB - 34 9. ([, 39

Bmail Address._“Tirude O & moc. ¢ & mm

Specific Request:
‘b’{-) [ocatio -@'\r' on nwel

-

Ledesee | izens e ,E,-,_w (; c.gmmerd;a_é
O T

To be Filed out by Dept.

Applicant Notified: Date of Hearing:

Date Request Completed:

Request for Placement on Agenda Form 09/11/06 -EGH



The Commonwealth of Massachusetts
Alcoholic Beverages Control Commission
95 Fourth Street, Suite 3, Chelsea, MA 02150-2358
www.mass.gov/abcc

RETAIL ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES LICENSE APPLICATION
MONETARY TRANSMITTAL FORM

AMENDMENT-Change or Alteration of Premises Information

L 4
ECRT CODE: RETA
Please make $200.00 payment here:

PAYMENT MUST DENOTE THE NAME OF THE LICENSEE CORPORATION, LLC, PARTNERSHIP, OR INDIVIDUAL AND INCLUDE THE
PAYMENT RECEIPT

ABCC LICENSE NUMBER (IF AN EXISTING LICENSEE, CAN BE OBTAINED FROM THE CITY) l04840-Rs-1348 |

ENTITY/ LICENSEE NAME |The Foxand Crow Inc. |

ADDRESS 340 Coles Neck Rd. |

CITY/TOWN lWe”ﬂeet ‘ STATE |MA ZIP CODE [2667 \

For the following transactions (Check all that apply):

[ ] New License [] Change Corporate Name [7] Change of Class Ge. Annuat Seasonat [ ] Change Corporate Structure fie. Corp/1LC)
[ ] Transfer of License [ ] Change of DBA [] Change of License Type (ie. club/ restaurant) D Change of Hours

[] Change of Manager [] Alteration of Licensed Premises [ ] Change of Category fic. All AlcoholWine, Mat) || Pledge of Collateral (ie. License/stock

[ ] Change of Officers/Directors Change of Location [ ] Issuance/Transfer of Stock/New Stockholder[_] Management/Operating Agreement

[:I Change of Ownership Interest D Other |

Alcoholic Beverages Control Commission
95 Fourth Street, Suite 3
Chelsea, MA 02150-2358



The Commonwealth of Massachusetts
Alcoholic Beverages Control Commission
95 Fourth Street, Suite 3, Chelsea, MA 02150-2358
www.mass.gov/abcc

AMENDMENT-Change or Alteration of Premises Information

Change of Location

Payment Receipt

Monetary Transmittal Form
Chg of Location/Alteration of Premises
Application

Financial Statement

Vote of the Entity
Supporting financial records
Legal Right to Occupy

Floor Plan

Abutter's Notification
Advertisement

[] Alteration of Premises

Payment Receipt

Monetary Transmittal Form
Chg of Location/Alteration of Premises
Application

Financial Statement

Vote of the Entity
Supporting financial records
Legal Right to Occupy

Floor Plan

Abutter's Notification
Advertisement

1. BUSINESS ENTITY INFORMATION

Entity Name

Municipality

ABCC License Number

The Fox and Crow Inc.

Wellfleet

04840-R5-1348

Please provide a narrative overview of the transaction(s) being applied for. Attach additional pages, if necessary.

‘Change of location, from 6 Commercial St. to Building 1, Ground Floor, 70 Main St.

APPLICATION CONTACT

The application contact is the person who should be contacted with any questions regarding this application.

Name

Title

Email

Phone

'Trudy Vermehren

President

trudy10@mac.com

508-349-1639

2. ALTERATION OF PREMISES

2A. DESCRIPTION OF ALTERATIONS

Please summarize the details of the alterations and highlight any specific changes from the last-approved premises.

2B. PROPOSED DESCRIPTION OF PREMISES
Please provide a complete description of the proposed premises, including the number of floors, number of rooms on each floor, any
outdoor areas to be included in the licensed area, and total square footage. You must also submit a floor plan.

Total Sqg. Footage

Number of Entrances

Seating Capacity

Number of Exits

Occupancy Number

Number of Floors




AMENDMENT-Change or Alteration of Premises Information

3. CHANGE OF LOCATION

3A. PREMISES LOCATION -

Last-Approved Street Address (g Commercial Street, Wellfleet, MA

Proposed Street Address 70 Main Street, Wellfleet, MA

3B. DESCRIPTION OF PREMISES

Please provide a complete description of the premises to be licensed, including the number of floors, number of rooms on each floor, any
outdoor areas to be included in the licensed area, and total square footage. You must also submit a floor plan.

The 70 Main Street location includes a 1200 s.f. dining room with bar, 150 s.f. storage closet, two bathrooms totalling 300
s.f., one kitchen totalling 600 s.f., one secure basement storage area of 120 s.f., and an outdoor patio area of not greater
than 1500 s.f.

Total Sqg. Footage 3870 Seating Capacity |75 Occupancy Number (PN

[y

Number of Entrances Number of Exits |2 Number of Floors 2

3C. OCCUPANCY OF PREMISES

Please complete all fields in this section. Please provide proof of legal occupancy of the premises. (E.g. Deed, lease, letter of intent)

Please indicate by what means the applicant has to occupy the premises

Lease z
Landlord Name [Fitzgerald Hill LLC
Landlord Phone |631-922-1103 Landlord Email [jpaotoole@gmail.com
Landlord Address 240 1/2 Bradford St Provincetown MA 02657
Lease Beginning Date June 1, 2022 Rent per Month  |$6000
Lease Ending Date December 1, 2027 Rent per Year $72,000
Will the Landlord receive revenue based on percentage of alcohol sales? (" Yes (& No




4. FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

Associated Cost(s): (i.e. Costs associated with License Transaction including but not limited to: Property price, Business Assets,
Renovations costs, Construction costs, Initial Start-up costs, Inventory costs, or specify other costs):

Rent: $6000

Associated Cost(s): | |Phone and Internet Service Transfer: $100

Utilities: $500

Additiona! Beer, Wine, and Liquor Inventory: $1500

SOURCE OF CASH CONTRIBUTION

Please provide documentation of available funds. (E.g. Bank or other Financial institution Statements, Bank Letter, etc.)

Name of Contributor

Amount of Contribution

Trudy Vermehren —?eﬂ onal funds 8100.00
Total 8100.00
SOURCE OF FINANCING
Please provide signed financing documentation.
Name of Lender Amount Type of Financing izt':‘neGleLn(é?: i:l;éensee pugsuant
N/A (CYes (" No

(" Yes (" No

Yes (" No

CYes ( No




ENTITY VOTE

The Board of Directors or LLC Managers of [The Fox and Crow Inc.

Entity Name
duly voted to apply to the Licensing Authority of \welifieet | and the

City/Town

Commonwealth of Massachusetts Alcoholic Beverages Control Commission on

Date of Meeting

For the following transactions (Check all that apply):

[] Alteration of Licensed Premises

Change of Location

|:] Other |

“\JOTED: To authorize [Trudy Vermehren

Name of Person

to sign the application submitted and to execute on the Entity's behalf, any necessary papers and
do all things required to have the application granted.”

For Corporations ONLY
A true copy attest, A true copy attest,

Corporate Officer /LLC Manager Signature Corporation Clerk's Signature

(Print Name) (Print Name)



APPLICANT'S STATEMENT

l,inudeETmehfe" ‘ the: Dsole proprietor; L partner; corporate principal; [ LLC/LLP manager
Authorized Signatory

oflThe Fox and Crow Inc. ]

Name of the Entity/Corporation

hereby submit this application (hereinafter the “Application”), to the local licensing authority (the “LLA”) and the Alcoholic
Beverages Control Commission (the “ABCC” and together with the LLA collectively the “Licensing Authorities”) for approval.

I do hereby declare under the pains and penalties of perjury that | have personal knowledge of the information submitted in the
Application, and as such affirm that all statements and representations therein are true to the best of my knowledge and belief.
| further submit the following to be true and accurate:

(1) I understand that each representation in this Application is material to the Licensing Authorities' decision on the
Application and that the Licensing Authorities will rely on each and every answer in the Application and accompanying
documents in reaching its decision;

(2) I state that the location and description of the proposed licensed premises are in compliance with state
and local laws and regulations;

(3) I understand that while the Application is pending, | must notify the Licensing Authorities of any change in the
information submitted therein. | understand that failure to give such notice to the Licensing Authorities may result in
disapproval of the Application;

(4) I understand that upon approval of the Application, | must notify the Licensing Authorities of any change in the
ownership as approved by the Licensing Authorities. | understand that failure to give such notice to the
Licensing Authorities may result in sanctions including revocation of any license for which this Application is submitted;

(5) l understand that the licensee will be bound by the statements and representations made in the Application, including,
but not limited to the identity of persons with an ownership or financial interest in the license;

(6) {understand that all statements and representations made become conditions of the license;

(7) I understand that any physical alterations to or changes to the size of the area used for the sale, delivery, storage, or
consumption of alcoholic beverages, must be reported to the Licensing Authorities and may require the prior approval
of the Licensing Authorities;

(8) | understand that the licensee's failure to operate the licensed premises in accordance with the statements and
representations made in the Application may result in sanctions, including the revocation of any license for which the
Application was submitted; and

(9) I understand that any false statement or misrepresentation will constitute cause for disapproval of the Application or
sanctions including revocation of any license for which this Application is submitted.

(10) I confirm that the applicant corporation and each individual listed in the ownership section of the application is in
good standing with the Massachusetts Department of Revenue and has complied with all laws of the Commonwealth
relating to taxes, reporting of employees and contractors, and withholding and remitting of child support.

| .
Signature:| 7, //z/; o Date: ’RAay 2,2022
Gl

Title: President




ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Please utilize this space to provide any additional information that will support your application or to clarify any answers
provided above.

IThe new location has functioned for many years as a fully operational tavern and is considered "turn key". The lease includes smallwares, equipment, |
furniture, and infrastructure to support the service of alcoholic beverages and food.

Outdoor patio seating will include fencing, lighting, and handicap access.




.NO N ain St.

WF..’O.Z & P
Gromnel Hoov (ist@r)

CONTROIEP
MREA



30 DAY LEASE AGREEMENT
gt

On this ] day of April, 2022, Fitzgerald Hill, LLC, of 70 Main Street, Wellfleet, MA 02667,

hereinafter called LANDLORD, hereby leases to

Trudy Vermehren, of 340 Coles Neck Rd., Wellfleet, 02667-7020, hereinafter called TENANT
who hereby leases the following premises, viz.:

The “Tavern” allocated at Building 1, Ground ( First) Floor of 70 Main Street, South Welifleet,
MA 02667, on a month to month basis beginning April 21,2022 and ending no later than
December 20, 2022. The purpose of this Lease is for the operation of The Fox and Crow
pending a full commercial lease agreement the terms of which have been broadly agreed as
$6,000 per calendar month for a term of 5 % years.

LTI

~ -
-~ .

A

RENT v . > . = T 'J o omae

’ A The term rent shall be $ 1.00, for the first month and $6,000 pef
month thereafter payable on the date of Execution of this Lease and
subsequently on the.1® day gt; each month.

pigid ¥ o I - . )

B: The LANDLORD hereby Yicknowledges™$ 0:60°d8 baymentofthe
first month's rent and the LANDLORD hereby acknowledges receipt
for the TENANT §$ 0.00 as payment for the last month's rent.

C: The TENANT further agrees to pay $ 0.00 as a security deposit.

LANDLORD AND TENANT FURTHER COVENANT AND AGREE:

That during the term of this Lease and for such other and further period as the said TENANT
shall occupy the said premises, all of the terms, covenants and conditions contained herein shall
remain in full force and effect.

1. LEASE TERM - This Lease is on month to month only and does not provide for continuity
under these terms, but does allow for the negotiation of a Five (5) Year Commercial Lease
with rent terms of $6,000.00 per month, with the balance of the terms negotiated to the
satisfaction of both parties.

2. TERMINATION - In the event a Five (5) Year Commercial Lease is not executed by the
Parties on or before May 20, 2022, this Lease shall terminate and the tenant shall vacate the
property on December 20, 2022.

3. HEAT AND OTHER UTILITIES -The LANDLORD or its nominee shall pay, as they
become due, all bills for electricity and other utilities, and insurance.

4. STATE OF PREMISES - The TENANT shall not paint, decorate or otherwise embellish
and/or change and shall not make nor suffer any additions or alternations to be made in or to
the leased premises without the prior written consent of the LANDLORD. The TENANT

lof 3



accepts the premises in their “AS IS” condition.

5, MISCELLANEOUS - The TENANT shall apply for all appropriate licenses and msurance
which must be in place prior to the execution of the Five (5) Year Commercial Lease. The
Parties agree that the current Liquor License will have Trudy Vermehren added as a Co-
Licensee along with Grant Hester, when appropriate.

In witness whereof, the said parties hereunto have set their hands and seals on the day and year
first above written.

Fitzgerald Hill, LLC:

Js 2~ pr AT 2022

John P. O’Toole - LANDLORD

g ; opsose £ Hlal 22
Trudy Vérmehren - TENANT

20f 3



Pran

F[_oo .

SESLIICE

Drowing is no

T s MR AL e e s e

t to scale




R o

-y emy.
Frdan

({4
=)
=
£
B {{ %
i

»
FACnerean o arphae rasrofi
$ra RN Lo

ANNUAL LICENSE  o440Rs-1348
ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES

THE LICENSING BOARD OF

4abseacacesavraboens ¥dssstesednsansees

MASSACHUSETTS
HEREBY GRANTS A

COMMON VICTUALER

License to Expose, Keep for Sale, and to Sell

All Kinds of Alcoholic Beverages
1o Be Drunk On the Premises

This license is granted and accepted upon the express condition that the
licensee shall, in all respects, conform to all the provisions of the Liquor Control
Act, Chapter 138 of the General Laws, as amended, and any rules or regulations
made thereunder by the licensing authorities. This license expires December 31,
20..22.., unless earlier suspended, cancelled or revoked.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, the undersigned have hereunto affixed their
official signatures this November

The Hours during which Alcoholic
Beverages may be sold are

From..8:00.am-1.00am. ...
Sundays.Memarial Ray...............

TP LY AP o
P Sprie s oy

R IR e ST PN

N THE PRENISES | COHSPIWOUS POSITION WHERE IT CAN ﬁSILY BE R

NG




From: customerservice@ncourt.com
Subject: Receipt from nCourt
Date: May 2, 2022 at 10:26:18 AM
To: trudy10@mac.com

Y¥OUR RECEIPT >>

Please Include the payment recelpt with your application. Thank you.

Name:  Massachusetis Alcoholic Beverages Control Commission - Retail
Address 1: 95 Fourth Street, Suite 3

City:  Chelsea
Stale:  Massachusetts
Zip: 02150

First Name:  Trudy Last Name:  Vermehren
Address 71 340 Coles Neck Rd.
e State/ -
City:  Wellfleet Temitory: MA Zip: 02667

Phone:  (508) 349-1639

S N N N

FILING FEES-RETAIL The Fox and Crow Inc. $4.70 $200.00

Recelpt Date: 5/2/2022 10:26:14 AM EDT

Invoice Number: c7b01535-6daf-487¢-8329-729541b9a692 ol AmOUnE EAI-S 20870

Biling Information Credit | Debst Cara information

First Name  Trudy

Card Type  Visa
Last Name  Vermehren

Address 1 340 Coles Neck Rd. Cargumber 4T
City  Welfleet
StatefTerritory MA
Zip 02667
Phone Number

Email  frudy10@mag.com

IMPORTANT INFORMATION >>

Please verify the information shown above. Your payment has been submitted to the location listed above.

Please call (£001 701-8580 If you have any questi g g this Inf tion




SELECTBOARD
AGENDA ACTION REQUEST II [
Meeting Date: May 24, 2022 -
LICENSES
~B ~
REQUESTED BY: Grant Hester & John O’Toole ~ Fitzgerald Hill LLC
DESIRED Approve the Amendment to the Annual Alcohol License and
ACTION: make alterations to the premises
PROPOSED I move to approve the amendment filed May 6, 2022; to
MOTION: Fitzgerald Hill LLC; Grant Hester and John O’Toole to amend
) the All Annual Alcohol License and to alter the premises to

accommodate the Fox & Crow, Inc.
SUMMARY:
ACTION TAKEN: Moved By: Seconded By:

Condition(s):

Yea Nay Abstain

VOTED:




| Ad Preview |

WELLFLEET

SELECTBOARD
In accordance with MGL
Chapter 40A, Section 11, The
Wellfleet Selectboard will
hold a virtual and in person
public hearing TUESDAY,
MAY 24, 2022, at 7:00 p.m. at
the Wellfleet ACC, 715 Old
Kings Hwy, Wellfleet, MA
92667 to consider the follow-
ing:
Application received May 6,
2022; to amend the liquor
license for Fitzgerald Hill
LLC, and have an alteration
of premises to include The
Fox & Crow, Inc. 70 Main
Street Wellfleet MA.

2/2



Board of Selectmen

Request for Placement on Agenda

Name: (-cmn"[' 'HZS"EGX 0 J(OL\I\ O /I—OO(C
Address: 3?—0 1/2— QMA@"J\ 5(" ?l’o‘l /lce"\t‘adn. m{pﬂ

Company or Organization Representing: a

Phone Number; (/31 . 9_2_7 ' l / g

A} v
Email Address;d%ﬂ%é%’v“& N -1

Specific Request:

Amend  [lqiio— /; oen S-€
£ Prouns

_Qauzmr, .

ema\  attadhmerts (oece et
bﬁ eme\ Cooves.

To be Filed out by Dept.

Applicant Notified: Date of Hearing:

Date Request Completed:

Request for Placement on Agenda Form 09/11/06 - EGH



Rebekah Eldridc_;e

From:

Sent:

To:

Cc:

Subject:
Attachments:

Guest Services <guestservices@wagnerwellfleet.com>

Thursday, May 5, 2022 3:32 PM

Jeanne Maclauchlan; Rebekah Eldridge

granthesterphd@gmail.com; jpaotoole@gmail.com

Leasing of licensed premises to another

Screenshot-20220119-164326-Adobe Acrobat jpg; SKM-C45822011915180.pdf; Trudy License ammendment to remove
Tavern.pdf

Rebekah in Jeanne's absence please see below for the upcoming meeting to amend our license to exclude the area identified as the tavern.

As discussed on email with Jeanne Trudy will be occupying under the Fox and Crow Building 1 Ground (First) Floor aka The Tavern, 70 Main Street Wellfleet MA

02667

As there can only be one license holder in any defined physical space please see attached an amendment proposal to our license removing attachment A and

leaving the rest intact

| paid $409.40 and $204.70 in November where it should have been $204.70 so | assume that will cover this application, and they still owe me $204.70 see

attached proof of payment

Best regards

John and Grant

Guest Services
The Wagner at Duck Creek
guestservices@wagnerwellfleet.com
(508) 349-9333




Rebekah Eldridge

From: John O Toole <jpaotoole@gmail.com>
Sent: Wednesday, May 18, 2022 3:07 PM
To: Rebekah Eldridge

Subject: Fwd: Fwd:

---------- Forwarded message ---------

From: John O Toole <jpaotoole@gmail.com>

Date: Tue, May 3, 2022 at 9:27 AM

Subject: Re: Fwd:

To: Jeanne Maclauchlan <Jeanne.Maclauchlan@wellfleet-ma.gov>
CC: Grant Hester <granthesterphd @gmail.com>

Hi Jeanne

Yes, Trudy is going to rent the main floor of building 1.

What was previously trading as the Well.

We will be submitting an alteration to carve off her space Building 1 Ground Floor 70 Main Street and the patio space directly in front of that space.

After speaking with the ABCC she is eligible to maintain her license for her rented premises while we retain ours for the other buildings the grounds and the
other part of Building 1. Which fortunately is easily designated having separate entrances and being physically on separate floors.

My guess is for clarity her license should be for 70 Main St Building 1 Ground Floor.

Best,
John and Grant

On Tue, May 3, 2022 at 9:13 AM Jeanne Maclauchlan <Jeanne.Maclauchlan@wellfleet-ma.gov> wrote:

John, can you explain why Trudy Vermehren is trying to get a license for that address?



From: John O Toole <jpaotoole@gmail.com>

Sent: Monday, May 2, 2022 9:32 PM

To: Jeanne Maclauchlan <Jeanne.Maclauchlan@wellfleet-ma.gov>
Subject: Fwd:

| sent it to Jeannine M earlier

Sorry about that

—————————— Forwarded message ---------

From: John O Toole <jpactoole@gmail.com>
Date: Mon, May 2, 2022 at 4:59 PM

Subject:

To: <jmarshall@coastalcommunitycapital.org>

John O Toole

Cdn Mobile +1647 522 5513
UK Mobile: 0747 181 5077
US Mobile: +1631922 1103

John O Toole

Cdn Mobile +1 647 522 5513
UK Mobile: 0747 181 5077
US Mobile: +1631922 1103



SELECTBOARD

AGENDA ACTION REQUEST I II
Meeting Date: May 24, 2022
LICENSES
~C ~
 REQUESTED BY: Todd LeBart, Mgr ~ The Wellfleet Beachcomber
DESIRED Approve the application for a tent on premises.
ACTION:

PROPOSED I move to approve the application dated April 6, 2022 to grant a
MOTION: tent to be located on the premises oi: the Wellfleet Beachcomber
to be used for food and alcohol service.

SUMMARY:

ACTION TAKEN: Moved By: Seconded By:
Condition(s):

VOTED: Yea Nay Abstain




THE BEACHCOMBER

CAHOON HOLLOW BEACH.CAPE COD

PO Box 1409, Welifleet, Ma. 02667 508 —349-6055
www.thebeachcomber.com

April 6, 2022

Board of Selectmen
300 Main St.
Wellfleet, MA 02667

Re: Licensing for an auxiliary “tent”

Ladies and Gentlemen:

Beachside Management LLC dba Wellfleet Beachcomber hereby requests licensing for
an auxiliary tent to be located on premises and to be used for food and alcohol service.
The tent would be located in the parking lot on the south side of the building and would

be utilized the same as the one that was licensed last year.

Thank you for your consideration.

Todd E. LeBart, Mgr.



asT
/¢

—

{TVvC]

1y

Lo

hoa

ol




SELECTBOARD
AGENDA ACTION REQUEST I ‘ /
Meeting Date: May 24, 2022
BUSINESS 1
~ A 1~
REQUESTED BY: Ryan Curley ~ Chair
DESIRED ACTION: | To accept the donation of four parcels of land to the town
PROPOSED I move to accept the donation of 4 parcels of land from Guenther
MOTION: Back’s Estate 'to the Tow.n (.)f Wellfleet into the Care & Custody of
the Conservation Commission
SUMMARY:
ACTION TAKEN: Moved By: Seconded By:
Condition(s):
VOTED: Yea Nay Abstain




1.18AC.

uP=250AC.
LOW=1.65
=4 15AC

o [=0.09
T=0.92 AC.

Y WAL R
W FMASSACHUSETTS AUDUBON -/
be . v /MA EQCIEDLING. N S, !

~ N

"A’ ‘.'
.

SR 2 gaq A p




5/19/22, 3:45 PM Gmail - Fwd: Wellfleet: Gift of Land

M Gmail Ryan Curley <ryan.d.curley@gmail.com>

Fwd: Wellfleet: Gift of Land

Charles Sumner <Charles.Sumner@wellfleet-ma.gov> Mon, May 2, 2022 at 6:01 AM
To: Ryan Curley <ryan.d.curley@gmail.com>

FYI
Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:

From: "Carolyn M. Murray" <CMurray@k-plaw.com>

Date: April 29, 2022 at 7:21:27 PM EDT

To: Charles Sumner <Charles.Sumner@wellfleet-ma.gov>

Cc: Nancy Vail <Nancy.Vail@welifleet-ma.gov>, Hillary Lemos <Hillary.Lemos@wellfleet-ma.gov>
Subject: Wellfleet: Gift of Land

Hi, Charlie,

G.L. Chapter 40, Section 8C allows a Conservation Commission to accept a gift of land with the approval
of the Selectboard. No Town Meeting vote is required.

Let us know if you have any further questions.

Thank you,

Carolyn M. Murray, Esq.
KP | LAW

101 Arch Street, 12th Floor
Boston, MA 02110

0. (617) 654 1726

F: (617) 654 1735

C: (617) 257 9581
cmurray@k-plaw.com
www.k-plaw.com

This message and the documents attached to it, if any, are intended only for the use of the addressee and may contain information
that is PRIVILEGED and CONFIDENTIAL and/or may contain ATTORNEY WORK PRODUCT. If you are not the intended recipient,
you are hereby notified that any dissemination of this communication is strictly prohibited. If you have received this communication
in error, please delete all electronic copies of this message and attachments thereto, if any, and destroy any hard copies you may
have created and notify me immediately.

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/2/?ik=8971138ddc&view=pt&search=all&permmsgid=msg-f%3A1731708251900218689&simpl=msg-f%3A1731708251...  1/2



5/19/22, 3:45 PM Gmail - Fwd: Wellfleet: Gift of Land

From: Charles Sumner <Charles.Sumner@wellfleet-ma.gov>

Sent: Thursday, April 28, 2022 10:21 AM

To: Carolyn M. Murray <CMurray@k-plaw.com>

Cc: Nancy Vail <Nancy.Vail@wellfleet-ma.gov>; Hillary Lemos <Hillary.Lemos@wellfleet-ma.gov>
Subject: Gift of Land

Good morning Carolyn

It appears that | private party has an interest in gifting the Wellfleet Conservation Commission some real
estate; am | correct that this would require a vote by Town Meeting?

Thanks,

Charlie

Charles L. Sumner

Interim Town Administrator
Town of Wellfleet

300 Main Street

Wellfleet, MA 02667

(W) 508-349-0300

(M) 774-353-7033

https://mail.google.com/mailiu/2/?ik=8971138ddc&view=pt&search=all&permmsgid=msg-f%3A1731708251900218689&simpl=msg-f%3A1731708251...  2/2



5/19/22, 3:44 PM Gmail - Donation of 4 parcels of land from Guenther Back's estate to the Town

M Gma" Ryan Curley <ryan.d.curley@gmail.com>

Donation of 4 parcels of land from Guenther Back's estate to the Town

Nancy Vail <Nancy.Vail@wellfleet-ma.gov> Fri, May 6, 2022 at 9:52 AM
To: Ryan Curley <ryan.d.curley@gmail.com>
Cc: Ryan Curley <Ryan.Curley@wellfieet-ma.gov>, "tom@thomasjbakerlaw.org" <tom@thomasjbakerlaw.org>

Good Morning, Ryan — The estate of Guenther Back would like to donate the following parcels of land to the Town under
the care and control of the Conservation Commission:

Map 42, lots 125, 126, 127, 132 - map attached

We have been advised by Town Counsel that this donation can be accepted by a vote of the Select Board with no need to
go to Town Meeting. The family would like the transaction to be completed by June 30, 2022, with the recording fees paid
by the Town.

Kindly contact Attorney Thomas Baker, the Back family’s counsel, directly at 508-234-0981 or tom@thomasjbakerlaw.org.
Thank you,

Nancy Vail
Assessor

Town of Wellfleet
300 Main St.
Wellfleet, MA 02667
508-349-0304

Nancy.vail@wellfleet-ma.gov

ﬂ Back Parcels.pdf
236K

https://mail.google.com/mailiu/2/?ik=897 1138ddc&view=pt&search=all&permmsgid=msg-f%3A17320851784295406538simpl=msg-f%3A1732085178... 1 n



SELECTBOARD
AGENDA ACTION REQUEST I \ /
Meeting Date: May 24, 2022
BUSINESS I
~ B ~/
REQUESTED BY: Michael Hurley ~ Police Chief
DESIRED ACTION: | Chief Hurley will update the beard on The COPS grant
PROPOSED If a motion is needed one will be made at the time of the meeting.
MOTION:
SUMMARY:
ACTION TAKEN: Moved By: Seconded By:
Condition(s):

VOTED: Yea Nay Abstain




U.S. Department of Justice
Office of Community Oriented Policing Services

COPS Fact Sheet .

Communily Oriented Policing Services
U.S. Department of Justice

2022 COPS Hiring Program

Strengthening Community Policing by Hiring Officers

The FY 2022 COPS Hiring Program {CHP) is designed to advance public safety through community policing by addressing
the full-time sworn officer needs of state, local, and tribal law enforcement agencies nationwide. CHP provides funds directly
to law enforcement agencies to hire new or rehire additional career law enforcement officers and to increase their community

policing capacity and crime-prevention efforts.

The FY 2022 CHP award program is an open solicitation. All local, state, and tribal law enforcement agencies that have pri-
mary law enforcement authority are eligible to apply. All awards are subject to the availability of appropriated funds and to

any modifications or additional requirements that may be imposed by law.

WHEN: Deadline for first part of application Supporting Local Law Enforcement
in Grants.gov is June 9, 2022, at 7:59 | inAdvancing Community Policing so

. Communities can Thrive
p.m. ET. Deadline for completed ap-
plication in JustGrants is June 16,
2022, at 7:59 p.m. ET.

Start EARLY. This is more than enforcement agencies across the country to develop creative
and innovative ways to meet long-standing challenges in

their communities. To date, the COPS Office has funded
WHERE: 1. Register at www.grants.gov. the addition of more than 13,000 state, local, and tribal law
enforcement agencies to fund the hiring and redeployment
of more than 134,000 officers.

More than 25 years after its establishment by the Vio-
lent Crime Control and Law Enforcement Act of 1994,
the COPS Office continues to support the efforts of law

a one-day process.

2. Complete the application
in https://justicegrants.

> COPS Office hiring programs like CHP assist law enforce-
usdoj.gov. ment agencies in advancing public safety by enhancing

How: Online only. No hard copies sent their community policing efforts. In a changing economic

. . . climate, these programs help state, local, and tribal law
by U.S. Mail or electronic copies

enforcement agencies maintain sufficient sworn personnel

sent via email. levels to keep their communities safe.

Funding Provisions

FY 2022 CHP awards will provide up to 75 percent of the
entry-level salary and fringe benefits for each approved posi-
tion for a three-year period. There is a minimum 25 percent
local cash match (cost share) requirement unless a waiver is

April 2022



2022 COPS Hiring Program

2

approved. The maximum federal share per officer position

is $125,000 over the three-year period unless a local match
waiver is approved. Any additional costs for higher than
entry-level salaries and fringe benefits will be the responsibil-
ity of the recipient agency.

CHP awards provide funding for three years (36 months)

of entry-level salary for each position awarded. The award
period of performance is five years (60 months) to accom-
modate the hiring process. Agencies must retain each CHP-
funded position for 12 months following the three years of
funding for that position. The additional officer positions
should be added to your agency's law enforcement bud-

get with state or local funds (or both) over and above the
number of locally funded officer positions that would have
existed in the absence of the award. Absorbing CHP-funded
positions through attrition (rather than adding the extra posi-
tions to your budget with additional funding) does not meet
the retention requirement.

Funding under this program may be used to do the follow-
ing: (1) hire new officers (including filling existing officer
vacancies that are no longer funded in an agency’s budget);
(2) rehire officers already laid off (at the time of application)
as a result of state, local, or Bureau of Indian Affairs (BIA)
budget reductions unrelated to the receipt of award fund-
ing; or (3) rehire officers scheduled to be laid off (at the time
of application) on a specific future date as a result of state,
local, or BIA budget reductions unrelated to the receipt of
award funding. CHP applicants may request funding in one
or more of these three hiring categories.

The COPS Office may grant a waiver of some or all of an
applicant’s local match requirement. During the application
review process, waiver requests will be evaluated based on

a demonstration of severe fiscal distress.

The COPS Office statutory nonsupplanting requirement
mandates that CHP funds must be used to supplement
(increase) state, local, or BIA funds that would have been
dedicated toward sworn officer positions if federal funding
had not been awarded. CHP award funds must not be used
to supplant (replace) local funds that agencies otherwise
would have devoted to sworn officer hiring. The hiring or
rehiring of officers under CHP must be in addition to, and
not in lieu of, officers who otherwise would have been hired
or rehired with state, local, or BIA funds.

Applicants are required to affirm in their CHP award appli-
cation that their agency plans to retain any additional officer
positions funded following the expiration of the award and
identify their planned sources of retention funding.

Highlights of FY 2022 CHP

Additional consideration in the application review process
will be given to applicants that propose a community-based
approach to the following problem/focus areas: Building
Legitimacy and Trust, Violent Crime (particularly gun
violence), Police-Based Response to Persons in Crisis, and
Combating Hate and Domestic Extremism. If awarded
CHP funding, recipients that chose any of these specific
community policing problem areas will not be allowed to
change the problem area post-award.

Additional consideration will also be given to applicants that
meet any of the following criteria:

» Persistent Poverty. Applicants in an area with persist-
ent poverty

= Preventing Radicalization of Personnel. Applicants
seeking support for screening and counseling programs
to identify and prevent the radicalization of applicants
and personnel who endorse violent and hateful extremist

movements

» Community-based Hires. Applicants that commit to
recruiting officers from the community in which they
will serve

= Community-based Officer Relocation. Applicants that
commit to recruiting officers who are willing to relocate
to areas characterized by fragmented relations between
police and community residents or to areas of high crime

= Diversity Training. Agencies that require evidence-based
cultural sensitivity training for officers

s Safe Harbor. Applicants in states with certain anti-
human trafficking laws that treat minors engaged in
commercial sex as victims (referred to as “safe harbor”
laws) and permit individuals to vacate arrest or prosecu-
tion records for nonviolent offenses as a result of being

trafficked

» Catastrophic Incident. Applicants that experienced an
unanticipated catastrophic event or Attorney General—
declared area in crime-related crisis

April 2022



2022 COPS Hiring Program

PV & = _——— —— ———— ————" = T A5

= Hiring Veterans. Applicants that commit to hiring at
least one military veteran

s Rural Designation. Applicants from rural areas

w Agency Not Funded in FY21. Applicants that did not
receive 2a CHP award in FY 2021

CHP recipients who use CHP funding to deploy school
resource officers (SRO) will be required to submit a
memorandum of understanding (MOU) between the law
enforcement agency and the school partners. In addition, all
applicants who receive FY 2022 CHP funding for SROs will
be required to send each awarded SRO position to a training
sponsored and subsidized by the COPS Office. Additional
information about this training requirement will be pro-
vided to recipients at the time of award.

Contact the COPS Office

For more information about COPS
Office programs and resources, please
call the COPS Office Response Center
at 800-421-6770 or visit the COPS Office
website at htips://cops.usdoj.gov.

How to Apply
Step 1. Register with the SAM (System of Award Man-

agement) database or confirm or renew your existing

SAM registration.

Step 2. Confirm your entity’s electronic business point of
contact (E-Biz POC) in SAM is accurate.

Step 3. Register with Grants.gov or confirm your exist-

ing registration.

Step 4. Submit the first part of your application in
Grants.gov. Deadline to complete this step is June 9, 2022,
at 7:59 p.m.

Step 5. Onboard your agency to the JustGrants Justice
Grants System.

Step 6. Complete and submit the second part of your appli-
cation in JustGrants (https://www.justicegrants.usdoj.gov).

Further instructions and explanations of the application
process can be found on the COPS Office website at
https://cops.usdoj.gov.

Complete application packages for the FY 2022 CHP solici-
tation are due by June 16, 2022, at 7:59 p.m. ET.

April 2022



SELECTBOARD

AGENDA ACTION REQUEST I \ /
Meeting Date: May 24, 2022

BUSINESS 1
~C ~

REQUESTED BY: Michael Hurley ~ Police Chief

DESIRED ACTION: | Chief Hurley will present the Hazard Mitigation Plan to the

board and public
PROPOSED If a motion is needed one will be made at the time of the meeting.
MOTION:
SUMMARY:
ACTION TAKEN: Moved By: Seconded By:
Condition(s):

VOTED: Yea Nay Abstain










Table of Contents
W Figures.....
B Tables......
B Introduction.......
B Review Tool Description:.

ok

¥ Planning Team

I8 Outreach Strategy .

I incorporation with Other Town Plans andReport ............... 19
CHAPTER 2

Natural Hazards e 22
B Hazard Identification. .24

B Hazard Profiles ... .28
B Climate Change...... ...89
B Hazards Selected for Risk Assessment — 9

CHAPTER 3

ASSEL INMVENTOTY oerveeieeeeirinteeraeee e srce et r et s n e eeemtesmereeennes 93
B People .. 95
B Base Map of Wellfleet..... 96

. 96

B Natural Environment.... .
. 97

M Built Environment

CHAPTER 4
Vulnerability Assessment ......c...occveereemeersueneenns 104
B Methodology
Il Results: Vulnerability Assessment

B Vulnerable Populations ........c........
B summary of Vulnerable Infrastructure ...

CHAPTER 5
Mitigation Strategy 120
B Mitigation Goals.........everemnrerereerrereions 122

B Progress on 2016 Mitigation Actions
B 2022 Mitigation Actions
B Participation in NFIP......

B Capability Assessment

T WhHo IS INVOIVEA? ..ottt enanes 158
I How will the plan be maintained?......... 158
I When will the plan be maintained? ......

CHAPTER 7
Plan Adoption

B Timeline for Plan Adoption
B Plan Adoption

Appendix 164



WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

Figures
Figure 1.1 | Wellfleet Hazard Planning Team.........cc......... 11

Figure 1.2 | Wellfleet and Truro Municipal Vulnerability
Plan (MVP), eight-hour Community Resilience Building
Workshop on March 12, 2019 at Preservation Hall,
WEIFIEBL. ettt 13

Figure 2.1 | Overwash of Dunes at Duck Harbor............... 28

Figure 2.2 | Historic shoreline change along the coast of
Wellfleet. Map was created using data from the
Massachusetts Ocean Resource Information System....... 29

Figure 2.3 | Historic shoreline change along the coast of
Wellfleet. Map was created using data from the
Massachusetts Ocean Resource Information System....... 29

Figure 2.4 | Historic shoreline change along the coast of
Wellfleet. Map was created using data from the
Massachusetts Ocean Resource Information System....... 30

Figure 2.5 | Cahoon Hollow parking lot and dune erosion.
....... 3

Figure 2.6 | Map of Wellfleet showing the locations of
culverts and one dike................ .. 34

Figure 2.7 | Town of Wellfleet Wildfire Risk map from the
Barnstable County Wildfire Preparedness Plan. ................ 41

Figure 2.8 | Town of Wellfleet Wildfire Risk map from the
Barnstable County Wildfire Preparedness Plan. ............... 43

Figure 2.10 | Coastal Flooding during winter 2018
NOPEASTEN ..ttt sb st s 46

Figure 2.9 | FEMA Flood Hazard Area Map ....eeiinnnene. 46

Figure 2.11 | Schematic of the generic differences between
mean sea level, normal high tide, storm surge and storm
tide. This graphic is for educational purposes only. The
numbers shown (2, 15, 17 feet) are not specific to Wellfleet.

Figure 2.12 | FEMA Flood Hazard Area Map ........ovceeveininns 51

Figure 2.13 | Storm surge at Wellfleet Harbor, January 2018
Nor'easter ..... SR 61

Figure 2.14| Map of frequency and strength of windstorms
in the United States. Planning area is highlighted with a red
circle. Map is from the 2013 Massachusetts State Hazard

Figure 2.15| Schematic of how lightning develops, from
Thunderstorms, Tornadoes and Lightning: Nature’s Most
Violent Storms........coueeees ceererennn b s 70

Figure 2.16| Map of the average number of thunderstorms
per year in the United States. Planning area is highlighted
with a red circle. Map is from the 2013 Massachusetts State

Hazard Plan ... sssssssssesssnesens 73
Figure 2.17 | Sea level rise map for Wellfleet. ........cccovuu.nn 88
Figure 3.1 | Wellfleet Base Map.......cccccevciincisnsnsinsensnnne 96
Figure 3.7 | Map of Critical Facilities in Wellfleet............... 100

Figure 7.1 | Certificate of Adoption signed by the Wellfleet
Select BOArd. ... 161



Tables
Table 2.1 | List of Relevant Hazards for Wellfleet.............. 25

Table 2.2 | Modified Mercalli Scale, from Earthquake
Causes and Characteristics, Chapter 3 of Emergency

Management Institute Training Guide........cocooiiiiineveiranes 37
Table 2.3 | Recent Flooding Event History .........ccccecuvuenenne 47
Table 2.4 | Saffir-Simpson Hurricane Wind Scale (National
HUTTICANE CONEET) . uiiiiveieerreecerrensereneeserrrisseessesssnessesessesaeneesae 52
Table 2.5| Notable tropical storms and hurricanes for
Barnstable COUNY...iimmeanmmnmesiime.s 54

Table 2.6 | Major Disaster Declarations for Barnstable
County for Winter Storms. Data is from the FEMA Disaster

Declaration Website ........ccvvinnmennneniininns 83
Table 2.7 | Relevant Hazards for Wellfleet..........covvevernennes 9N
Table 3.1 | The 2019 American Community Service

estimates for total housing units. ..... . " 97

Table 3.2 | Number and type of housing units in Wellfleet,
U.S. Census American Community Survey (estimate), 2019.
*Note: The ACS housing units data estimates contain a
high margin of error and may not reflect actual number of
EXISEING UNIES. oveeceen s s 98

Table 3.3 | Estimated Number and Value of Wellfleet
Businesses, U.S. Census American Community Survey,
D=Withheld to avoid disclosing data for individual
companies N=Data not available or not comparable........ 98

Table 3.4 | Wellfleet Employment and Wages Report, 2020
Annual...

Table 3.5 | List of Critical Facilities in Wellfleet

Table 3.6 | New Development in Wellfleet........

Table 4.1| The number of parcels and value of buildings
values located in A or V zone, Table generated using 2021
Wellfleet Assessing Data. .....ooveenccsrirnnnns 110

Table 4.2 | The number of parcels and value of buildings
exposed to sea level rise. Table generated using 2021
Wellfleet Assessing Data L OVVUPC L T 111

Table 4.3 | The number of parcels and value of buildings
vulnerable to hurricanes. Table generated using 2021
Wellfleet AsSESSING Data. wccciiiiammminmmisecssseisccsnssossssiseses 113

Table 4.4 | The number of parcels and value of buildings
on parcels that share a physical boundary with sea water. If
a parcel shares a boundary with sea water, it is assumed to
be vulnerable to coastal hazards such as shoreline change
and erosion..............

Table 4.5 | Exposure Assessment for Critical Facilities....114

Table 5.1| Progress Determination on 2016 Mitigation
ACtioNS..cmiiinns




WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

Introduction

The purpose of hazard mitigation is to reduce loss from
future natural disasters. Storms and other natural
disasters can cause loss of life, damage to buildings and
infrastructure and have devastating consequences to a
community’s economic, social and environmental well-
being. Planning for future hazards represents an important
step towards reducing loss in a community, and many
develop a local (or “single jurisdiction”) Hazard Mitigation
Plan to protect people and community assets. Town
officials, residents, and other stakeholders develop the
plan and submit the document once completed to the
Massachusetts Emergency Management Agency (MEMA)
and the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA)
for their review and approval.

The purpose of the Welifleet Hazard Mitigation Plan is to
reduce the community’s vulnerability to natural hazards by
implementing sustained actions to reduce or eliminate
long-term risk to human life and property. Wellfleet's
Hazard Mitigation Plan also helps build a successful, long-
term outreach strategy both to educate residents about
natural hazards that could affect the town and create a
resilient community that can recover after a storm event.

The Town of Wellfleet completed a FEMA-certified Hazard
Mitigation Plan in 2016 (approved by FEMA in 2017). This
2022 Plan builds on the previous plan and reflects changes
in in the Town's priorities and mitigation needs since 2016.
Completion of this five-year update is critical for the Town
to maintain its Community Rating Systemlevel which
reduces flood insurance cost for property owners.

When the 2022 Wellfleet Hazard Mitigation Plan update is
approved by FEMA and adopted by the Select Board,
Wellfleet will continue its eligibility for funding from FEMA's
Hazard Mitigation Assistance (HMA) program, which
includes the following programs:

« Hazard Mitigation Grant Program (HMGP): assists
in implementing long-term, "forward thinking”
hazard mitigation measures following a major
disaster

« Building Resilient Infrastructure and
Communities (BRIC): provides funds for hazard
mitigation planning and projects on an annual basis

+ Flood Mitigation Assistance (FMA): provides funds
for projects to reduce or eliminate risk of flood
damage to buildings that are insured under the
National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) on an
annual basis.

Review Tool Description:

FEMA developed a “Local Mitigation Review Guide” to help
Federal and State officials assess Local Hazard Mitigation
Plans in a fair and consistent manner and to ensure
approved local plans meet the requirements of the
Stafford Act and Title 44 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR)
201.6. The “Local Mitigation Review Guide” was used as
guidance in updating the Wellfleet Hazard Mitigation Plan.
When text in the Plan meets an element identified in the
Review Guide, it is called out in a colored box in the
margin.



The Planning
Process

CHAPTER ONE




Developing a municipal hazard plan involves
expertise from a core team of town officials
and input from stakeholders, the public, and
neighboring communities. When a
community-wide plan is supported by a
diverse cross section of stakeholders,
residents, and town officials, it becomes a
“living” document that is useful for the
community on a long-term basis. A
successful municipal hazard plan educates

residents about risk and vulnerability related
to natural hazards and builds support for
local policies, actions and tools that reduce
future losses from natural hazards.

Chapter 1 is a narrative on the hazard
planning team and the outreach process
used to develop the 2022 Wellfleet Hazard
Mitigation Plan.




Planning Process

Since completion of the 2016 Wellfleet Hazard Mitigation
Plan, town officials recognized the need both to update
its hazard planning strategy and align its efforts to
increase the community’s resilience to climate change. As
a seaside community, Wellfleet has a history of dealing
with a dynamic coastal environment. The town is highly
susceptible to natural hazards such as coastal flooding,
storm surge and erosion. The effects of climate change
will continue to exacerbate these hazards. The town has
obtained funding for several studies and projects to
address coastal hazards currently impacting the
community, including roadway flooding and shoreline
change.

In addition to completion of a FEMA-certified Hazard
Mitigation Plan, Wellfleet (together with the Town of
Truro) received a planning grant from Massachusetts
Executive Office of Energy and Environmental Affairs
through the Municipal Vulnerability Preparedness (MVP)
program to complete a community resiliency planning
process that examines the town's vulnerabilities and
strengths and identifies priority actions to increase the
community’s resilience to climate change. Town staff,
comprised of representatives from several departments,
worked with the Cape Cod Commission (CCC) as its
certified MVP provider to complete the prescribed MVP

! For information on the MVP process, see https://www.wellfleet-
ma.gov/healthconservation-department/news/municipal-
vulnerability-preparedness-documents

WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

process in 2019. Following completion of the MVP
workshop and submittal of a final report to the
Massachusetts Executive Office of Energy and
Environmental Affairs (EOEEA), the town became an MVP
certified community and is eligible for action grants to
address coastal resiliency and hazards related to climate
change.

The MVP program, through its community engagement
and participation process, supports and informs the
Hazard Mitigation Plan that advances the community’s
“conversation” around hazard impacts and climate
change. The 2022 Hazard Mitigation Plan references the
MVP Workshop and incorporates MVP actions.’

Planning Team
Members and Responsibilities

The Planning Team is an interdisciplinary group of town
staff members with expertise and authority to develop
the plan and the authority and expertise to implement its
action items. Several of these town staff members also
participated in the 2019 MVP workshop. Cape Cod
Commission staff provided technical support to the
Planning Team during development of the hazard plan.
Assistant Town Administrator Rebecca Roughley and
Chief of Police Michael Hurley co-led Planning Team. This
group was responsible for developing and reviewing



WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

drafts of the Hazard Plan, creating a mitigation strategy,
and submitting the plan for Federal Emergency
Management Agency (FEMA) approval and adoption by
the Wellfleet Select Board.

As noted above, the Assistant Town Administrator, who
also serves as Town Planner, was a member of the local
hazard planning team. The town planner oversees the
Planning Board, which is the primary local agency for
regulating development in the town, and the Zoning
Board of Appeals, which also acts on requests for special
permits. The Assistant Town Administrator/Town
Planner’s participation in the hazard mitigation plan

ensured information sharing with these boards. Both
were included as stakeholders in the MVP and Hazard
Mitigation Plan processes. The Conservation Agent, also a
member of the hazard planning team, provided a liaison
to the Conservation Commission, which has regulatory
authority over development in wetland resource areas.
Its members were also targeted as stakeholders in both
the MVP and Hazard Mitigation Plan processes.



CHADTER 1 The Blanning Sracoss WELLFLEET { Hazard Mitigation Plan

Table 1.1 lists the members of the Wellfleet Hazard Planning Team and their responsibilities.

Name Title Responsibilities
Attended team meetings, reviewed critical facilities list, developed mitigation

B Building Commissioner
JanisS Badera e actions, provided new development and building data

Project co-lead, coordinated town staff tasks, reviewed critical facilities list,

Michael Hurle Police Chief
Y developed actions, assisted with public outreach strategy, attended team meetings.

Richard Pauley Fire Chief Attended team meetings, reviewed critical facilities list, developed mitigation actions

Assistant Town Project co-lead, coordinated staff tasks, assisted with public outreach strategy,

Rebecca Roughle
ghiey Administrator attended team meetings

Director of Community

Services Attended team meetings, reviewed critical facilities list, developed mitigation actions

Suzanne Grout Thomas

GIS Analyst, Cape Cod

e Prepared maps; used GIS software to conduct a risk assessment
Commission

Gary Prahm

Figure 1.1 | Wellfleet Hazard Planning Team



WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

Meeting Schedule and
Involvement

The Planning Team met regularly between November 2021 and
February 2022 to develop a five-year update to the 2016
Wellfleet Hazard Mitigation Plan. Cape Cod Commission
staff also consulted with project leads throughout the
plan‘s development and sought input from Shannon
Hulst, Floodplain Specialist & CRS Coordinator, on
matters related to repetitive loss properties, CRS, and
floodplain regulations.

Below is a list of dates and topics covered at each of the
Planning Team meetings.

s December 1, 2021: Kick-off meeting between Cape
Cod Commission staff & local planning team.
Overview of the Hazard Mitigation Plan update
elements; scope of work between Cape Cod
Commission and Town.

e December 15, 2021: Follow-up of Meeting 1 agenda
items; draft public survey; hazard profiles.

s January 5, 2022: Follow-up on 2016 Actions status;
public survey; hazard profiles; capabilities
assessment; new development since 2016; changes
in Town priorities; relevant plans and documents

o February 2, 2022; New actions for 2022; check-in on
outreach and other plan elements. Review of survey
results.

Outreach Strategy

With the Public

The public was engaged at multiple times during the
planning stages: during the MVP pracess; during plan
development, and just prior to submission of the draft
hazard plan for MEMA/FEMA review.

During MVP Process

Prior to undertaking the Hazard Mitigation Plan update,
the towns of Wellfleet and Truro together engaged
community members and stakeholders through the
MVP/Community Resilience Building (CRB) effort. The
keystone of the MVP Process was an eight-hour
Community Resilience Building Workshop on March 12,
2019 at Preservation Hall. About 42 people attended this
workshop. Participants listed flooding, sea level rise,
coastal erosion, extreme/severe weather, high
winds/hurricane, and climate change as the most critical
natural hazards the town faces. Participants
recommended ways to improve resiliency on each of
these. Following the workshop, the towns of Wellfleet and
Truro held a Listening Session at the Truro Community
Center and invited the public to attend and comment.
The Listening Session included presentation of a draft
summary of workshop process and findings.



WELLFLEET | Hazara Mitigation Plan

Figure 1.2 | Wellfleet and Truro
Municipal Vulnerability Plan (MVP),
eight-hour Community Resilience
Building Workshop on March 12,
2019 at Preservation Hall,

Wellfleet.
During Plan Development Alink to the survey was shared with stakeholders and
The Planning Team developed an online survey to gather posted an the Town web5|.te and the Po!ice Department’s
data on the significance/relevance of the natural hazards Facebook page. The Planning team received 225
identified in the Massachusetts State Hazard and Climate responses to the public survey.

Adaptation Plan to Wellfieet; the impact of natural
hazard; and actions taken to protect people's property
and themselves. The survey also gathered data on
residents’ communication preferences. The survey was The process for incorporating public input into the
launched on January 4, 2021 and closed on February 5, hazard plan was as follows:

2021, giving the public one month to complete it.

For a copy of the survey, see “Public Survey on Hazard
Mitigation” in Appendix.



WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

Planning Team members considered public input
from the MVP Workshop and public survey during
top hazard identification and development of
mitigation actions. Several members of the
planning team participated in the workshop.

. The Planning Team incorporated MVP workshop
input and public survey responses/comments into
the hazard plan in the following ways:

At the December 15, 2021 Planning Team
meeting, the members reviewed the top hazards
identified in the 2016 Hazard Mitigation Plan and
from MVP workshop participants and used that to
help inform/support their determination of
hazards most relevant to the community. The
hazards assessed in the Hazard Mitigation Plan
include the top hazards identified during the MVP
process.

At the January 5, 2022 Planning Team meeting,
members considered recommendations from the
MVP workshop and incorporated them into new
mitigation actions.

The group discussed public survey results at the
February 2022 team meeting. The survey asked
people to identify specific hazards they
experienced or are most concerned about while
living or working in Wellfleet. These selections
helped confirm/support the Planning Team’s
determination whether a particular hazard is
significant to the town.

The survey asked people to identify steps that the
local government could take to reduce risk from
natural hazards and protect the buildings and
people of Wellfleet. It included a list of mitigation
actions to reduce risk and loss plus an opportunity
to suggest additional actions. The public
responses helped indicate level of support and
identify new actions where needed. Overall, the
survey input provided strong support for
addressing hazards and climate change impacts.

The survey asked how respondents get their
information. Their responses showed that the
Town website and emait are critical information
sources for residents. The responses also show
that some residents get community information
from social media. The team discussed the pros
and cons of using social media for emergency
planning and hazard education

Prior to Submission to MEMA/FEMA

The Town of Welifieet posted a link to the draft
2022 Wellfleet Hazard Mitigation Plan on the Town
of Wellfleet website and on the Town Police
Department Facebook page. The sites included
information for providing comments on the plan.

The draft Wellfleet Hazard Mitigation Plan was
presented at the May 24, 2022 Select Board
meeting. During the meeting, the public had the
opportunity to provide comments.

PLACEHOLDER for comments



he Blanning Progess WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan




WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

With Stakeholders

A stakeholder for the Wellfleet Hazard Mitigation Plan is
someone who may be affected by or have an interestin
the plan and its implications but was not part of the
Planning Team. Stakeholders for hazard planning efforts
can be public officials, agency heads, members of
neighborhood/civic organizations, business associations
or staff from academic institutions.

The stakeholder process for updating the 2022 Wellfleet
Hazard Mitigation Plan involved the following steps:

1.

2.

Stakeholders were identified during development
of the 2016 hazard mitigation plan and the MVP
process and reviewed for inclusion in the 2022
plan.

The Planning Team designed a strategy to engage
and gather input from stakeholders.

Stakeholders provided input during the planning
process and just prior to plan approval.

Identification of Stakeholders

Stakeholders include the following organizations and
groups in Wellfleet and from across the region:

Wellfleet Chamber of Commerce
Wellfleet Non-Resident Taxpayers Association

Barnstable County Regional Emergency Planning
Committee

Cape Cod Cooperative Extension

National Park Service/Cape Cod National Seashore
SPAT

Marina Advisory Committee

Wellfleet Conservation Commission

Wellfleet Open Space Committee

Wellfleet Planning Board

Wellfleet Climate Action and Energy Committee
Wellfleet Council on Aging

Wellfleet Chamber of Commerce

Wellfleet Emergency Management Team
Woods Hole Sea Grant

Chequessett Golf and Country Club

Wellfleet Bay Audubon



Stakeholder Participation

Stakeholders were engaged multiple times- both during
the MVP process and hazard mitigation plan
development and again just prior to submission of the
draft hazard mitigation plan to MEMA and FEMA.

e Stakeholders participated in the MVP workshop
and identified top hazards of concern strengths
and vulnerabilities related to hazards, and
mitigation actions to increase the strengths or
reduce the vulnerabilities. Input from the MVP
workshop has been incorporated into the 2022
Hazard Mitigation Plan relevant hazard
determination and mitigation actions.

e Stakeholders were invited to review and comment
on the draft MVP Workshop Summary of Findings
which was posted on the Town website and
presented at a public listening session in May
2019.

» Stakeholders were invited to participate in the
December 8, 2021 Wellfleet Low Lying Roads
project workshop.?

¢ Stakeholders were invited to take a hazard survey
during plan development in January 2022. The
survey provided an opportunity for the Planning
Team to gather data on the significance/ relevance
of natural hazards identified in the Massachusetts

2 For more information about the Low Lying Roads Project, see
httas:/ ‘www.clpecodcommi- sion.ors four-work low-1 in_-riads-proiect

WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

State Hazard Plan to Wellfleet; the impact of the
hazards, and effort to improve resiliency. The
survey also gathered data on how stakeholders
would like to be engaged in hazard related issues
in the future. As discussed in the Public
Participation section, survey responses heiped
support the planning team’s determination of
relevant hazards and also understand which L
outreach methods are most effective.

I:'.'S

Prior to submission of the draft Hazard Mitigation Plan
Update to MEMA, the Planning Team invited stakeholders
to review and comment on the plan. The following
comments were received:

ADD ANY STAKEHOLDER COMMENTS

With Neighboring Communities

The draft Plan was sent to Town Planners in Truro and
Wellfleet for review and comment. A copy of the email
sent to these neighboring towns soliciting their feedback
on the Plan is provided in the Appendix.

Continuing Outreach Efforts During Plan L s
Maintenance

Once the 2022 Wellfleet Hazard Mitigation Plan is
approved by MEMA and FEMA, it will be forwarded to the



'WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

Wellfleet Select Board for adoption. Once adopted, the
plan enters into the "Maintenance Period” and will be
active for five years. During this maintenance period, FEMA
requires the Planning Team to continue public engagement.

The following is a list of engagement activities that the
Planning Team will complete during this five-year
maintenance period:

s Online surveys to gather data on whether
Wellfleet residents are prepared for nor'easters,
hurricanes and severe winter weather.

s Presentations to community groups about the
science of hazards and/or how to prepare for
specific hazard events.

e Press releases, social media, and public service
announcements to inform the public of hazard
related educational workshops and hazard
planning information.

Incorporation with Other Town Plans and
Report

Technical Information Used in the Plan

The 2022 Wellfleet Hazard Mitigation Plan builds on the
2016 Hazard Mitigation Plan and was drafted based on
the 2016 plan and other existing plans, studies, reports
and technical information from local, county, state and
federal agencies. Technical data used to formulate the
hazard profiles is cited under each profile and is not
explicitly cited in the list below.

Below is a list of the resources from federal, state and
local agencies that were used and incorporated into the
2022 Wellfleet Hazard Mitigation Plan:

Technical Information from Federal Agencies:

« Local Mitigation Planning Handbook (2013)
prepared by FEMA

e How-To Guide: Getting Started - Building Support
for Mitigation Planning (FEMA 386-1, 2002)
prepared by FEMA

e How-To Guide: Understanding Your Risks -
Identifying Hazards and Estimating Losses (FEMA
386-2, 2001) prepared by FEMA

s How-To Guide: Developing the Mitigation Plan
(FEMA 386-3, 2003) prepared by FEMA

» How-To Guide: Bringing the Plan to Life -
Implementing the Hazard Mitigation Plan (FEMA
386-1, 2002) prepared by FEMA

» Mitigation Ideas: A Resource for Reducing Risk to
Natural Hazards (2013) prepared by FEMA

o Hazard Mitigation Assistance Guidance (2015)
prepared by FEMA

« National Flood Insurance Program Community
Rating System Coordinator’'s Manual (FIA-15/2013
prepared by FEMA

« National Flood Insurance Program Floodplain
Management Requirements: Study Guide and
Desk Reference for Local Officials (FEMA 480,
February 2005) prepared by FEMA



Risk Management Series Design Guide for
Improving Critical Facility Safety from Flooding and
High Winds (FEMA 543, January 2007) prepared by
FEMA

Mitigation Assessment Team Report Hurricane lke
in Texas and Louisiana : Building Performance
Observations, Recommendations, and Technical
Guidance (FEMA P-757, April 2009) prepared by
FEMA

Recommended Residential Construction for
Coastal Areas: Building Strong and Safe
Foundations (FEMA P-550, 2™ Edition, December
2009) prepared by FEMA

Wind Retrofit Guide for Residential Buildings
(FEMA P-804, December 2010) prepared by FEMA

Home Builder's Guide to Coastal Construction
Technical Fact Sheets Series (FEMA P-499,
December 2010) prepared by FEMA

Coastal Construction Manual: Principles and
Practices of Planning, Siting, Designing,
Constructing, and Maintaining Residential
Buildings in Coastal Areas Volume | and 1l (4"
edition, FEMA P-55, August 2011) prepared by
FEMA

Highways in the Coastal Environment: Assessing
Extreme Events (2014) prepared by the U.S.
Department of Transportation and the Federal
Highway Administration

National Climate Assessment (2014)

WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

Technical Information from State Agencies:

2018 Massachusetts State Hazard Mitigation and
Climate Adaptation Plan

Massachusetts Erosion and Sediment Control
Guidelines for Urban and Suburban Areas: A Guide
for Planners, Designers, and Municipal Officials
(2003) prepared by Franklin, Hampden,
Hampshire Conservation Districts

Massachusetts Climate Change Adaptation Report
(2011) prepared by Executive Office of Energy and
Environmental Affairs and the Adaptation Advisory
Committee

Sea Level Rise: Understanding and Applying
Trends and Future Scenarios for Analysis and
Planning (2013) prepared by the Massachusetts
Office of Coastal Zone Management

Massachusetts Coastal Erosion Commission Report
(draft released in 2015) prepared by Coastal
Erosion Commission

Commonwealth of Massachusetts All Hazards
Disaster Debris Management Plan (2010) prepared
by the Massachusetts Emergency Management
Agency

Massachusetts Homeowner’s Handbook to Prepare
for Coastal Hozards (2014) prepared by Barnstable
County, Woods Hole Sea Grant and MIT Sea Grant



WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

Technical Information from County Agencies:

e Barnstable County Wildfire Preparedness Plan (2012)
prepared by Barnstable County and the Cape Cod
Cooperative Extension

e 2018 Cape Cod Regional Policy Plan (Cape Cod
Commission)
Technical Information from Wellfleet:
o Wellfleet Local Comprehensive Plan (2005)
o Town of Wellfleet Zoning Bylaws
e 2016 Wellfleet Hazard Mitigation Plan

e Mayo Creek Restoration Committee
Recommendations Final Report

o Town of Wellfleet and Truro Community Resource
Building Workshop Summary of Findings [MVP],
June 2019

» Intermunicipal Shoreline Management Report
(2020)

» Wellfleet Harbor Management Plan 2021

How Technical Information was
incorporated
The technical information listed above was incorporated

into the 2021 Provincetown Hazard Plan in the following
ways:

Federal documents, especially all FEMA documents,
were used to:

e guide the activities of the planning process

« provide technical guidance on successful
mitigation practices in coastal communities

¢ help the Planning Team develop mitigation actions

» provide current data on climate change and
adaptation strategies

State and County documents were used to:

e provide current data on hazard events affecting
Massachusetts and Barnstable County

» guide the Planning Team on current state
mitigation actions and plans

Wellfieet specific documents were used to:

¢ ensure that mitigation actions in the plan
update were consistent with current activities
and plans already in place in Wellfleet

s help inform development of new actions

The Mitigation Goals identified in the 2022 Wellfleet
Hazard Mitigation Plan will be incorporated into the
following plans:

Local Comprehensive Plan (LCP) - The Wellfleet LCP
describes the town's goals, policies and actions on land
use, growth management, natural resources, open space
and recreation, historic preservation and community
character, economic development, housing, and



community facilities and services. Mitigation Goals and
Actions will be incorporated into the next LCP update,
which is currently underway. Below are a few examples
of Mitigation Goals that should be integrated into the LCP
update:

e Reduce the potential for loss of life, property,
infrastructure, and environmental, cultural and
economic resources in Wellfleet from natural
disasters.

e Ensure that mitigation measures are sensitive to
the natural features, historic resources, and
community character of Wellfleet.

Open Space and Recreation Plan - the next OSRP
update should incorporate information from the 2022
hazard plan to help inform and guide potential future
land acquisition and conservation opportunities.

Local Emergency Plan - the Town will incorporate
relevant actions from the 2022 hazard plan into its
emergency plan.

Plan Integration Status:

New FEMA guidance requires that the 2022 Hazard
Mitigation Plan describe how the plan was integrated
with other plans over the last five years. The following
plans resulted from and/or built upon actions from the
2016 Wellfleet Hazard Mitigation Plan:

¢ 2019 Community Resource Building
Workshop/MVP Summary of Findings - hazard

WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

information and priority actions from the 2016
hazard plan were integrated into the workshop
presentations.

e 2021 Harbor Plan Update - Updating the Harbor
Management Plan was an action item in the 2016
Hazard Mitigation Plan. The updated harbor plan
reflects hazard and climate change impacts and
actions from the hazard mitigation plan.

¢ Local Emergency Management Plan - the
emergency plan incorporated actions from the
2016 hazard plan.

» Low Lying Roads Project - this project grew out
of MVP and the 2016 Hazard Mitigation Plan

Going forward, the town will maintain a list of the new
and updated town plans on its website and Planning
Team members will work with the town administration to
ensure that town planning efforts are consistent with the
2022 Wellfleet Hazard Mitigation Plan.



Natural
Hazards

CHAPTER TWO




Wellfleet is vulnerable to a range of natural
hazards that threaten life and property.
FEMA regulations and guidance under the
Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000 require, at
a minimum, an evaluation of a full range of
natural hazards identified in the most
recent Massachusetts State Hazard Plan. An
evaluation of human-caused hazards (i.e.
technological hazards, terrorism, etc.) is

encouraged but not required for plan
approval. The 2022 Wellfleet Hazard
Mitigation Plan, like the 2016 plan, provides
an assessment of natural hazards. Chapter
2 provides a detailed description of the
natural hazards that could impact
Wellfleet in the future or have impacted
Wellfleet in the past.




WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

Hazard ldentification
State Hazards

Wellfleet is vulnerable to a range of natural hazards that can
threaten the people, economy, infrastructure and natural
resources of the town. As suggested under FEMA planning
guidance, the Planning Team reviewed the full range of natural
hazards identified in the most recent Massachusetts State Hazard
and Climate Adaptation Plan (2018}, which include:

Changes in precipitation:
s Inland flooding
e Drought
* landslide
Sea Level Rise
+ Coastal Flooding
» Coastal Erosion
»  Tsunami
Rising Temperatures
= Average/extreme temperatures
o Wildfire
* Invasive Species
Extreme Weather

« Hurricanes/tropical storms

s Severe winter weather/Nor’'easters

* Tornadoes

e Other extreme weather
Non-climate related hazards:

e Earthquake

In addition to the hazards identified in the 2018 state hazard plan,
the Planning Team also included dam/culvert failure, a
technological hazard, which was included as a relevant hazard in
the 2016 Wellfleet Hazard Mitigation Plan.

Selection of Hazards that affect
Welifleet

The Planning Team reviewed the natural hazards
identified in the 2018 Massachusetts State Hazard and
Climate Adaptation Plan and identified those that could
impact Wellfleet in the future or that have impacted
Wellfleet in the past (Tabfe 2.7). The Planning Team
members made this determination based on the current
Wellfleet Hazard Mitigation Plan, their own expertise and
experience, input from the 2019 MVP workshop, data
from the Massachusetts state hazard plans and other
resources. All resources are referenced in the text of each
hazard profile,

CHAPTER 21 Nawral Hazards

WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan



Table 2.1 | List of Relevant Hazards for Wellfleet

Type of Natural Hazard

Possible
Here?

Why/how was this determination
made?

WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

What resources were used to make that
determination?

Coastal
Erosion/Shoreline
Change

Dam (culvert) Failure

Earthquake

Fire (urban and wild)

Flood

Hurricanes and
Tropical Storms

Landslide

Nor'easters

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

History of erosion and shoreline
change in Wellfleet

There are aging culverts in Welifleet
therefore increasing the probability of
failure

No history of earthquakes In Wellfleet
(but there is a history of earthquakes in
Massachusetts)

Fire-adapted vegetation puts the town
at risk for wildfire and there is a history
of urban fires in Wellfleet

History of flooding in Wellfleet and its
geographic location.

History of hurricanes and tropical
storms in Wellfleet.

No history of event, but sandy soils
could be destabilized from water
saturation.

History of nor'easters in Wellfleet and

Massachusetts Coastal Zone Management
MVP Workshop Local knowledge from
Town Staff

2016 Welifleet Hazard Mitigation Plan; MA
Department of Dam Safety Local knowledge
from Town Staff

Local knowledge from Town Staff

2018 Massachusetts Hazard and Climate
Adaption Plan Barnstable County Wildfire
Protection Plan Local knowledge from Town
Staff

2018 Massachusetts Hazard and Climate
Adaption Plan MVP Workshop Local
knowledge from Town Staff

2018 Massachusetts Hazard and Climate
Adaption Plan National Hurricane Center.
MVP, Local knowledge from Town Staff

2018 Massachusetts Hazard and Climate
Adaption Plan Local knowledge from Town
Staff.

2018 Massachusetts Hazard and Climate



WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan [MEEARYER 2 MEUM Harams

Possible  Why/how was this determination What resources were used to make that

Type of Natural Hazard B
ye Here? made? determination?

2018 Massachusetts Hazard and Climate
High winds Yes History of high winds in Wellfleet Adaption Plan MVP Workshop Local
knowledge from Town Staff

2018 Massachusetts Hazard and Climate
Adaption Plan; MVP Workshop; Local
knowledge from Town Staff

History of extreme cold and hot

Extreme temperatures Yes .
P temperatures in Wellfleet.

2018 Massachusetts Hazard and Climate
Drought Yes History of drought in Wellfleet. Adaptation Plan Local knowledge from Town
Staff




WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

2018 Massachusetts Hazard and Climate
Adaptation Plan; Local knowledge from
Town Staff
2018 Massachusetts Hazard and Climate
Adaptation Plan; Local knowledge from

The probability of a damaging tsunami
impacting Massachusetts is unknown

Tsunami

Sea Level Rise Yes History of level rise in Wellfleet
fy ot seaJevelrise | Town Staff MVP Workshop Cape Cod
Commission Sea Level Rise Viewer
Invasive Species® History of invasive species in Welifleet 2018 Massachusetts Hazard and Climate
(associated with Yes (relative to marine species and impacts Adaptation Plan; Local knowledge from
higher temperatures) on local shellfish resources) Town Staff

Table 2.1 | List of Relevant Hazards for Wellfleet

3 Invasive Species is identified as a potential hazard in the 2018 Massachusetts Hazard and Climate Adaptation Plan



WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

Hazard Profiles

Coastal Erosion and Shoreline
Change

Overview

Coastal shorelines—especially heaches, dunes and
banks—change constantly in response to wind, waves,
tides and other factors including seasonal variation, sea
level rise and human alterations to the shoreline system.*
Every day, wind, waves and currents move sand, pebbles
and other materials along the shore or out to sea. This
dynamic and continuous process of erosion, transport and
accretion shape the coastal shoreline. Shorelines change
seasonally, tending to accrete gradually during the
summer months when sediments are deposited by
relatively low energy waves and erode dramatically during
the winter when sediments are moved offshore by high
energy storm waves, such as those generated by
nor'easters.

Hazard Location

Data and imagery from the Shoreline Change Project® and
presented the 2016 Hazard Mitigation Plan shows

the entire coastline of the planning area is vulnerable to
shoreline change. Figure 2.2 through Figure 2.4 provide a
series of three maps of the planning area showing how
the shoreline has changed from the mid-1800s to 2009.

4 Report of the Massachusetts Coastal Erosion Commission, December 2015

Several recent storms have accelerated erosion on the
outer ocean beaches and contributed to overwash and
loss of dunes at Duck Harbor.

Figure 2.1 | Overwash of Dunes at Duck Harbor

S https:/ /www.mass.gov/service-details/massachusetts-shoreline-change-project



Shoretine Change, Town of Wellleet - East
1t e B MR e PO R e Shorsline Change, Town of Welileet - West
0k o B MORHICE o MO 003 e bany.

Figure 2.2 | Historic:shoreline change along the coast of
Wellfleet. Map was created using data from the Massachusetts
Ocean Resource Information System

Figure 2.3| Historic shoreline change along the coast of
Wellfleet. Map was created using data from the Massachusetts
Ocean Resource Information System.



Shoreline Change, Town of Wellfieet - South Center

ek Wit e MORIUCTM e MK v 58 e 3009

Figure 2.4 | Historic shoreline change along the coast of
Wellfleet. Map was created using data from the Massachusetts
Ocean Resource Information System

Previous Occurrences and Extent

Coastal erosion is measured as the horizontal
displacement of a shoreline over a specific time period,
measured in units of feet or meters per year. Shoreline
change can be monitored over short-term and long-term
time scales. Monitoring on a relatively short period of
record may not reflect actual conditions and can
misrepresent long-term erosion rates, but long-term
patterns of coastal erosion are difficult to detect because
of substantial, rapid changes in coastlines over days or
weeks from storms and natural tidal processes.

The Massachusetts Coastal Erosion Commission’s 2015
Report states the average shoreline change rates for
Wellfleet - for the entire town, the Cape Cod Bay, and the
Outer Cape Coast - where positive values indicate
accretion and negative values indicate erosion, as follows:

Entire Town:
e Short-Term Rate: -2.3 & 3.2 ft/year
e Long-Term Rate:-1.6 £ 1.8 ft/year
Cape Cod Bay Shoreline:
e Short-Term Rate: -2.0 * 3.6 ft/year
e Long-Term Rate: -1.2 + 2.0 ft/year
Atlantic Ocean Shoreline:
¢ Short-Term Rate: -3.1 £ 1.7 ft/year
s Long-Term Rate:-2.8 + 0.3 ft/year

it is important to note that this data represents averages
for shoreline change throughout Wellfleet, and that there



might be areas within town with greater or lesser erosion
and accretion rates. In recent years, for example,
locations along the Atlantic shore eroded more than the
average yearly short term rate.

Figure 2.5 | Cahoon Hollow parking lot and dune erosion.

Impact

While erosion is a natural process, it causes damage to
coastal property and related infrastructure—particularly
when development is sited close to the shoreline on

% Report of the Massachusetts Coastal Erosion Commission,
December 2015

WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

unstable ground or low-lying areas®. Below is a list of
possible damages that could result from shoreline change:

People: public safety is jeopardized when buildings
collapse or water supplies are contaminated; erosion can
cause roadways to collapse which would reduce the
response time of emergency vehicles

Infrastructure: erosion can expose septic systems and
sewer pipes, risking contamination of shellfish beds and
other resources; accreting sand can block storm water
pipes, causing urban drainage issues.

Buildings: erosion reduces the embedment of
foundations in the soil, causing shallow foundations to
collapse and making buildings on foundations more
susceptible to settlement, lateral movement or
overturning; once a building moves or is overturned,
construction materials and other debris can be swept out
to sea; seawalls and other hard structures open downdrift
property owners to similar or greater losses

Economy: if businesses are affected by coastal erosion,
there could be loss of business function; damage to
inventory; relocation costs; wage |oss.

Natural Systems: where engineered structures are used
to stabilize shorelines, the natural process of erosion is
altered, changing the amount of sediment available and
erosion rates at adjacent areas; the town's natural
ecosystem attractions—beaches, dunes, barrier beaches,



WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

salt marshes and estuaries—would also be threatened
and could slowly disappear as sand sources that

supply and sustain them are eliminated; under conditions
of reduced sediment supply, the ability of coastal
landforms to provide storm damage and flooding
protection would be diminished, increasing the
vulnerability of infrastructure and development.

Transportation: roadways can become damaged due to
shoreline recession

The Planning Team determined that it is HIGHLY LIKELY
that shoreline change will impact the planning area. High
probability was defined based on the frequency of
occurrence:

« Unlikely: less than a 1% probability over the next
100 years

» Possible: 1-10% probability in the next year or at
least one chance in the next 100 years

o Likely: 10-100% probability in the next year or at
least one chance in the next 10 years

o Highly Likely: near 100% probability in the next
year

The Team used the 2016 Wellfleet Hazard Mitigation Plan,
data from the Shoreline Change Project, and local
knowledge to make this probability determination.

7 FEMA Dam Safety Fact Sheet https://www.fema.gov/sites/default/files/2020-
08/damsafety_fs1.pdf

(Dam) Culvert Failure

Overview

A dam is an artificial barrier that can impound water,
wastewater, or any liquid-borne material for the purpose
of storage or control of water.” Dam failure is a
catastrophic type of failure characterized by a sudden,
rapid and uncontrolled release of impounded water.2A
culvert is a structural opening under a roadway that allows
water to pass from one side of a roadway to the other.®

Wellfleet has no dams but has several culverts and one
dike that could act like dams during flooding events. This
section focuses on the impacts of culvert failure.

8 Ihid.
? Massachusetts Highway Department: Project Development and Design Guide 2006



Water flowing under a road typically comes from two
sources - streams and road runoff - and these water
resources require different types of culverts:'®

A stream crossing culvert is located where the roadway
crosses over a stream channel and the culvert allows
water to pass downstream.

A runoff management culvert is a strategically placed
culvert to manage roadway runoff along, under and away
from the roadway. These culverts are used to transport
upland runoff that accumulates in ditches to the lower
side of the roadway for disposal.

Culverts are typically made of concrete, steel or aluminum
and can have various cross-sectional shapes, (i.e. oval,
circular, arched or rectangular). The size of the culvert
opening is calculated using location-specific data on the
amount of precipitation, snow accumuiation and the
probability of hurricanes impacting the area. The primary
function of a culvert is to prevent flooding during normal
and extreme weather conditions and provide proper road
and highway drainage.

When culvert failure occurs, it can be catastrophic.
Culverts may fail for several reasons, including but not
limited to:"

Buildup of flood waters on the upstream side of the
culvert that exceed the capacity of the culvert (video of a

10 Failing culverts: Structural problems and economic considerations, Tenbusch, Inc,
June 2013,

WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

culvert failure in Maine, see: https://
www.youtube.com/watch?v=NTbhvHNA1Vc)

The pipe inside the culvert becomes occluded because of
debris or improper maintenance.

The pipe inside the culvert loses its structural integrity and
begins to cave in.

The culvert and road are washed out during a heavy rain
event or from snowmelt runoff,

The soil/material around the culvert pipe begins to move.
Without support from such material, the culvert will
buckle or sag and the culvert will collapse.

https://www.tenbusch.com/underground _equipment/files/FailingCulvertsStructural
AndEconomicConsiderations.pdf

1 Ibid.




WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

Hazard Location Previous Occurrences and Extent m

Eight culverts and one dike are located in Wellfleet Wellfleet's culverts have no history of failure.

(locations shown in Figure 2.6). Since the town has not experienced dam or culvert failure,

the following description of the extent of culvert failure
comes from events that occurred in Vermont during
Tropical Storm Irene.'? In August 2011, Tropical Storm
Irene brought heavy precipitation to New England and
eastern New York. Vermont incurred significant damages
to state and local infrastructure, including:

Over 200 state road segments and 200 state-owned
bridges were damaged

2,000 local road segments, 277 locally- owned bridges and
nearly 1,000 locally- owned culverts were damaged

Large river and stream bank failures delivered a
tremendous amount of woody debris downstream and
plugged bridges, causing streams to overtop the bridge
and wash out the bridge approach

Culverts became plugged with debris and redirected a
large volume of water over areas of towns. In Rochester,
NH water was redirected onto cemetery grounds,
unearthing caskets and scattering human remains
throughout the downtown area.

Figure 2.6 | Map of Wellfleet showing the locations of culverts
and one dike.

12 Gillespie ¢t al., 2014, Flood effects on road-stream crossing infrastructure: economic
and ecological benefits of stream simulation designs, Fisheries, volume 39 (2), page 62
-76



Impact

Below is a list of additional possible impacts from culvert
failure:

People: community isolation from impassable roads,
often leaving residents without power and water.

Infrastructure: power outages from disruption of
underground utilities; no water due to disruption of pipes
near the failed culvert; the high cost of relief and recovery
may adversely affect investment in infrastructure or other
development activities.

Economy: impacted traffic flow and impassable roads
may prevent people from returning to work and tourists
from visiting the area; expensive infrastructure repairs,
residents will bear the extra cost of circumventing
damaged roads.

Natural Systems: bank erosion, debris in waterways and
other natural systems.

Transportation: impaired traffic flow and impassable
roads.

Probability

The Planning Team determined that it is POSSIBLE that a
culvert failure will impact the planning area. This
determination was defined based on the frequency of
occurrence:

o Unlikely: less than a 1% probability over the next
100 years

WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

e Possible: 1-10% probability in the next year or at
least one chance in the next 100 years

e Likely: 10-100% probability in the next year or at
least one chance in the next 10 years

e Highly Likely: near 100% probability in the next
year

Culvert age was used to make this probability
determination.




WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

Earthquake

Overview

An earthquake is movement or trembling of the ground
produced by a sudden displacement of rock in the Earth’s
crust. Scientists have formulated several theories about
the causes of earthquakes, but the theory of plate
tectonics is commonly used to explain much of the
earthquake activity in the world."

The theory of plate tectonics pastulates that, at one point,
the earth was covered by a single crust, or plate, with no
oceans. Over time, this plate started to split and drift into
separate plates of land or ocean crusts. The earth’s
surface now looks much like a spherical jigsaw puzzle; all
the plates fit together. The plates over the earth are in
constant slow motion. They generally move in one of three
ways—they collide, spread, or slide. Any one of these plate
movements can cause an earthquake. Maps of
earthquake activity throughout the world show that
earthquakes most frequently occur at the boundaries of
plates.

Plate movement or other forces create tremendous stress
on rocks that make up the earth’s outer shell. When rock
is strained beyond its limit, it will fracture, and the rock
mass on either side will move. This fracture is called a
fault. Not all faults will cause earthquakes, but if there is a
sudden rupture, energy is released that creates the

13 Earthquake Causes and Characteristics, FEMA Emergency Management Institute
Training Guide, https://training.fema.gov/emiweb/is/isBa/is8a-unit3. pdf

motions associated with an earthquake. Once the sudden
rupture occurs, the earth begins to shake. This shaking is
caused by a series of waves known as seismic waves
moving from the center of the earthquake outward to
surrounding areas. Two scales are frequently used to
measure earthquakes:

THE MODIFIED MERCALLI INTENSITY SCALE measures
the intensity or impact of an earthquake on people and
the built environment. It is determined by trained
observers who look at the damage to the built
environment and the earth (landslides, etc.), and at the
reaction of people to the event (Table 2.2).

THE RICHTER SCALE measures the maximum recorded
amplitude of a seismic wave. This measurement quantifies
the ground motion and the energy released at the source
of an earthquake, which is referred to as its magnitude.

Richter Magnitude of 3.5 -5.4: often felt but rarely causes
damage

Richter Magnitude of 5.5 - 6.0: slight damage to well-
designed buildings, major damage to poorly constructed
buildings

Richter Magnitude of 6.1 - 6.9: destructive

Richter Magnitude of 7.0 - 7.9: major earthquake, causes
serious damage over large areas



WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

Richter Magnitude of 8.0 or higher: named Great utilize different data sets; the Richter Scale describes an
Earthquakes, cause serious damage over extremely large earthquake's magnitude while the Modified Mercalli
areas Intensity Scale describes the earthquake’s impact on

Both the Modified Mercalli Intensity Scale and Richter people and structures.

Scale are used to describe earthquakes because they

Table 2.2 | Modified Mercalli Scale, from Earthquake Causes and Characteristics, Chapter 3 of Emergency Management Institute Training
Guide

Level Description

1 Not felt except by a very few under especially favorable circumstances.

n Felt only by a few persons at rest, especially on upper floors of buildings. Delicately suspended objects may swing.

Felt quite noticeably indoors, especially on upper of buildings, but many people do not recognize it as an

m
earthquake. Standing motor cars may rock slightly. Vibration like passing of truck. Duration estimated.

During the day felt indoors by many, outdoors by few. At night some awakened. Dishes, windows, doors disturbed;
walls make cracking sound. Sensation like heavy truck striking building. Standing motor cars rocked noticeably.

Felt by nearly everyone, many awakened. Some dishes, windows, etc., broken; a few instances of cracked plaster;
v unstable objects overturned. Disturbances of trees, poles, and other tall objects sometimes noticed. Pendulum
clocks may stop.

Felt by all, many frightened and run indoors. Some heavy furniture moves; a few instances of fallen plaster or

o damaged chimneys. Damage slight.

Everybody runs outdoors. Damage negligible in buildings of good design and construction; slight to moderate in
vil well-built ordinary structures; considerable in poorly built or badly designed structures; some chimneys broken.
Noticed by persons driving motor cars.



WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

Level Description

Vil

X1

Xl

Damage slight in specially designed structures; considerable in ordinary substantial buildings, with partial collapse;
great in poorly built structures, Pane! walls thrown out of frame structures. Fall of chimneys, factory stacks,
columns, monuments, walls. Heavy furniture overturned. Sand and mud ejected in small amounts. Changes in well
water. Persons driving motor cars disturbed.

Damage considerable in specially designed structures; well-designed frame structures thrown out of plumb; great
in substantial buildings, with partial collapse. Buildings shifted off foundations. Ground cracked conspicuously.
Underground pipes broken.

Some well-built wooden structures destroyed; most masonry and frame structures destroyed with foundations;
ground badly cracked. Rail bent. Landslides considerable from river banks and steep slopes. Shifted sand and mud.
Water splashed (slopped) over banks.

Few, if any, (masonry) structures remain standing. Bridges destroyed. Broad fissures in ground. Underground
pipelines completely out of service. Earth slumps and land slips in soft ground. Rails bent greatly.

Damage total. Practically all works of construction are damaged greatly or destroyed. Waves seen of ground
surface. Lines of sight and level are distorted. Objects are thrown into the air.

Table 2.2 | Modified Mercalii Scale, from Earthquake Causes and Characteristics, Chapter 3 of Emergency Management Institute Training

Guide



Bic,
B2a,c

Hazard Location

The greatest earthquake threat in the United States is
along tectonic plate boundaries and seismic fault lines in
the central and western states. The eastern United States
does experience earthquakes, but they are less frequent
and less intense than those in the central and western U.S.
Figure 2.7 shows relative long term seismic risk for the
United States. ™

Previous Occurrences and Extent

Although the zone of greatest seismic activity in the U.S. is
along the Pacific Coast in Alaska and California, an average
of six earthquakes a year are felt in the New England area.
Historically, only 35 earthquakes in New England were
considered significant.'® Most of Massachusetts’
earthquakes have been small in magnitude and caused
little damage; however, 104 earthquakes between 1924
and 2012 were measured at a magnitude of 4.5 or greater
on the Richter scale. Due to the geologic composition and
rock structure in the Northeast seismic shaking for many
of these larger earthquakes was felt throughout New
England.

1 Jmage from USGS earthquakes hazards website: https://www.usgs.gov/natural-
hazards/earthquake-hazards/hazards

5 Massachusetts State Hazard and Climate Adaptation Plan 2018

WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

Below is a list of earthquakes that affected eastern
Massachusetts:'®

August 8, 1847: no data available on extent of hazard

November 27, 1852: no data available on extent of
hazard

December 10, 1854: no data available on extent of hazard

September 21, 1876: no data available on extent of
hazard

May 12, 1880: no data available on extent of hazard
January 21, 1903: no data available on extent of hazard
April 24, 1903: no data available on extent of hazard
October 15, 1907: no data available on extent of hazard

January 7, 1925: earthquake occurred off of Cape Ann
and the reported felt area extended from Providence, RI
to Kennebunk, ME

April 24, 1925: no data available on extent of hazard
January 28, 1940: no data available on extent of hazard

16 Massachusetts State Hazard Plan, 2013 and Weston Observatory website
hitps://bcesp.org/



WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

October 16, 1963: Intensity VI, caused plaster to fall in a
house, a wall cracked, stones fell from a building
foundation, dishes were broken, windows cracked

October 30, 1963: no data available on extent of hazard

October 24, 1965: slight damage to homes on Nantucket,
house timbers creaked, doors, windows and dishes rattled

December 30, 2012: Magnitude 1.2 earthquake about 7
miles south of Gardner, MA. No extent data available.

April 2012: a collection of 12 or more earthquakes
occurred off of the New England coast about 250 miles
east of Boston. The largest of these earthquakes
measured a magnitude of 4.4 on the Richter Scale. This
collection of earthquakes was of particular concern
because of the major earthquake on the continental shelf
further north in 1929 that produced a deadly and
damaging tsunami in Nova Scotia.

December 22, 2018: a small earthquake measured at 2.0
on the Richter scale occurred in the vicinity of Templeton
and Gardner, Massachusetts.

No earthquake declared disasters have been declared for
Massachusetts. No data is available on the history of
earthquakes in Wellfleet.

Impact

Earthquakes can affect hundreds of thousands of square
miles, cause damage to property, result in loss of life and
injury and disrupt the social and economic functioning of
the affected area. Most property damage and earthquake

related deaths are caused by the failure and collapse of
structures during ground shaking.

Earthquakes can also cause large and sometimes
disastrous landslides. Sand dunes, like those in Wellfleet,
are vulnerable to slope failure during an earthquake. This
process, called sand liquefaction, occurs when water-
saturated sands, silts or gravelly soils are shaken so
violently that the individual grains lose contact with one
another and move freely, turning the ground into a liquid.

Probability

Earthquakes cannot be predicted and may occur at any
time of the day and any time of the year. The Planning
Team determined that it is POSSIBLE that an earthquake
will impact TOWN. Probabilities were defined based on
the frequency of occurrence:

» Unlikely: less than a 1% probability over the next
100 years

¢ Possible: 1-10% probability in the next year or at
least one chance in the next 100 years

¢ Likely: 10-100% probability in the next year or at
least one chance in the next 10 years

+ Highly Likely: near 100% probability in the next
year

The Planning Team used the 2016 Welifleet Hazard
Mitigation Plan and historical earthquake data in
Massachusetts to make this probability determination.




WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan [SS

b A USGS Highest hazard
(S N

Lowest hazard

Figure 2.7 | Town of Wellfleet Wildfire Risk map from the Barnstable County Wildfire Preparedness Plan.



WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

Fire: Urban and Wildland

Overview

This portion of the Wellfleet Hazard Mitigation Plan
assesses two types of fire events: urban fires and
wildfires.

Urban fires occur when buildings and structures catch fire,
with potential it to spread to adjoining structures. Urban
fires are more common in areas where residences and
businesses are clustered closely together, thereby
increasing the possibility of rapid spread to nearby
structures. Urban fires occur more frequently than
wildfires and often result from everyday activities such as
cooking, smoking, and appliance malfunction.

Wildfires are defined as any non-structural fire that occurs
in a vegetative wildland including grass, shrub, leaf litter or
forested area.'” Wildfires often begin undetected and
spread when brush, trees and homes are ignited. In
Massachusetts, wildfires are typically caused by lightning,
human activity (i.e. smoking, unattended campfires) or
prescribed burns (intentional, controlled burns supervised
by experienced fire personnel).'®

In 2012, the Cape Cod Cooperative Extension and other
regional partners developed the Barnstable County
Wildfire Preparedness Plan. The plan notes that the region
has a history of wildfires and as a result, most of Cape Cod
has fire-adapted ecosystems that are prone to burning.

7 Massachusetts State Hazard and Climate Adaptation Plan 2018

Pitch pine barrens are the dominant vegetative
community in the region, and these ecosystems contain
highly flammable plant species that are adapted to survive
or regenerate post fire.

Many Cape residents live in the Wildland Urban Interface
(WUI), which is defined as the line or area where
structures and other development meet with
undeveloped wildland or vegetative fuel. Building in the
WUI is dangerous because wildfires can move to
surrounding developments and place homes and other
buildings at risk for ignition.

Hazard Location

The Barnstable County Wildfire Preparedness Plan
identifies three sites in Wellfleet that are at risk to wildland
fires (See Figure 2.7)

One area (labelled 1" on the map) is on the bay side,
encompassing primarily National Seashore land between
the Truro town line and Great Island /Jeremy Point.
Seashore woodlands on the ocean side from Newcomb
Hollow to the Eastham town line are also at high risk, as is
land on the bayside between Blackfish Creek and
Lieutenant’s Island (labelled #2 and # 3, respectively on
the map).

*® Jbid.



WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

Previous Occurrences and Extent « March 11, 2019 - Two-alarm fire on Lieutenant’s
R . . Island destroyed a house and resulted in two
o Notable wildland fires on the Outer Cape include the fatalities ¥

following:

« April 19, 20, 21, 1927: 2,500 acres burned in Truro.
(Barnstable Patriot, April 28, 1927)

TOWN OF WELLFLEET WILDFIRE RISK MAP

¢ June 1949: 75 acres or more of brush and
woodland burned after a fire started at the Truro
Town Dump. Firefighters from Truro, Wellfleet,
Brewster and Orleans helped bring it under
control. (Provincetown Banner, June 16, 1949)

s Most wildland fires in Wellfleet under two acres
and contained by the Wellfleet Fire Department.

» Recent notable urban fires in Wellfleet include the
following:

» July 2, 2004, fireworks exploded prematurely,
destroying a truck and starting a brush fire but no
one was injured.

o June 12, 2016: fully involved structural fire on
Lieutenant Island. Mutual aid was provided.
Estimated damage over $350,000.

s February 19, 2019: structure fire in Wellfleet began
around 11 PM at 2318 Route 6 EZ-Doze-It
Excavating. Several explosions were reported. The .
fire quickly escalated to three alarms requiring
mutual aid including tankers from across much of
the Cape.

b 85 3 2

Aot Coa oo Ooesd Promcaos
 Dctagcr

o et Do 953
Nr

W e wanct B b Dy GO

Figure 2.8 | Town of Wellfleet Wildfire Risk map from the
Barnstable County Wildfire Preparedness Plan.



WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

activities come to a standstill, often resulting in

ﬂ. dislocation and dysfunction of normal business

‘mpact activities; when roadways are disrupted, it impacts
Destruction caused by urban fires and wildfires depends the customer base for small businesses and leads
on the following factors: to slow recovery times; the cost of relief and

. recovery may adversely affect investment in
* sizeofthefire infrastructure or other development activities

» landscape » Natural Systems: extensive acreage can burn,

e amount of fuel (i.e. vegetation and structures) in damaging watersheds and critical natural areas;
the path of the fire flash flooding and landslides can result from fire
damage to the surrounding landscape. Wildfires
strip slopes of vegetation exposing them to greater
» response time of fire personnel runoff and erosion; this weakens soils and causes
failure on slopes. When fires burn hot and for long
duration, the soil bakes and becomes
impermeable, increasing runoff and the risk of
Below is a list of possible damages from urban and flooding .
wildiand fires.

e direction and intensity of the wind

» number of firefighters able to respond to the fire

e access to the fire once it starts

« Transportation: transportation may be

» People: death or injury to people and animals; temporarily disrupted.
smoke can cause health issues for people, even for .
those far away from the fire Probability

« Infrastructure: gas, power and communications The Planning Team determined that it is LIKELY that an
may be disrupted; flying embers can set fire to urban fire will impact Wellfleet and LIKELY that a wildfire
buildings more than one mile away from the initial will impact the planning area. Probabilities were defined
fire based on the frequency of occurrence:

o Buildings: structures can be damaged or ¢ Unlikely: less than a 1% probability over the next
destroyed, multiple buildings can burn 100 years

» Economy: indirect economic losses in reduced e Possible: 1-10% probability in the next year or at
tourism; as communication and infrastructure least one chance in the next 100 years

systems are damaged and disrupted, economic



o Likely: 10-100% probability in the next year or at
least one chance in the next 10 years

¢ Highly Likely: near 100% probability in the next
year

The Planning Team used references from the 2016 hazard
plan, the 2012 Barnstable County Wildfire Preparedness
Plan and local knowledge of the town to make this
probability determination.

% National Flood Insurance Program, Floodplain Requirements, FEMA 480.

WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

Flood

Overview

Flooding can be caused by hurricanes, nor'easters, heavy
rainstorms, and thunderstorms. Sea-level rise also
exacerbates flooding in vulnerable areas. Wellfleet
experiences both inland flooding and coastal flooding, as
described below.

Inland flooding occurs when the volume of water on land
due to heavy precipitation exceeds the capacity of natural
and built drainage system. A severe storm that generates
much rainfall in a short time causes flash flooding

Coastal flooding occurs when persistent high wind and
changes in air pressure during a hurricane or nor'easter
push water towards the shore. This action causes storm
surge which raises the level of the water by several feet.
Waves can be highly destructive as they move inland,
battering structures in its path The magnitude of a flood
varies with the tides; storm surge that occurs during high
tide will flood larger areas than if the same surge occurred
at low tide."

Urban drainage flooding occurs in flat areas where runoff
or rain collects and cannot drain out. Drainage systems
are composed of ditches, storm sewers, retention ponds
and other infrastructure that store runoff and carries it
into a receiving stream, lake, or ocean. When most of



WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

these systems were built, they were designed to handle
the amount of water expected during a 10-year storm

event. Larger storms overload the system and result in
back-ups, forming temporary ponds. This water will
remain in an area until the blockage is cleared or the
water is pumped out; or it infiltrates into the soil, or

evaporates.?

Figure 2.9 | Coastal Flooding during winter 2018 nor'easter

FEMA Flood Hazard Areas Wellfieet

S
P Suaar ess 1YA 2P
It e, Vi, omd (e L0 o EREEN TR TR

e Bamaabe Coite 32 ) n AP

Figure 2.10 | FEMA Flood Hazard Area Map

2 Ipid.



WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

Hazard Location Previous Occurrences and Extent =
Flooding in Wellfleet is also the result of coastal storms, Below is a list of recent rain, flooding and coastal flooding
nor'easters, heavy rains, tropical storms, and hurricanes. events in Wellfleet. Data was collected from NOAA's

Figure 2.10 shows the 2019 FEMA Flood Insurance Rate National Climatic Data Center and local newspapers. It is

Map (FIRM) for Wellfleet. This map depicts areas of not meant to be an exhaustive list of events but rather a

Wellfleet in V and A zones and the 2% annual flood areas. representation of significant flooding occurrences.

Table 2.3 | Recent Flooding Event History

flacgrd Date Source Comments on Impact
Type
Storm June 22, An unusually strong coastal storm moved southeast of Nantucket, resulting in
2009 coastal flooding and strong winds across portions of coastal Massachusetts.
Minor coastal flooding occurred in Wellfleet, where a car got stuck in water
moving over Lieutenant Island Road.
Coastal March 7, Minor coastal flooding occurred in Eastham, Wellfleet, Brewster, and Chatham.
Flooding 2013
Coastal January 3, Moderate coastal flooding impacted portions of Cape Cod. In Wellfleet, Summit
Flooding 2014 Avenue and Old Wharf Road were impassable.
Storm January 4, National Climatic caused significant coastal flooding at high tide. Storm surge and astronomical
2018 Data Center high tide.
Storm March 2-3, National Climatic caused extensive coastal flooding in Wellfleet and the region. This storm
2018 Data Center resulted in a Federal Disaster Declaration.
Storm March 7, National Climatic High winds, power outages and coastal flooding.
2018 Data Center
Storm March 13, National Climatic High winds and heavy wet snow caused extensive power outages and coastal
2018 Data Center flooding. This storm resulted Federal Disaster Declaration for much of

Massachusetts but not Barnstable County.



WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

m Impact

Below is a list of the possible impacts for a flooding event
in Wellfleet:

People: people can be knocked down or washed off their
feet by floodwaters; people can be injured or die from
being trapped in their cars during a flood event; people
can be displaced from their homes because of post-flood
safety and health hazards; mold, mildew and bacteria can
cause health issues; flooding can cause drinking water
contamination.

Infrastructure: flooding can leave large amount of debris
and sediment on and around town infrastructure; floods
can damage gas lines, utility poles, water infrastructure,
wastewater treatment plants; and cause sewage spills.
Buildings: moving water can damage the walls of
buildings; floodwater velocity can undermine foundations.
Floodwaters pick up anything that floats, including logs,
lumber, propane tanks and vehicles - which can damage
buildings; buildings can float off foundations if not
anchored properly.

Economy: as communication and infrastructure systems
are damaged and disrupted, economic activities come to a
standstill, often resulting in dislocation and dysfunction of
normal business activities; roadways disruptions affect the
customer base and slow recovery times for small
businesses; the cost of relief and recovery may adversely
affect investment in infrastructure or other development
activities; losses may decrease land value in floodplains

Probobi/ity e

The Planning Team determined that it is HIGHLY LIKELY
flooding will impact the planning area. High probability
was defined based on the frequency of occurrence:

s Unlikely: less than a 1% probability over the next
100 years

e Possible: 1-10% probability in the next year or at
least one chance in the next 100 years

¢ Likely: 10-100% probability in the next year or at
least one chance in the next 10 years

¢ Highly Likely: near 100% probability in the next
year

The Planning Team used the history of hurricanes, tropical
storms, nor'easters, and flooding in Wellfleet to make this
probability designation.



Hurricanes and Tropical Storms

Overview

A tropical cyclone is a rotating, organized system of clouds
and thunderstorms that originates over tropical or
subtropical waters.?' Hurricane season in the Atlantic
Basin runs from June 1 to November 30; peak activity is in
early to mid-September.??

Four types of tropical cyclones can occur in the Atlantic
Basin:

Tropical Depression: a tropical cyclone with maximum
sustained winds of 38 mph or less

Tropical Storm: a tropical cyclone with maximum
sustained winds of 39 to 73 mph

Hurricane: a tropical cyclone with maximum sustained
winds of 74 mph or higher

Major Hurricane: a tropical cyclone with maximum
sustained winds of 111 winds or higher, corresponding to
a Category 3, 4, or 5 on the Saffir- Simpson Hurricane
Wind Scale

Two data sets are used to classify tropical cyclones:

Saffir Simpson Hurricane Wind Scale is a 1 to 5 rating
based on a hurricane’s sustained wind speed.?3 This scale

21 Natijonal Hurricane Center Qutreach and Education, https://www.nhc.noaa gov/climo/

22 National Hurricane Center Outreach and Education http://www.srh.noaa.
gov/jetstream/tropics/tc_hasins.him

WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

estimates potential property damage (Table 2.4).
Hurricanes reaching Category 3 and higher are considered
major hurricanes because of their potential for significant
loss of life and damage. Category 1 and 2 storms are still
dangerous, however, and require preventative measures.

Amount and location of storm surge. Storm surge is
water that is pushed toward the shore by the force of the
winds swirling around the storm.2* This advancing surge
combines with the normal tides to create the hurricane
storm tide, which can increase average water levels 15
feet (4.5 m) or more. In addition, wind-driven waves are
superimposed on the storm tide. The rise in water level
can cause severe flooding in coastal areas, particularly
when the storm tide coincides with the normal high tides
(Figure 2.11).

23 http://www.nhc.noaa.gov/aboutsshws.ph

2 National Weather Service Jetstream - Online School for Weather, Tropical Weather,
Tropical Hazards www.srh.noaa.gov/jetstream/tropics/tc_hazards. htm



WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

P——————— isfit S'—Jfge

Mean sea level

NOAA/The COMET Program

Figure 2.11 | Schematic of the generic differences between mean sea level, normal high tide, storm surge and storm tide. This graphic is
for educational purposes only. The numbers shown (2, 15, 17 feet) are not specific to Wellfleet.



WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

The US Army Corps of Engineers New England Division, in
a cooperation with FEMA, prepared Sea, Lake and Overland
i Surge from Hurricanes (SLOSH) inundation maps. %
SLOSH mapping represents potential flooding from worst-
case combinations of hurricane direction, forward speed,
landfall point, and high astronomical tide. It does not
include riverine flooding caused by hurricane surge or
inland freshwater flooding. The model, developed by the
National Weather Service to forecast surges that occur
from wind and pressure forces of hurricanes, considers
\ only storm surge height and does not consider the effects
\ of waves. The mapping was developed for New England
coastal communities using the computer model, Long
\ Island Sound bathymetry, and New England coastline
topography. The resulting inundation areas are grouped
into Category 1 and 2, Category 3, and Category 4. The
hurricane category refers to the Saffir-Simpson Hurricane

\ Intensity Scale. The Army Corps of Engineers considered
\ the highest wind speed for each category, the highest
Storm Surge (SLOSH) _ ——\ surge level, combined with worst-case forward motion
- Lomaiadngin - and developed a model to depict areas that would be
Py inundated under those combined conditions.
Storm Surge; SLOSH Wellfleet

b,
Nt army Lo o brgmenn. 215
o e e o 0 i, FIEUR Dy P

Figure 2.12 | FEMA Flood Hazard Area Map




WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

Table 2.4 | Saffir-Simpson Hurricane Wind Scale (National Hurricane Center)

Category s\l/"ls::; g Types of Damage Due to Hurricane Winds
Very dangerous winds will produce some damage: Well-constructed frame homes
74-95 mph could have damage to roof, shingles, vinyl siding and gutters. Large branches of
1 64-82 kt trees will snap and shallowly rooted trees may be toppled. Extensive damage to
119-153 km/h power lines and poles likely will result in power outages that could last a few to
several days.
96-110 moh Extremely dangerous winds will cause extensive damage: Weli-constructed frame
2 83.95 kt P homes could sustain major roof and siding damage. Many shallowly rooted trees
will be snapped or uprooted and block numerous roads. Near-total power loss is
154-177 km/h .
expected with outages that could last from several days to weeks.
111-129 moh Devastating damage will occur: Well-built framed homes may incur major damage
3 96-112 kt P or removal of roof decking and gable ends. Many trees will be snapped or
(major) uprooted, blocking numerous roads. Electricity and water will be unavailable for
178-208 km/h
several days to weeks after the storm passes.
Catastrophic damage will occur: Well-built framed homes can sustain severe
4 130-156 mph damage with loss of most of the roof structure and/or some exterior walls. Most
fmajor) 113-136 kt trees will be snapped or uprooted and power poles downed, Fallen trees and
209-251 km/h power poles will isolate residential areas. Power outages will last weeks to possibly
months. Most of the area will be uninhabitable for weeks or months.
157 mph or higher Catastrophicldamage will oc_cur: A high percentage of framed homes will be .
5 137 kt or higher destroyed, with total roof failure and wall collapse. Fallen trees and power poles will
(major) 252 km/h ofhigher isolate residential areas. Power outages will last for weeks to possibly months. Most

of the area will be uninhabitable for weeks or months.



Bic,
B2a,c

Hazard Location

The entire planning area is vulnerable to tropical cyclones.
Coastal areas are extremely susceptible to damage
because of wind and storm surge. Inland areas can also be
affected by flooding, strong wind and heavy rain
associated with tropical cyclones. Figure 2.12 shows the
predicted storm surge in the planning area for the
Category 1-4 storms

WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

Previous Occurrences and Extent

The National Hurricane Center data show a strong history
of hurricanes affecting the Atlantic Coast of the United
States, including Barnstable County.

Table 2.5 identifies notable cyclones that affected
Barnstable County. Data is from the FEMA disaster
declaration website, the MA State Hazard Plan, and
National Climate Data Center.



WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan CHADTER & MitUral Sippanus

Cyclones and Tropical Storms for Barnstable County from 1954 - 2022

Table 2.5| Notable tropical storms and hurricanes for Barnstable County.

-Si n X . Declarati
el .SI.mp?o Incident Period qcauen Reference
Classification Date

Storm Name

National Climatic Data

Tropical Storm Henri 8/20/22
Center

National Climatic Data

Tropical Storm Elsa 7/9/2021
Center

Barnstable County

Tropical Storm Arthur TS July 4,2014 Regional Emergency
Planning Committee

October 27 to

DR-4097 Tropical Storm Sandy TS
November 8, 2012

August 26 to September

DR-4028 Tropical Storm Irene Category 2 52011



CHAPTEN & Natura: +azas WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

Saflr-_Sl'mpfson Incident Period Desiaton Reference
Classification Date

Number Storm Name

DR-914 Hurricane Bob Category 3 August 19, 1991

September 12 to
Hurricane Donna Category 5 Not declared
September 13, 1960

Hurricane Edna Category 3 September 11, 1954 Not declared

1938 Hurricane Category 4 September 1944 Not declared



WELLFLEET | Hazard Mit'gation Plan

Impact

kst CATEGORY 1:

74-95 mph 1-minute sustained winds
Impact to People/Pets/Livestock:

e Could result in injury or death from flying or falling
debris.

¢ Impact to Frame Homes:

s Some poorly constructed frame homes can
experience major damage, involving loss of the
roof covering, damage to gable ends, removal of
porch coverings and awnings.

e Unprotected windows may break if struck by flying
debris.

» Masonry chimneys can be toppled.

s Well-constructed frame homes could have damage
to roof shingles, vinyl siding, soffit panels and
gutters.

» Failure of aluminum, screened-in, swimming pool
enclosures can occur.

Impact to Apartments, Shopping Centers, and
Industrial Buildings

» Some apartment building and shopping center roof
coverings could be partially removed.

¢ Industrial buildings can lose roofing and siding
especially from windward corners, rakes and eaves.

e Failures to overhead doors and unprotected
windows will be common.

Impacts to Signage, Fences and Canopies:

= Occasional damage to commercial signage, fences
and canopies will occur.

Impacts to Trees:

e Large branches will snap.

¢ Shallow-rooted trees will be toppled.
Impacts to Power and Water Infrastructure:

e Extensive damage to power lines and poles will
likely result in power outages that could last a few
to several days.

CATEGORY 2:
96-110 mph 1-minute sustained wind
Impact to People/Pets/Livestock:

» Substantial risk of injury or death due to flying or
falling debris is likely.

Impact to Frame Homes:

« Poorly constructed frame homes are likely to lose
their roof structures, especially if they are not
anchored properly.

e Unprotected windows have a high probability of
breaking from flying debris.

e Well-constructed frame homes could sustain major
roof and siding damage.



Failure of aluminum, screened-in, swimming pool
enclosures will be common.

Impact to Apartments, Shopping Centers, and
Industrial Buildings

A substantial percentage of apartment buildings
and industrial buildings will have roof and siding
damage.

Unreinforced masonry walls can collapse.
Impacts to Signage, Fences and Canopies:

Commercial signage, fences, and canopies will be
damaged and often destroyed.

Impacts to Trees:

Many shallow-rooted trees will be snapped or
uprooted.

Roads will be blocked by toppled trees.

impacts to Power and Water Infrastructure:

Near total power loss is expected with outages that
could last from several days to weeks.

Potable water could become scarce as filtration
systems begin to fail.

WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

CATEGORY 3:
111-129 mph 1-minute sustained wind

Impact to People/Pets/Livestock:

Flying and falling debris creates a high risk of injury
or death.

Impact to Frame Homes:

Poorly constructed frame homes can be destroyed
by loss of the roof and exterior walls.

Unprotected windows will be broken by flying
debris.

Well-built frame homes can experience major
damage from the removal of roof decking and
gable ends.

A high percentage of apartment and industrial
buildings will experience damage to roof coverings
and siding.

Isolated structural damage to wood or steel
framing can occur.

Complete failure of older metal buildings is
possible.

Older unreinforced masonry buildings can collapse.

Impacts to Signage, Fences and Canopies:

Most commercial signage, fences, and canopies will
be destroyed.

Impacts to Trees:

Many trees will snap or become uprooted.



WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

« Numerous roads will be blocked.
Impacts to Power and Water Infrastructure:

e Electricity and water will be unavailable for several
days to a few weeks after the storm passes

CATEGORY 4:
130-156 mph 1-minute sustained wind

Impact to People/Pets/Livestock:

» Very high risk of injury or death due to flying and
falling debris.

Impact to Frame Homes:

e Poorly constructed homes can sustain complete
collapse of all walls as well as the loss of the roof
structure.

e Well-built homes also can sustain severe damage
with loss of most of the roof structure and/or some
exterior walls.

s Extensive damage to roof coverings, windows, and
doors will occur. Large amounts of wind-borne
debris will be lofted into the air.

* Wind-borne debris will break most unprotected
windows and penetrate some protected windows.

Impact to Apartments, Shopping Centers, and
Industrial Buildings:
e A high percentage of apartment buildings will
experience structural damage to the top floors.
e Steel frames in older industrial buildings can
collapse.
¢ A high percentage of older unreinforced masonry
buildings collapse would collapse.

e Impacts to Signage, Fences and Canopies:
e Nearly all commercial signage, fences, and
canopies will be destroyed.

Impacts to Trees:

o Most trees will snap or become uprooted.

» Power poles will be downed.

o Numerous roads will be blocked.

e Fallen trees and power poles will isolate residential
areas.

Impacts to Power and Water Infrastructure:
e Power outages will last for weeks to possibly
months.
e Long term shortages will increase human suffering.
e Most of the area will be uninhabitable for weeks to
months.

CATEGORY 5:
157 mph or higher 1-minute sustained
wind

Impact to People/Pets/Livestock:

e Very high risk of injury or death due to flying and
falling debris even if indoors in mobile or framed
homes.

* Impact to Frame Homes:

s A high percentage of frame homes will be
destroyed, with total roof failure and wall collapse.

« Extensive damage to roof covers, windows, and
doors will occur.

o Large amounts of wind-borne debris will be lofted
into the air.



» Wind-borne debris damage will occur to nearly all
unprotected windows and many protected
windows.

Impact to Apartments, Shopping Centers, and
Industrial Buildings:
« Significant damage to wood roof commercial
buildings will occur due to loss of roof sheathing.
e Complete collapse of many older metal buildings
can occur.
e Most unreinforced masonry walls will fail, which
can lead to building collapse.
+ Ahigh percentage of industrial buildings and low-
rise apartment buildings will be destroyed.

Impacts to Signage, Fences and Canopies:

e Nearly all commercial signage, fences, and
canopies will be destroyed.

Impacts to Trees:
e Alltrees will snap or become uprooted.
» All power poles will be downed.
» Fallen trees and power poles will isolate residential
areas.

Impacts to Power and Water Infrastructure:
e Power outages will last for weeks to possibly
months.
e Long term shortages will increase human suffering.
¢ Most of the area will be uninhabitable for weeks to
months.

WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

Probability En

The Planning Team determined that it is HIGHLY LIKELY
that a hurricane or tropical storm will impact the planning
area. High probability was defined based on the frequency
of occurrence:

e Unlikely: less than a 1% probability over the next
100 years

¢ Possible: 1-10% probability in the next year or at
least one chance in the next 100 years

e Likely: 10-100% probability in the next year or at
least one chance in the next 10 years

» Highly Likely: near 100% probability in the next
year

The Planning Team used the history of tropical cyclones in
Barnstable County and local knowledge to make this
probability designation.



WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

Landslides

Overview

A landslide is a general term used to describe the
downslope movement of soil, rock and organic materials
from of gravity.?®

Most landslides in Massachusetts are caused by a
combination of unfavorable geologic conditions (silty clay
or clay layers contained in glaciomarine, glaciolacustrine,
or thick till deposits), steep slopes, and/or excessive
wetness leading to excess pore pressures in the
subsurface.?” Conditions associated with landslides
include the following:

Water saturation on a slope occurs after intense rainfall,
snow melt, changes in level of groundwater and water
level changes along coasts and banks. Water from a rain
event adds weight to the slope and reduces the strength
of slope materials.

Undercutting of slopes by flooding and wave action
occurs when streams and waves erode the base of slopes,
causing them to over-steepen and eventually collapse.
Areas where this type of failure occurs includes Cape Cod,
Nantucket and Martha'’s Vineyard.

Construction related failures occur during construction
activities such as cut and fill construction for highways and
roads and when vegetation on a slope is removed during

26 The Landslide Handbook - A Guide to Understanding Landslides USGS Circular
1325, 2008,

the construction of buildings. These activities can increase
slope angle and decrease lateral support which can
sometimes lead to landslide.”®

Hazard Location

Landslides occur in every state in the U.S., but the majority
of Massachusetts has a low incidence of landslides, In
Wellfleet, the risk of flooding and loose soils could result
in a landslide in the planning area.

Previous Occurrences and Extent

No federally declared landslide disasters occurred in
Barnstable County between 1954 and 2021 and to date,
no significant landslides have occurred in Wellfleet,

Based on reports from the USGS website, the extent of a
landslide is quantified as the estimated amount of
material in cubic yards that was deposited from a higher
elevation. Since Wellfleet has no history of landslide
occurrence, no data exists on landscape conditions and
extent.

Impact

Below is a list of possible impacts that could result from a
landslide.

27 Massachusetts State Hazard Mitigation and Climate Adaptation Plan, 2018.

8L andslide Loss Reduction: A Guide for State and Local Government Planning, FEMA-
182, 1989



« People: people, cars and homes can become
buried; delays in emergency services; isolated
residents

e Infrastructure: damaged power lines

« Buildings: destabilization of building foundations;
building damage and destruction from sediment
movement and flooding

+ Economy: isolated businesses

« Natural Systems: downed trees; decreased water
quality

» Transportation: road closures; damage to road
segments and/or culverts, transportation delays

Probability

The Planning Team determined that it is POSSIBLE that a
landslide will impact the planning area. Probability was
defined based on the frequency of occurrence:

¢ Unlikely: less than a 1% probability over the next
100 years

+ Possible: 1-10% probability in the next year or at
least one chance in the next 100 years

« Likely: 10-100% probability in the next year or at
least one chance in the next 10 years

« Highly Likely: near 100% probability in the next
year

2% NOAA: Know the dangers of noreasters,
Ibtp: s wyawnoas,gov features/03 protecting/noreasters.html

WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

The Planning Team used the history of flooding and the
presence of loose soils to make this probability
determination.

Figure 2.13 | Storm surge at Wellfleet Harbor, January 2018
Nor'easter

Nor'easters

Overview

A Nor'easter is a cyclonic storm that forms outside of the
tropics and moves along the east coast of North
America.?® It is called a nor'easter because the winds over
coastal areas blow from a northeasterly direction. These



WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

storms usually develop between Georgia and New Jersey
within 100 miles of the coastline and move north or
northeastward. Once these storms reach New England,
they usually intensify. These storms can occur at any time
of year but are most frequent between September and
April. The years with the most nor'easters tend to coincide
with El Nifio events.3®

The east coast of North America provides an ideal
breeding ground for nor'easters. During the winter, the
polar jet stream transports cold Arctic air southeast across
Canada, the United States, and the Atlantic Ocean. Warm
air from the Guif of Mexico and the Atlantic moves
northward, keeping the coastal waters relatively mild
during the winter. This difference in temperature between
the warm air over the water and cold Arctic air over the
land is the area where nor'easters are born.

Nor‘easters bring heavy rain and snow, gale force winds,
rough seas, coastal flooding and can cause beach erosion.
Sustained wind speeds of 20-40 mph are common during
a nor'easter with short-term wind speeds gusting up to 50-
60 mph.3' Wind gusts associated with these storms can
exceed hurricane force in intensity. Nor'easters are
notorious for producing heavy snow, rain, and oversized
waves that crash onto Atlantic beaches, often causing
beach erosion and structural damage. Nor'easters may
also sit stationary for several days, affecting multiple tide
cycles and producing extended periods of heavy

% Berman, G. and Nemunaitis-Monroe, K. 2012. Hurricane vs. Nor'easter, Marine
Extension Bulletin, 1-4

3 Massachusetts State Hazard Mitigation Plan, 2013

precipitation. The level of damage in a strong hurricane is
often more severe than a nor'easter, but historically
Massachusetts has suffered more damage from
nor'easters because of the greater frequency of these
coastal storms (one or two per year).

Traditionally, nor'easters were not given names like
hurricanes and tropical storms, but his changed with the
Weather Channel’s adopting a naming protocol in 2012
that gained popularity in defining storm systems.
Nor'easters do not have their own categorization scheme;
but aspects of a nor'easter are categorized. For example,
the Beaufort Scale is used to categorize the wind speed of
a nor'easter (small craft advisory, gale warning, storm
warning, hurricane force wind warning) and the Regional
Snowfall Index is used to categorize snowfall during a
nor'easter.



Bice,
B2a,c

|

Hazard Location

Coastal areas of Wellfleet are the most susceptible to
damages from wind, snow and storm surge during a
nor'easter, but noreasters can bring heavy snow, high
winds, and flooding to the entire planning area.

Previous Occurrences and Extent

Since nor'easters are not categorized like hurricanes and
tropical storms, it is difficult to track their history. Also,
hurricanes and tropical storms can transform into
noreasters, making it especially difficult to track the
history of nor'easters in a particular area.

The following is a list of some nor'easters that have
affected Barnstable County, but it is not a complete list
because of the reasons mentioned above:

February 1978: this blizzard/nor'easter produced 8-12
inches of snow as well as ice and flooding and 92 mph
winds on the Lower Cape. It damaged buildings and
infrastructure across Barnstable County including
battering the bathhouse and parking lot at Coast Guard
Beach in Eastham; waves flooded and flattened dunes on
barrier beaches in Chatham, Eastham and Orleans;
Monomoy Island off of Chatham split in several places;
homes were destroyed; the Outer Cape was an island for
a few hours when a 16-foot storm tide flooded Route 6 at
Fort Hill with three feet of water; Bridge Road flooded in
Eastham.3? This event resulted in a federal disaster
declaration (FEMA DR-546).

2NCDC

WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

October-November 1991: This large nor'easter was an
unusual event because it moved south and strengthened
when it joined with Hurricane Grace - producing what
some would call the “Perfect Storm.” Winds measured
over 80 mph with waves over 30 feet high in some parts of
the coastline. This event resulted in a federal disaster
declaration (FEMA DR-920).

December 1992: A strong nor'easter affected the
Commonwealth from December 11 to 13, 1992. Impacts
included deep and intense snowfall, freezing rain, heavy
rainfall near the coast, coastal flooding and damaging
winds. The weight of the snow taxed snow removal
equipment in many communities and caused roof
damage. Precipitation totals for this storm were
extraordinary. Much of southern New England received up
to 5 inches of liquid equivalent precipitation during a 2 to
3 - day period, with locally close to 8 inches recorded in
parts of southeast Massachusetts. Along coastal sections
of Massachusetts, much of the precipitation fell as rain or
rain/snow mix. This caused considerable ponding and
localized flooding in poorly drained areas. The greatest
damage from this storm was due to coastal flooding. Most
east-facing shoreline communities from Chatham to
Wellfleet and Plymouth to the North Shore, as well as
Nantucket Island, experienced some level of coastal flood
damage. As much as 20 feet of dune was lost in Sandwich.
Many coastal roads were closed and docks and cottages
were damaged.



WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

March 1994: A strong nor'easter passed to the southeast
of Cape Cod, resulting in heavy snow and drifting snow.
Over southeast Massachusetts, between three and six
inches of snow fell before it changed to rain. Wind gusts of
up to 40 and 60 mph resulted from this event and created
snow drifts of up to three feet. Buildings were damaged,
businesses and schools were closed, and road travel was
disrupted.

January 22-23, 2005: A major winter storm brought heavy
snow, high winds, and coastal flooding to southern New
England. In Massachusetts, blizzard conditions were
reported on Nantucket. Near-blizzard conditions were
reported in areas and brought between one and three
feet of snow and produced wind gusts of up to 65 mph.
The highest snowfall totals were reported in eastern
Massachusetts (between two and three feet). Minor to
moderate coastal flooding was observed around high tide
in eastern Massachusetts coast. Roads were inundated
and evacuations occurred.

April 2007: an intense coastal storm brought rain and
coastal/inland flooding to eastern Massachusetts. The
storm was primarily a rain event due to warmer
temperatures. For this Patriot's Day Storm, the surge
peaked on a high tide on April 16, 2007 and the time
period of one-foot surge lasted more than four high tides
(~47 hours). Major coastal flooding and storm damage
resulted not only from the severity of the storm but also
due to the timing of the Perigean spring tides. The 2007

33 http://capeandislands.org/post/blizzard-2015-delivers-high-wind-more-snow-
forecast

nor'easter hit during highest predicted tide of the month
which was also the top 0.2% of the year. This 2007 storm
breached the barrier beaches at both Pleasant Bay on the
Lower Cape and Katama Bay on Martha’s Vineyard. While
some breaches will close by themselves in a short amount
of time, both of these 2007 breaches became new inlets
for the bays. This event resulted in a federal disaster
declaration (FEMA DR-1701). Counties included in this
disaster received over $8 million in public assistance from
FEMA,

January 2015: Winter storm Juno was a powerful
nor'easter that impacted the northeast and New
England.?® Governor Baker declared a state of Emergency
and issued travel bans in preparation for this storm; all
shelters in Barnstable County were opened; transit and
ferry services were cancelled; winds gusted to 75 mph;
rain/snow mix transitioning to 15-18 inches of snow;
thundersnow occurred in various regions across Cape
Cod; storm surge and coastal flooding caused erosion in
many areas on Cape Cod; Pilgrim Nuclear Power Station
shutdown in response to degrading offsite electrical grid
conditions; dune break at Ballston Beach in Truro;
significant damage to coastal areas in Cape Cod National
Seashore. This event resulted in a Federal Disaster
Declaration (FEMA DR-4214).

January 4, 2018: Nor'easter caused significant coastal
flooding at high tide. Low lying roads around downtown



Wellfleet flooded from storm surge and astronomical high
tide.

March 2-3, 2018: Nor'easter caused extensive coastal
flooding in Wellfleet and the region. The coastal flooding
concern was centered around three high tides: midday
Friday, midnight and midday Saturday, with astronomical
high tide , high winds and storm surge. Wind gusts over 80
mph were recorded on Cape Cod. This storm resulted in a
Federal Disaster Declaration.

March 7, 2018: Another Nor'easter struck the region,
again bringing high winds, power outages and coastal
flooding.

March 13, 2018: High winds and heavy wet snow caused
extensive power outages and coastal flooding the in third
Nor'easter to strike the region in less than two weeks.
Widespread power outages. 70 mph winds recorded.

October 26-27, 2021. A low pressure nor'easter
underwent bombogenesis as it developed east of
Nantucket on the 26thwinds gusted to 60-80+ mph on the
outer portions of Cape Cod. Peak wind gusts included: 82
mph in Wellfleet. The winds caused widespread damage
to trees and power lines. According to the Massachusetts
Emergency Management Agency, reported damage in
Barnstable County amounted to $1,247,874.
Approximately $800,000 of that damage total was for
debris removal and emergency protective measures.®

#NCDC

WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

Impact

Below is a list of possible impacts that could occur in
Wellfleet during a nor'easter:

People: Longer response time for emergency personnel;
see also impact on people in the Flood hazard profile.

Infrastructure: damages to water infrastructure; utility
outages

Buildings: wind damage to buildings, see also damages to
buildings in the Flood hazard profile

Economy: loss of business function; damage to inventory;
relocation costs; wage loss

Natural Systems: snow and ice accumulation can
negatively impact vegetation and natural habitat, downed
trees and fallen branches; coastal landscape can be
reshaped by storm surge

Transportation: roadways can become impassable from
storm surge and debris; culverts damaged from storm
surge



WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

P Probability

The Planning Team determined that it is HIGHLY LIKELY
that a nor'easter will impact the planning area. High
probability was defined based on the frequency of
occurrence:

« Unlikely: less than a 1% probability over the next
100 years

» Possible: 1-10% probability in the next year or at
least one chance in the next 100 years

» Likely: 10-100% probability in the next year or at
least one chance in the next 10 years

s Highly Likely: near 100% probability in the next
year

The Planning Team used the history of nor‘easters
impacting Wellfleet to make this probability designation.



High Winds

Overview

wind is air in motion relative to the ground surface.*® High
winds can occur as an isolated event or accompany other
weather events such as:

¢ before and after frontal systems

o hurricanes and tropical storms

s severe thunder and lightning storms
« tornadoes

e nor'easters

The National Weather Service issues warnings and
advisories for high wind events as follows:

Wind Advisory: for non-tropical events over land,
sustained winds of 31-39 mph for at least one hour or any
gusts up to 46-57 mph

High Wind Warning: for non-tropical events over land,
sustained winds of 40-73 mph or any gusts 58+ mph

Small Craft Advisory: for non-tropical events over water,
sustained winds of 29-38 mph.

Gale Warning: for non-tropical events over water,
sustained winds of 39-54 mph

3 Massachusetts State Hazard Mitigation and Climate Adaptation Plan, 2018

WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

Storm Warning: for non-tropical events over water,
sustained winds of 55-73 mph

Hurricane Force Wind Warning: for non-tropical events
over water, sustained winds of 74+ mph

Tropical Storm Warning: for tropical systems, any inland
or coastal area with expected sustained winds from 39-73
mph

Hurricane Warning: for tropical systems, any inland or
coastal area with expected sustained winds of 74+ mph.

Hazard Location

FEMA compiled 40 years of tornado history and 100 years
of hurricane history to generate a map of the frequency
and strength of windstorms in the United States (Figure
2.14)

The map shows that Wellfleet is in Wind Zone Il with
maximum wind speeds of 160 mph. The map pertains
only to hurricane and tornado winds and does not capture
wind advisories, high wind warnings, small craft
advisories, and gale warnings. As a coastal location,
Wellfleet experiences numerous high wind events other
than hurricanes and tornados on a regular basis.



WIND ZONES
ZONEI
— zonen
\ (1 ZONER
OTHER CONSIDERATIONS X | QZON';
777 Spacial Wind Reglon Mo {200 mph)
* Huniicane-Suscaptible Region == (ZZ?ONrEpL‘)’
A AN HAWAII* * Design Wind Speed measuring criteria
B VRSN TBANDS: are consistent with ASCE 7-05
— 3-second gust
~ 33 feet above grade
—Exposure C

Figure 2.14| Map of frequency and strength of windstorms in the United States. Planning area is highlighted with a red circle. Map is
from the 2013 Massachusetts State Hazard Plan.



Bic, |
B2a,c

Previous Occurrences and Extent

Over the last decade (between October 1, 2010, and
November 1, 2021), a total of 140 high wind events were
recorded in Barnstable County on 78 days. High winds are
defined by NWS 10-1605 as sustained non-convective
winds of 35 knots (40 mph) or greater lasting for 1 hour or
longer, or gusts of 50 knots (58 mph) or greater for any
duration.*® The probability of future high wind events is
expected to increase based on climate projections for the
state that suggest a greater occurrence of severe weather
events in the future. Specific information on the extent of
these NCDC wind events in Wellfleet is unavailable,
although the database does provide descriptions of some
thunder wind events recorded in Wellfleet.

Impact

People: power outages can affect vulnerable populations,
especially if outages occur during the winter months

Infrastructure: downed power lines, power outages
(wind gusts of only 40 to 45 mph have caused scattered
power outages from downed trees and wires); high wind
events can generate rough seas which can cause damage
to coastal infrastructure

Buildings: damage to roofs, windows

Economy: loss of power can cause businesses to close
temporarily until power is restored

3¢ National Climate Data Center

WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

Natural Systems: downed trees and branches

Probability
The Planning Team determined that it is HIGHLY LIKELY

that a high wind events will impact the planning area. High
probability was defined based on the frequency of
occurrence:

« Unlikely: less than a 1% probability over the next
100 years

o Possible: 1-10% probability in the next year or at
least one chance in the next 100 years

» Likely: 10-100% probability in the next year or at
least one chance in the next 10 years

¢ Highly Likely: near 100% probability in the next
year

The Planning Team used Wellfleet's history of high wind,
hurricanes/tropical storms, and nor'easters as well as the
town’s proximity to the ocean to make this probability
determination.

7 ibid



WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

Thunderstorms

Overview

A thunderstorm is a storm that produces lightning and
thunder and is usually accompanied by gusty winds, heavy
rain and sometimes hail.*® The National Weather Service
considers a thunderstorm to be severe if it produces any
of the following: hail at least one inch in diameter, winds
of 58+ mph or a tornado.

Three basic “ingredients” are required for the formation of
a thunderstorm: moisture that forms clouds and rain,
unstable air that rises rapidly and lift caused by cold or
warm fronts, sea breezes, or heat from the sun. The
following is a description of the formation of
thunderstorms:

Figure 2.15| Schematic
of how lightning
develops, from
Thunderstorms,
Tornadoes and
Lightning: Nature's Most
Violent Storms

38 Massachusetts State Hazard Mitigation and Climate Adaptation Plan, 2018.

3 Thunderstorms, Tornadoes, Lightning: Nature's Most Violent Storms, A
Preparedness Guide, US Department of Commerce, NOAA, and the National Weather
Service.

The rising air in a thunderstorm cloud causes various
types of frozen precipitation to form within the cloud (i.e.
small ice crystals, snow and ice pellets, and water pellets).
The smaller ice crystals are carried upward toward the top
of the clouds by the rising air while the denser ice pellets
are either suspended by the rising air or start falling
towards the ground. Collisions occur between the ice
crystals and the pellets and these collisions serve as the
charging mechanism for the thunderstorm. The small ice
crystals become positively charged while the pellets
become negatively charged. As a result, the top of the
cloud becomes positively charged and the middle to lower
part of the cloud becomes negatively charged. When the
charge difference between the ground and the cloud
becomes large, a charge starts moving toward the ground
and a powerful discharge occurs between the cloud and
the ground (Figure 2.15).%




P Hazard Location

iigic, 1|
B2a,c

According to a map presented in the Massachusetts State
Hazard Plan, Barnstable County experiences about
approximately 20 thunderstorm days per year (see Figure
2.16).

Previous Occurrences and Extent

Figure 2.12 indicates that Massachusetts experiences
between 20 and 30 thunderstorm days. Using local
knowledge, the Planning Team concluded that at least a
few thunderstorms occur every year in Wellfleet, but data
on these storm events is not consistently recorded at the
local level. (The thunderstorm profile relies on data from
the NOAA National Climatic Data Center (NCDC) but this
website does not have searchable data at the town level.)

The following is a list of some historical thunderstorms
that occurred on Cape Cod between August 2015 and
December 2021, although it is not a complete list:

» August 4, 2015: A line of thunderstorms developed
across Long Island, NY and moved quickly towards
Ri and southeastern MA. These storms caused
significant wind damage knocking down a
significant number of trees.

¢ July 15, 2016: A weak frontal boundary stalled
across the |-95 corridor and was the focus for
showers and thunderstorms to develop during the
afternoon. A few of these storms produced
damaging winds. The Automated Weather
Observation System at Provincetown Municipal

WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

Airport recorded a wind gust of 63 mph associated
with the thunderstorm.

July 22, 2016: A cold front moved through
southern New England and when coupled with the
existing heat and humidity, resulted in showers
and thunderstorms developing over much of the
area late in the day and continuing into the evening
and overnight hours.

August 9, 2018: A cold front moved across
Massachusetts, bringing thunderstorms and
downpours to Southeast Massachusetts and
especially over Cape Cod. Up to 4.5 inches of rain
fell on Cape Cod during the morning and early
afternoon. Lightning struck a house on Mill Road in
Eastham.

July 22, 2019: A line of severe thunderstorms rolled
across Cape Cod, leading the National Weather
Service to issue a tornado warning. Lightning
strikes together with high winds caused numerous
power outages, fallen limbs, and downed trees that
blocked roads. Flash flooding occurred in several
locations.

July 23, 2019: Thunderstorms brought heavy
downpours and high winds to the region, again
causing flash flooding, downed trees, and blocked
roads. The storms brought one or more tornados
to the Cape, that caused extensive power outages,
downed trees, building damage, including roof
removal, and road blockages, with heavy dames in
parts of Yarmouth, Dennis, Harwich, and Chatham.



WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

« November 13, 2021: A fast-moving cold front Economy: loss of power can cause businesses to close
combined with a potent short-wave trough lifting until power is restored; lightning strikes can cause
northeastward across western and northern New economic loss to businesses

England to produce severe thunderstorms across
southern New England.

» November 23, 2021: Ahead of an advancing cold Probability

front, an isolated rotating thunderstorm prompted The Planning Team determined that it is HIGHLY LIKELY
a Tornado Warning for eastern Martha's Vineyard that thunderstorms will impact the planning area. High

and a portion of Cape Cod. Although no tornado probability was defined based on the frequency of
occurred, there were severe wind gusts on Cape

Natural Systems: downed trees and branches

o occurrence:
od.

e Unlikely: less than a 1% probability over the next
Impact 100 years
Below is a list of impacts that could occur during a  Possible: 1-10% probability in the next year or at
thunderstorm: least one chance in the next 100 years
People: power outages can affect vulnerable populations,  Likely: 10-100% probability in the next year or at
especially if outages occur during the winter months; least one chance in the next 10 years
injury or death can occur when people are caught » Highly Likely: near 100% probability in the next
outdoors during a thunderstorm; people can become year

stuck if area flooding occurs , .
s The Planning Team used Wellfleet’s history of

Infrastructure: downed power lines and power outages, thunderstorms to make this probability
heavy rain associated with a thunderstorm can overwhelm determination.

drainage systems, causing area flooding and property

destruction

Buildings: damage to roofs and windows; heavy rain
associated with a thunderstorm can overwhelm drainage
systems, causing area flooding and property destruction;
lightning strikes can cause buildings to catch on fire



WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan [

Figure 2.16] Map of the average number of thunderstorms per year in the United States. Planning area is highlighted with a red circle.
Map is from the 2013 Massachusetts State Hazard Plan



WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

Automated Weather Observation System at Coast
Guard Air Station Cape Cod (KFMH}) near Falmouth,
recorded heat indexes of 105 over a three-hour

Extreme Temperatures

Overview period. The Automated Weather Observation
Extreme temperatures are defined as temperatures far System at Provincetown Municipal Airport (KPVC)
outside the normal ranges for the season in a specific also recorded heat indexes of 105 during this time
area. Extreme cold events occur when temperatures drop frame.

well below normal and are generally characterized in
temperate zones by the ambient air temperature
dropping to approximately 0°F or below. Excessive
summer temperatures are often identified as days when
temperatures rise well above normal; e.g. temperatures of
90°F or higher.

s February 14, 2016: Arctic high pressure brought
strong northwest winds and extremely cold wind
chills to southern New England. Many locations
reported wind chills between 25 and 35 degrees
below zero. Wind chills as low as 32 below zero
were reported in Falmouth and Hyannis.

Impact e |

Below is a list of possible impacts that could occur during

m Hazard Location

The entire planning area is vulnerable to extreme

temperatures. extreme temperature events*:
Previous Occurrences and Extent People: children and elderly are particularly at risk to
health problems associated with extreme temperature;
According to NOAA's National Climatic Data Center heat-induced illness such as sunburn, heat cramps, heat
{NCDC), the following extreme heat and extreme cold exhaustion and heat stroke; cold-induced iliness such as
events were reported for Barnstable County between frost bite and hypothermia; air quality can be affected
December 1, 2009 and 2021: during extreme heat events which can cause health
o July 22, 2011: Extreme heat event. A strong upper- hazards; residents can be displaced if warming/cooling
level ridge brought very hot temperatures to centers are opened during extreme temperature events

Southern New England and increased humidity
levels such that heat index values rose above 105
degrees for a period of a few hours. The

40 Massachusetts State Hazard Mitigation and Climate Adaption Plan, 2018.



Infrastructure: power failure; salt water freezes in
bays/harbors and can damage coastal infrastructure;
extreme temperatures can cause school closings

Buildings: in extreme cold temperature, urban fire risk
increases as people use space heaters, generators, and
fires to stay warm

Economy: extreme cold temperatures can inhibit fishing
and other outdoor operations/work and the transport of
goods and services

Natural Systems: saltwater freezing can occur in coastal
bays and harbors

Transportation: icy roads make travel difficult

Probability

The Planning Team determined that it is LIKELY that
extreme temperatures will impact the planning area.
Probability was defined based on the frequency of
occurrence.:

« Unlikely: less than a 1% probability over the next
100 years

o Possible: 1-10% probability in the next year or at
least one chance in the next 100 years

s Likely: 10-100% probability in the next year or at
least one chance in the next 10 years

e Highly Likely: near 100% probability in the next
year.

WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan




WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

Tornadoes

Overview

A tornado is a violently rotating column of air extending
from a thunderstorm cloud to the ground.*' Tornadoes
are not always visible as funnel clouds because they are
nearly translucent until they pick up dust and debris. The
average tornado moves from southwest to northeast, but
they can travel in any direction and suddenly change
direction. The average speed of a tornado is 30 mph, but
they can be stationary or move as fast as 70 mph. The
strongest tornadoes have rotating winds of more than 200
mph.

Tornadoes can form from a variety of sources including:

s tropical storms and hurricanes as they move onto
land

« individual cells within severe thunderstorms squall
lines

e anisolated super-cell thunderstorm
s tropical cyclones or their remnants

e air convergence with upward spins

ml Hazard Location

The entire planning area is vulnerable to tornadoes,
especially the coastline. Compared to the rest of
Massachusetts, Barnstable County has a very low tornado

1 NOAA's National Weather Service, Storm Prediction Center:

e PR

density, defined as the number of tornadoes per 20
square miles.*”

Previous Occurrences and Extent

According to the NOAA National Climatic Data Center,
Barnstable County experienced the following tornado and
waterspouts events between January 1, 1950 and January
1, 2020. No tornadoes have been reported in Wellfleet.

s August 9, 1968: F1 tornado was reported for
Barnstable County. Many trees felled, destructive
wind and hail, fruit and vegetable crops damaged,
utility lines damaged, power outages, roof was
lifted from a fruit stand (account taken from NCDC
Storm data for August 1968)

e August 22, 1977: F1 tornado was reported for
Barnstable County, a small tornado touched down
in Yarmouth and destroyed an art gallery and
street signs. It also picked up two buildings and
spawned large thunderstorms across Cape Cod.

o August 20, 1997: Showers developed during the
afternoon in southeastern Massachusetts and
produced three waterspouts, at least one
confirmed weak tornado (FO) and numerous funnel
clouds. The first waterspout occurred just east of
the Sagamore Bridge, over Cape Cod Bay, at 1:30
p.m. Another waterspout was reported just west of
Bourne, over Buzzards Bay, at 3:20 p.m.
Throughout the afternoon, there were numerous

42 Massachusetts State Hazard Mitigation and Climate Adaption Plan, 2018




reports of funnel clouds, some of which appeared
in newspaper photos and documented via amateur
radio operators’ videos. Many of the funnels came
as far a half-way down before retreating up into
the cloud. There were no reports of damage or
injury.

e October 29, 2018: A waterspout in Vineyard Sound
came ashore in Woods Hole, MA then quickly
dissipated. Eyewitness reports at the Woods Hole
Golf Club described a swirling mass that lofted four
wooden Adirondack chairs into the air and
deposited them 500 feet away onto a tennis court.
There was no other damage. At the same time, two
nearby weather stations reported wind gusts of 56
{Woods Hole Yacht Club) and 65 mph (Mesonet site
at Woods Hole Passage Light).
(Description/narrative from NCDC.)

o July 23, 2019: A waterspout moved onshore just
west of Kalmus Beach in Barnstable, MA at 1157
AM EDT (1057 AM EST). Winds gusted to 91 mph at
a mesonet observation site at Kalmus. They had
shifted from southeast to west-northwest with the
passage of the tornado. The tornado continued
moving northeastward at about 35 mph. The
damage was discontinuous but where the tornado
touched down, the damage was quite significant,
with winds estimated as high as 110 mph. The roof
of a motel on the south side of Main Street in West

42 NOAA's National Weather Service, Storm Prediction Center: http://www.
spc.noaa.gov/fag/tornado/f-scale html

WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

Yarmouth was completely peeled off. Additional
significant tornado damage occurred just
southwest of the Dennis-Yarmouth Regional High
School. Dozens of large trees were uprooted and a
few were snapped off. Another house had a hole in
the roof from a fallen tree. The tornado then lifted.
but severe straight-line wind damage was observed
from West Dennis eastward to West Harwich.
Numerous large trees were uprooted, consistent
with 90 mph gusts or greater. The same supercell
storm that produced the Barnstable-Yarmouth
tornado went on to touch down again near the
center of Harwich at 1210 PM EDT. It moved
northeast through Harwich Center. At least 150
hardwood trees were either uprooted or snapped.
A few homes also had shingles that were ripped
off. Wind gusts were estimated as high as 110 mph.
The tornado then lifted, but severe straight-line
wind damage was observed in Chatham.
(Description/narrative from NCDC)

Impact

Below is the Fujita Tornado Damage Scale developed in
1971 by T. Theodore Fujita:*®

s Scale F0, <73 mph winds, light damage: somem

damage to chimneys; branches broken off trees;
shallow-rooted trees pushed over; sign boards
damaged.



WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

¢ Scale F1, 73- 112 mph winds, moderate damage:
Peels surface off roofs; mobile homes pushed off
foundations or overturned; moving autos blown off
roads.

Probability

The Planning Team determined that it is POSSIBLE that a
tornado will impact the planning area. Probability was

defined based on the frequency of occurrence:
» Scale F2, 113- 157 mph winds, considerable

damage: Roofs torn off frame houses; mobile + Unlikely: less than a 1% probability over the next

homes demolished; boxcars overturned; large
trees snapped or uprooted; light-object missiles
generated; cars lifted off ground.

Scale F3, 158- 206 mph winds, severe damage:
Roofs and some walls torn off well-constructed
houses; trains overturned; most trees in forest
uprooted; heavy cars lifted off the ground and
thrown.

Scale F4, 207-260 mph winds, devastating
damage: Well-constructed houses leveled;
structures with weak foundations blown away
some distance; cars thrown and large missiles
generated.

Scale F5, 261-318 mph winds, incredible
damage: Strong frame houses leveled off
foundations and swept away; automobile-sized

missiles fly through the air in excess of 100 meters;
trees debarked; incredible phenomena will occur,

100 years

Possible: 1-10% probability in the next year or at
least ane chance in the next 100 years

Likely: 10-100% probability in the next year or at
least one chance in the next 10 years

Highly Likely: near 100% probability in the next
year

The Planning Team used Wellfleet's and the region’s
history of tornados to make this probability
determination.



Bic, |
‘B2a,c

Drought

Overview

Drought can be defined and characterized in numerous
ways (e.g. meteorological, hydrological, agricuitural, etc.),
but the root cause is an extended period of deficient
precipitation* Drought conditions occur in virtually all
climatic zones yet its characteristics vary significantly from
one region to another, since it is relative to the normatl
precipitation in that region.

Hazard Location

The entire planning area could be affected by drought.

Previous Occurrences and Extent

According to the Massachusetts Drought Management
Plan, a determination of drought level is based on seven
indices:

Standardized Precipitation index (SP1) reflects soil
moisture and precipitation conditions; calculated monthly
using Massachusetts Rainfall Database at DCR, Office of
Water Resources. SPI values are calculated for "look-back”
periods of 1 month, 3 months, 6 months, and 12 months.

Crop Moisture Index (CMI) reflects short-term soil
moisture conditions as used for agriculture; available from
the National Climate Data Center.

4 Massachusetts State Hazard Mitigation and Climate Adaptation Plan 2018.

WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Flan

Keetch-Byram Drought Index (KBDI) is designed
specifically for fire potential assessment. The KBDI
attempts to measure the amount of precipitation

necessary to return the soil to full field capacity.

Precipitation Index is a comparison of measured
precipitation amounts (in inches) to historic normal
precipitation, Cumulative amounts for 3-, 6-, and 12-
month periods are factored into the drought
determination.

Groundwater Level Index is based on the number of
consecutive months groundwater levels are below normal
(lowest 25% of period of record for the respective
months). The U.S. Geological Survey (USGS) monitors
groundwater levels in a network of monitoring wells
throughout Massachusetts.

Streamflows index is based on the number of
consecutive months that streamflow levels are below
normal (lowest 25% of period of record for the respective
months). The USGS monitors streamflow in a network of
gages throughout Massachusetts.

Reservoir Index is based on the water levels of small,
medium and large index reservoirs across the state. The
reservoir level relative to normal conditions for each
month of the year will be considered. As part of its
monthly conditions report, DCR, Office of Water Resources
maintains a list of index water supply reservoirs and the
percentage at which they are at capacity as well as non-
water supply index reservoir levels, as available.



WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

The 2019 Massachusetts Drought Management Plan uses
five drought levels to provide information on the current
status of water resources in distinct regions of
Massachusetts (Western, Central, Connecticut River Valley,
Northeast, Southeast and Cape and Islands). The levels
provide a basic framework from which to take actions to
assess, communicate, and respond to drought conditions.
For the purposes of the drought management plan,
conditions are classified into five levels - a normal
condition and four drought severity levels. These levels
are based on the six drought indices, observed impacts to
various resources and forecasts as described in detail in
the plan. They provide distinction between different levels
of drought severity and are used to provide adequate
warning of worsening drought conditions.*®

The condition levels are:
s Level 0-Normali.e. No Drought,
« Level 1-Mild Drought' (formerly "Advisory”), '
» Level 2-Significant Drought (formerly “Watch”),
» Level 3-Critical Drought (formerly “Warning"), and

¢ Level 4-Emergency Drought (formerly
“Emergency”).

The U.S. Drought Monitor46 started in 2000. Since 2000,
the longest duration of drought (D1-D4) in Massachusetts
lasted 48 weeks beginning on June 07, 2016 and ending on
May 2, 2017. The most intense period of drought occurred

4% The drought levels, terminology, and indices were revised for the updated plan.
Details about the changes are available in the 2019 plan:
https://www.mass.gov/files/documents/2019/10/03/drought-plan.pdf.

the week of October 4, 2016 where D4 affected 52.13% of
Massachusetts land. The following list of dates and
drought levels/ descriptions for Barnstable County was
compiled from data in the Massachusetts State Hazard
Mitigation Plan, US Drought Monitor website, National
Climate Data Center, and the Department of Conservation
and Recreation Drought Management website:

e 1991: drought conditions in Barnstable County but
no data is available on the drought Leve| as
described above. The observation well located in
the vicinity of the Barnstable Airport set a record
monthly low for two months. Local and state
officials were concerned with water table levels
primarily because of the impacts of low pond levels
(i.e., Mary Dunn Pond) on wildlife and vegetation.

e 2001: Drought Advisory in December

e 2002: Drought Advisories and Watches from
February to December

¢ Rainfall was below normal for all of Massachusetts
during November, with amounts in Southeast
Massachusetts ranging from near 2 to 3 inches
below normal.

e 2004: Drought Advisory October and November.
» 2014 Drought Advisory in October

e 2016: Drought watch August; drought advisory in
November



e 2017: Drought advisory continued through March

e 2020: Level D2 Severe drought declared in
Southeastern Massachusetts, including Barnstable
County.

e 2021: March - August: Mild drought status declared
in Barnstable County.®’

Impact

The following is a list of impacts that are possible with
drought:

People: increased conflicts between water users,
reduction in drinking water, food shortages, migration
from a community

Infrastructure: reduced water levels, soil erosion

Buildings: soil erosion could cause damage to
foundations and buildings

Economy: reduced crop yield, increased prices for food

Natural Systems: increased fire hazard, damage to water
quality, damage to wildlife and fish habitat, degradation of
landscape quality, loss of biodiversity, soil erosion, loss of
wetlands

Probability

The Planning Team determined that it is LIKELY that a
drought will impact the planning area. Probability was
defined based on the frequency of occurrence:

7 htips://www.mass.gov/info-details/drought-status

WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

. Unlikely: less than a 1% probability over the next
100 years
o Possible: 1-10% probability in the next year or at

least one chance in the next 100 years

D Likely: 10-100% probability in the next year or at
least one chance in the next 10 years

. Highly Likely: near 100% probability in the next
year

The Planning Team used Barnstable County’s history of
drought to make this probability determination.



WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

Severe Winter Weather: Snow,
Blizzards and lce Storms

Overview

A winter storm occurs when significant precipitation falls
during periods of low temperatures.* Winter storms
typically occur from early autumn to late spring and can
include any of the following events:*

Blizzards: defined as winter storms with sustained or
frequent wind gusts to 35 miles per hour or more,
accompanied by falling or blowing snow that reduces
visibility to or below one-quarter mile. Severe blizzards are
defined as winter storms with temperatures near or below
10°F, winds exceeding 45 miles per hour and visibility near
zero milesis

Blowing snow: wind-driven snow that reduces visibility.
Blowing snow may be falling snow and/or snow on the
ground that is picked up by the wind

Snow squalls: brief, intense snow showers accompanied
by strong gusty winds. Snow accumulation may be
significant.

Snow showers: snow falling at varying intensities for brief
periods of time, some accumulation is possible.

Snow flurries: light snow falling for short durations with
little to no accumulation.

48 How to Prepare for a Winter Storm, www.ready.gov/prepare

Ice pellets and sleet: composed of frozen or mostly frozen
raindrops or refrozen partially melted snowflakes. These
pellets of ice usually bounce after hitting the ground or
other hard surfaces.

Winter Storm Warning is issued for sleet or a combination
of sleet and snow based on total accumulation which is
locally defined by area.

Icing: occurs when liquid rain falls and freezes on contact
with structures and objects on the ground, causing a
coating of ice on a solid object or surface.

Coastal flooding: winds generated from intense winter
storms can cause widespread tidal flooding and severe
beach erosion along coastal areas.

Ice jams and floes: long cold spells can cause rivers and
lakes to freeze. A rise in the water level or a thaw breaks
the ice into large chunks which become jammed at man-
made and natural obstructions. Ice jams act as a dam,
resulting as severe flooding.

Snow melt: sudden thaw of a heavy snow pack, often
leads to flooding.
Hazard Location w

The entire planning area is at risk for snow, blizzards and
ice storms.

“? Winter Storms, The Deceptive Killers, A Preparedness Guide, U.S. Department of
Commerce, NOAA, National Weather Service, American Red Cross, June 2008



WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

Previous Occurrences and Extent Below is a list of federally-declared disasters from winter
B . o storm events in Barnstable County.
Snow and other forms of winter precipitation occur
frequently in Wellfleet. According to the National Weather It is important to note that Wellfleet has experienced
Service, average annual snowfall for the Outer Cape Cod additional severe winter storms than those listed above,
area is between 25-50 inches per year based on data from which includes only storms declared federal disasters

1991-2020.%°

Table of Federally Declared Disasters from Winter Storms

Table 2.6 | Major Disaster Declarations for Barnstable County for Winter Storms. Data is from the FEMA Disaster Declaration website

Number Disaster Type Incident period Declaration Date
DR-546 coastal storms, flood, ice, snow February 6 - 8, 1978 February 10, 1978
DR-975 winter coastal storm December 11-13, 1992 December 21, 1992
EM-3103 blizzards, high winds and record snowfall March 13-17, 1993 March 16, 1993
DR-1090 blizzard January 7-13, 1996 January 24, 1996
EM-3175 snowstorm February 17 - 18, 2003 February 11, 2003
EM-3151 Snow December 6 - 7, 2003 January 15, 2004
EM-3201 snow January 22-23, 2005 February 17, 2005
DR-1701 severe storms, inland and coastal flooding April 15 - 25, 2007 May 16, 2007
DR-4110 severe winter storm, snowstorm, flooding February 8-10, 2013 April 19, 2013
DR-4214 severe winter storm, snowstorm, flooding January 26 - 29, 2015 April 13, 2015
DR-4372 severe winter storm, flooding March 2-3, 2018 June 25, 2018

% NOAA link.



WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

@ Impact

Below is a list of impacts likely to occur during a winter
storm event™'*?

People: walking and driving can become hazardous due to

icy conditions, snow accumulation, low visibility and

extreme cold may cause people to shelter in place without

utilities or other services until driving is safe or utilities are
restored; injury from slipping and falling, overexertion
during shoveling, frostbite; death from hypothermia,
carbon monoxide poisoning (when gas powered furnaces
and alternative heating sources are used inappropriately
indoors during power outages); people may become
isolated in their homes

Infrastructure: ice and heavy snowfall can knock out
heating, power, and communication services for several
hours or days; pipes and water mains may break due to
extremely cold temperatures; large sections of ice can
cause damage to floating docks

Buildings and Property: structural failure of buildings
due to heavy snow loads; roof failure; structural damage
to buildings because of high wind; damage to fishing
vessels and recreational boats because of ice floes and
coastal flooding

Economy: as people are immobilized by the storm, they
are unable to go to work, leading to economic losses;

51 |bid.

52 \Winter Storms, The Deceptive Killers, A Preparedness Guide, U.S. Department of
Commerce, NOAA, National Weather Service, American Red Cross, June 2008

excessive costs to the town and residents because of
increased plowing, snow removal, salting and sanding

Transportation: roadways can become hazardous due to
icy conditions, snow accumulation, low visibility and
extreme cold; transit and airport facilities may close
temporarily because of severe winter weather; snow
storms halt the transport of supplies, goods and services
because of unsafe roadways.

Probability

The Planning Team determined that it is HIGHLY LIKELY
that a winter storm (snow and blizzard) will impact the
planning area. High probability was defined based on the
frequency of occurrence:

e Unlikely: less than a 1% probability over the next
100 years

= Possible: 1-10% probability in the next year or at
feast one chance in the next 100 years

o Likely: 10-100% probability in the next year or at
least one chance in the next 10 years

« Highly Likely: near 100% probability in the next
year

The Planning Team used Wellfleet's history of snow
storms and blizzards to make this probability designation.



Tsunami

Overview

A tsunami is a series of traveling ocean waves of
extremely long wavelength usually caused by
displacement of the ocean flood, seismic or volcanic
activity or underwater landslides. Tsunamis generate a
devastating onshore surge of water.>> The waves
associated with a tsunami move hundreds of miles per
hour in the open ocean and can come ashore with wave
heights of 100 feet or more.

Hazard Location

All coastal communities of Massachusetts are exposed to
the threat of tsunamis, but it is unknown what the
probability is of a damaging tsunami along the
Massachusetts coast.>

According to the NOAA National Climatic Data Center,
Barnstable County did not experience any tsunamis
between january 1, 1950 and February 2021.

Six tsunamis have been reported for the US Atlantic coast
and Gulf coast in the last 200 years™:

Three tsunamis were generated in the Caribbean Sea,
where a convergent plate exists. Tsunamis are more likely
to occur at convergent margins, so this area has a higher

53 Massachusetts State Hazard Mitigation Plan, 2013
** |bid.

WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

probability of generating earthquakes that could produce
a tsunami.

Two tsunamis were related to a magnitude 7+ earthquake
along the Atlantic coast.

One tsunami was reported off the mid- Atlantic states and
may be associated with an underwater landslide.

Previous Occurrences and Extent
B2ac
There is no data on the extent of these tsunamis for | ]

Barnstable County or Wellfleet.

Impact
Below is a list of potential impacts of a tsunami:

People: hydraulic forces of the tsunami can injure or kill
people; floating debris can endanger human lives; people
and businesses may be left without fuel, food or
employment

Infrastructure: floating debris can batter infrastructure;
breakwaters and piers may collapse, and scouring actions
sweep away infrastructure; oil fires often result because
the waves carry away oil tanks which can ignite

Buildings: hydraulic forces of the tsunami will destroy
buildings; floating debris can batter inland structures,
which may be swept away

 Ibid.



WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

Economy: public utilities may be damaged and harm the
local economy, especially for the fishing industry;
disruption of coastal systems could have far-reaching
economic effects

Natural Systems: trees and plants are uprooted; animal
habitats such as nesting sites for birds are destroyed.
Land animals are killed by drowning and sea animals are
killed by pollution if dangerous chemicals are washed
away into the sea, thus poisoning marine life.

Transportation: roads, bridges and culverts buckle or are
swept away

Probability

The Planning Team determined that it is unknown and
UNLIKELY that a tsunami will impact the planning area.
Probability was defined based on the frequency of
occurrence:
¢ Unlikely: less than a 1% probability over the next
100 years
+ Possible: 1-10% probability in the next year or at
least one chance in the next 100 years
o Likely: 10-100% probability in the next year or at
least one chance in the next 10 years
¢ Highly Likely: near 100% probability in the next
year

The Planning Team used the low frequency of tsunamis in
Barnstable County to make this probability designation.

% Sea Level Rise: Understanding and Applying Trends and Future Scenarios for
Analysis and Planning, Massachusetts Office of Coastal Zone Management, December
2013

Sea Level Rise

Overview

Sea level rise refers to the increase in mean sea level over
time,®

Relative sea level rise is a combination of eustatic and
isostatic contributions:

Eustatic contributions to sea level rise are global-scale
changes and include thermal expansion of seawater as it
warms and the addition of water volume from melting
land-based glacial ice sheets.

Isostatic contributions to sea level rise are more
localized changes in land surface elevations, such as
subsidence or sinking.

Sea level has been rising around the globe for thousands
of years since the end of the last lce Age. Tidal gauges and
satellites have been measuring changes in sea level for
over a century. Tide gauge stations measure the height of
water referenced to a horizontal control point, or
benchmark, and gauges are used to track and predict tide
levels and longer-term sea level. Long-term data sets from
tide stations have been used to understand local and
global sea level trends. NOAA's Center for Operational
Oceanographic Products and Services maintains several
tide gauge stations across coastal Massachusetts,
including long-term stations at Boston, Woods Hole and



Nantucket. The sea level data recorded by NOAA and
other tide gauges produce trends in relation to fixed
reference levels on land, includes variation in local land
elevations.

The warming atmosphere associated with global climate
change is expected to accelerate both the thermal
expansion of seawater and the melting of glaciers and ice
sheets and will lead to increasing rates of sea level rise.”’

Hazard Location
The entire coast of Wellfleet is vulnerable to sea level rise.

In 2014, the Cape Cod Commission developed a "bathtub”
model to visualize Cape Cod’s vulnerability to sea level rise
(see Sea Level Rise Viewer at
https://slrv.apps.capecodcommission.org/). The Sea Level
Rise data was derived from classified Digital Elevation
Model (DEM) data collected through Light Detection and
Ranging (LIDAR) in 2011 by the USGS. The elevation data is
accurate to 18 cm at a 95% confidence level with a 1 meter
resolution. This elevation data was adjusted to Mean
Higher High Water (MHHW) using the NOAA Datum
Software. Sea Level Rise is shown as a simple
representation of a change in elevation, commonly
referred to as a “bathtub” model. No account has been
made for the effects of velocity and resulting erosion
caused by wave action.

57 |bid.

WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

Previous Occurrences and Extent

-B‘I:. .
B2a,c
Mean sea level trends from the Boston, Woods Hole and =

Nantucket long-term stations are listed below®:

» Boston, MA tide gauge station: 0.11 + 07 inches
per year, measured over the period of 1921-2012

e Century rate at the Boston tide gauge: 0.92 feet
per 100 years

« Woods Hole, MA tide gauge station: 0.11 + 07
inches per year, measured over the period of 1932-
2012

o Century rate at the Woods Hole tide gauge: 0.92
feet 100 years

+ Nantucket, MA tide gauge station: 0.14 £ 0.017
inches per year, measured over the period of 1965-
2012

* Century rate at the Nantucket tide gauge: 1.15
feet per 100 years
Impact

As relative sea level rises, high water elevations will move
landward, areas of coastal shorelines will retreat, and low-
lying areas will be increasingly exposed to erosion, tidal
inundation, and coastal storm flooding. Developed parts

58 1bid.




T Probability

WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

of the coast are especially vulnerable because of the
presence of infrastructure and buildings that can be
damaged or destroyed by coastal storms. Development
often impedes the ability of natural coastal systems to
buffer inland areas from storm damage, further
exacerbating the problem. Coastal habitats including salt
marshes, beaches and dune systems, and floodplains, are
also vulnerable to rising sea levels. These areas provide
significant environmental benefits, including habitat value,
filtering of pollutants for improved water quality,
protection of inland areas from flooding and storm surge,
and extensive recreational opportunities.*

The Planning Team determined that it is HIGHLY LIKELY
that sea level rise will impact the planning area.
Probability was defined based on the frequency of

occurrence:
¢ Unlikely: less than a 1% probability over the next
100 years

» Possible: 1-10% probability in the next year or at
least one chance in the next 100 years

o Likely: 10-100% probability in the next year or at
least one chance in the next 10 years

s Highly Likely: near 100% probability in the next

year Sea Level Rise; Feet Above MHHW Wellfleet
ey
The Planning Team used the history of sea level rise in e o
. - ) . T - s
Massachusetts to make this probability designation. T SIS R IR NS

Figure 2,17 | Sea level rise map for Welifleet.

% Ibid.



Climate Change

Climate is defined as average temperature and
precipitation and includes the type, frequency, and
intensity of weather events. Both globally and at the local
scale, climate change has the potential to alter the
prevalence and severity of extremes such as storms, high
winds, and tornado events. While predicting changes in
storm events under a changing climate is difficult,
understanding vulnerabilities to potential changes is a
critical part of estimating future climate change impacts
on human health, society, and the environment.®

The following changes in hazard frequency and intensity
are expected to occur with changes in climate:®’

Coastal Erosion: Climatic trends can change a beach from
naturally accreting to eroding due to increased episodic
erosion events caused by waves from an above-average
number of storms and high tides, or from the long-term
effects of fluctuations in sea or lake level. The coastal zone
is being severely impacted by erosion and flooding due in
part to climate change and sea-level rise. It is likely that
the impact will increase in the future as sea levels
continue to rise at the current rate or rises at an
accelerated rate.

Earthquakes: The impacts of global climate change on
earthquake probability are unknown, Some scientists feel
that melting glaciers could induce tectonic activity. As ice
melts and water runs off, tremendous amounts of weight
are shifted on the earth’s crust. As newly freed crust

% United States Environmental Protection Agency, 2006

WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

returns to its original, pre-glacier shape, it could cause
seismic plates to slip and stimulate volcanic activity
according to research into prehistoric earthquakes and
volcanic activity. NASA and USGS scientists found that
retreating glaciers in southern Alaska might be opening
the way for future earthquakes.

Fire: Climate change has the potential to affect multiple
elements of the wildfire system: fire behavior, ignitions,
fire management and vegetation fuels. Hot dry spells
create the highest fire risk. Increased temperatures may
intensify wildfire danger by warming and drying out
vegetation. When climate alters fuel loads and fuel
moisture, forest susceptibility to wildfires changes.
Climate change also may increase winds that spread fires.
Faster fires are harder to contain, and thus are more likely
to expand into residential neighborhoods.

Flooding: While it is not known if the number of storms
will increase in the future as the result of climate changes,
it is anticipated that the intensity of tropical and extra-
tropical storms may increase as the storm intensity is a
function of sea surface temperature, which continues to
rise. Thus, we may experience more intense storms with
greater rainfall in the future.

Tropical Cyclones: Although there is still some level of
uncertainty, research indicates the warming climate may
double the frequency of Category 4 and 5 hurricanes by
the end of the century and decrease the frequency of less
severe hurricane events.

81 Massachusetts State Hazard Mitigation Plan



WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

Nor‘easters and Winter Storms: Weather extremes are
likely to become more frequent and cause more damage
under a changing climate. Although no specific storm is
directly linked to climate change, an increasing number of
events could become more common. New England is
expected to experience changes in the amount, frequency,
and timing of precipitation. Along with rising
temperatures, it is expected that annual precipitation will
increase by 14%, with a slight decrease in summer totals
and a 30% increase in winter totals. Winter precipitation is
predicted to be in the form of rain rather than snow. This
change in precipitation will have significant effects on the
amount of snow cover, winter recreation, spring snowmelt
and peak stream flows, water supply, aquifer recharge,
and water quality. Snow is also predicted to fall later in the
winter and cease falling earlier in the spring.

Severe Weather (wind, extreme temperature,
thunderstorms, tornadoes, drought): Climate change
presents a significant challenge for risk management
associated with severe weather. The frequency of severe
weather events has increased steadily over the last
century. The number of weather-related disasters during
the 1990s was four times that of the 1950s, and cost 14
times as much in economic losses. Historical data show
that the probability for severe weather events increases in
a warmer climate. With a warmer climate, droughts could
become more frequent, more severe, and longer-lasting.
Higher temperatures also bring an increase in invasive

62 Nancy Civetta, Wellfleet Shellfish Constable, email dated February 11, 2022. For
further information see "Potential Impacts of Climate Change and Variability on
Shellfish Resources, July 2015." https://www.wellfleet-

ocean species. Wellfleet’s Shellfish Department has noted
that with consecutive mild, ice-free winters, disease
organisms could impact more shellfish. Shellfish predators
including green crabs, blue crabs, and cow-nosed rays also
pose threats to Wellfleet shellfish as water temperatures
rise.®

ma.gov/sites/g/ffiles/vwhlif5166/f/file/file/climate change -
_potential impacts on_shellfish.adf



Hazards Selected for
Risk Assessment

After reviewing the hazards in the Massachusetts Hazard
Mitigation and Climate Adaptation Plan and 2016 Wellfleet
Hazard Mitigation Plan and assigning a probability to each
hazard, the Planning Team determined which were
significant for Wellfleet. They also reviewed the public and
stakeholder input provided in the hazard survey to
support/confirm the determination. Error! Reference
source not found.documents the evaluation process
used for determining which of the state listed hazards are
considered significant enough to warrant further
evaluation in the risk assessment. A hazard was further
evaluated for a risk assessment if the following criteria
were met:

s the Planning Team determined that the probability
of the hazard was highly likely

Table 2.7 | Relevant Hazards for Welifleet

What is the future probability
of the hazard as determined by

Type of Natural Hazard

WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

e the hazard was identified as a top concern during
the MVP process

Using the process described above, the following hazards
were selected for risk assessment in Chapter 4:

s Coastal Erosion/Shoreline Change
e Flood

¢ Hurricanes and Tropical Storms

o Sea Level Rise

e Nor'easters

s High Winds

e Severe Winter Weather

the Planning Team?
Coastal Erosion and

HIGHLY L Y
Shoreline Change G iy

Dam {Culvert) Failure POSSIBLE
Earthquake POSSIBLE
Urban Fire LIKELY
Wildfire LIKELY

Was the hazard identified Was the hazard further
as a top concern during the  evaluated in the risk
MVP process? assessment in Chapter 4?

Yes Yes

No No

No No

No No

No No



WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan | EHAPTER 2 Natlral blazatds

What is the future probability Was the hazard identified Was the hazard further
Type of Natural Hazard of the hazard as determined by  as a top concern during the  evaluated in the risk
the Planning Team? MVP process? assessment in Chapter 4?

Hurricane and Tropical
Storms

HIGHLY LIKELY Yes Yes

Nor’easters HIGHLY LIKELY Yes Yes

Thunderstorms HIGHLY LIKELY Yes YES

Tornadoes POSSIBLE No No

Severe Winter Weather HIGHLY LIKELY Yes Yes

Sea Level Rise HIGHLY LIKELY Yes Yes

Table 2.7 | Relevant Hazards for Wellfleet



Asset
Inventory

CHAPTER THREE




Chapter 2 profiles natural hazards that
have affected Wellfleetin the past or could
affect the town in the future. The next
step in the hazard planning process is to
identify the types of assets located in
Wellfleet and its population. Once this asset

inventory in complete, the Planning Team
can determine which assets and populations
are vulnerable to the impactsof natural
hazards. Chapter 3 is an inventory of the
people and natural and built environments
in Wellfleet.




WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

CHAPTER 3: Asset Inventory

People
Population: Year-round and
Seasonal

Approximately 3,617 year-round residents live in Weilfleet
(according to 2019 American Community Survey
estimates)®®. The median household income for this
population is $74,639.

Like other Cape Cod towns, Wellfleet's population grows
significantly from winter to summer. The total seasonal
population amount includes year-round household
occupants, second home-owners or residents, and
transient renters of hotels/motel rooms. There is no
singular numeric estimate of Wellfleet's seasonal
population because this statistic is difficult to determine.
For the purposes of this plan, seasonal population
estimate seeks to address and reflect how many
individuals may need to be accounted for within the town,
regardless of resident, visitor or transient status.

3 For additional data on Wellfleet population, housing, economic, and other
characteristics, see Data Cape Cod at https://datacapecod.org/

o4

5% Ibid.

The 2016 Hazard Mitigation Plan provided an estimate of
about 13,900 additional people with overnight
accommodations in Wellfleet on a summer day/peak
season.® The estimate includes seasonal home occupants
as well as hotel/motel, bed & breakfast, etc. occupants.

Estimates and projections for total summer population
range from to 17,000to 21,000.%° Regardless of the
variation in estimates, the substantial seasonal population
boom puts a strain on Town services and affects long-
range planning.

Wellfleet and all of Barnstable County experienced a
significant population boom in 2020-2022 during the
COVID-19 pandemic. With a significant number of
seasonal or part time residents choosing to spend more
time in Wellfleet during the pandemic and a significant
number of people relocating to Wellfleet, its seasonal and
year-round population has grown.*

% For more information on address changes in Barnstable County during the
pandemic, see btips:/. datacasecod.ore pf/addiest-changes”




Base Map of Wellfleet

Figure 3.1 is a base map for the Town of
Wellfleet; it shows the geographic area of
Wellfleet and includes features such as
roads, rivers, coastlines. The

hase map provides a frame of reference for
the reader andreviewer of the Wellfleet
Hazard Mitigation Plan.

Natural Environment

Wellfleet’s natural environment is a character
defining element and economic engine for
the town. Bordered on the east by the
Atlantic Ocean and on the west by Cape Cod
Bay, Wellfleet's beaches, dunes, ponds,
wetlands, undeveloped open spaces, and
harbor are key features that define both the
physical and cultural character of the town.
Wellfleet's natural resources contribute
considerably to town character and help
drive the local economy. Shellfishing is a
multi-million dollar industry in Welifleet and
major economic force in town, which is
known for its world-famous Wellfleet oyster.
The town also has a significant density of
rare species, as determined by the Nature
Conservancy and the Massachusetts Natural
Heritage and Endangered Species Program
(NHESP).

CHAPTER 3: Assct inventory

WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

o~

I
s

Tapt Coct Haonsd Semchare [N
GrearPond
& Waper Roae

. Lotus

#

Base Map Wellfleet

Sowrcon.
Cope Cord Fesmamnn Samiass Rovsnil P Suniss
B o b srmn. Va5 vl g Lo Comomamtn.

aman o Srraae

Cowmy N2
T ta Par e o oy e AR s 80 o M T = oy
. o M ol N £ 4 iy Y e 2 =

B2 04 &5 03 3

Figure 3.1 | Wellfleet Base Map



WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

CHAPTER 3: Asset inventory

Wellfleet’s coastlines and natural resources both limit and
shape future growth. Developable land is limited. 61
percent of Wellfleet is located within Cape Cod National
Seashore and is controlled by the National Park Service,
Most future growth in Wellfleet will be infill or
redevelopment.

Built Environment
Homes

Wellfleet's residential development is located throughout
the town, including the downtown village center area and
outside the downtown within residential zoning districts
and inside the National Seashore. Many buildings in the
downtown area are historically significant and are part of
Wellfleet's Historic District. Over 92% of Wellfleet's housing
stock is single family homes.

Wellfleet has 4,701 total housing units. The 2019 American
Community Service estimates for total housing units is
shown in Table 3.1 | The 2019 American Community
Service estimates for total housing units.®’

7 2019 American Community Service, US Census, estimate

% Far more on Wellfleet housing characteristics, see Data Cape Cod
httpe://datacapecod.org/pf/housing-characteristics/

Table 3.1 | The 2019 American Community Service estimates
for total housing units.

Total Housing Units: 4,701

Occupied units 1,598 (%)
Owner Occupied 1,358 (%)
Renter Occupied 240 (%)

Vacant Units 3,103 (%)

According to the ACS data hazard plan, almost 70 percent
of the town’s housing units were built after 1960. AlImost
42% of Wellfleet's homes have 3 bedrooms, and about
28% have two bedrooms. %

Substandard housing conditions are not uncommon in
Wellfleet, as many residential buildings were not built for
year-round occupancy and have inadequate insulation
and inefficient heating systems.



CHAPTER 3: Asset Inventory

UNITS IN STRUCTURE Estimate

1-unit, detached 4,333
i s i
2 units 52
3or4units 64
5to 9 units 14
10 or mare 13
Mobile home 153
Boat, RV, etc /]
Total Housing Units 4,701

Table 3.2 | Number and type of housing units in Wellfleet, U.S.
Census American Community Survey (estimate), 2019. *Note:
The ACS housing units data estimates contain a high margin of
error. and may not reflect actual number of existing units.

Businesses and Employment

Wellfleet's business landscape is dominated by tourism-
supported service industries, primarily Retail and
Accommodations/Food Service (Table 3.3).

Table 3.3 | Estimated Number and Value of Wellfleet
Businesses, U.S. Census American Community Survey,

D=Withheld to avoid disclosing data for individual companies
N=Data not available or not comparable

Industry Number Values
Wholesale trade 2 D
Retail trade 35 27,798
lr]forméfidn 3 N
Finance and insurance 3 N
Real estate and rental and 8 D
leasing
Professional, scientific, and 4 o
technical services
Administrative and support
and waste management and 13 D
remediation services
Educational services 5 D
Health care and sodial 8
assistance
Arts, en'tertamment, and 5 2,256
recreation
Acco.mmodatlon and food 37 31,799
services
Other services (except public 8 4,082

administration)

WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan



WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan CHAPTER 3: Asset Inventory

69

Table 3.4 | Wellfleet Employment and Wages Report, 2020 Annual.

Average Average

Description Total Wages Monthly Weekly

Employment Wages
Agriculture, Forestry, Fishing and Hunting 8 $697,203 14 $958
Construction 23 $5,831,253 105 $1,068
Wholesale Trade 3 $1,625,192 28 $1,116
Information 4 $1,172,563 32 $705
Finance and Insurance 4 $1,522,650 20 $1,464
Real Estate and Rental and Leasing 7 $1,487,798 26 $1,100
Professional and Technical Services 6 $378,340 7 $1,039
Administrative and Waste Services 19 $3,298,689 B2 $774
Health Care and Social Assistance 14 $2,361,296 53 $857
Arts, Entertainment, and Recreation 9 $5,437,694 100 $1,046
Accommodation and Food Services 32 $11,537,560 273 $813
Other Services, Except Public Administration 9 $1,882,994 48 $754
Total, All Industries 188 $52,905,889 1,062 $958

& See https://imi.dua.eol.mass.gov/Imi/EmploymentAndWages#,



Critical Facilities

Table 3.5 is a list of the Critical Facilities
in Wellfleet. Figure 3.2 shows their
locations.

Assets that are essential to the health
and welfare of the whole population and
are especially important following
hazard events. The potential
consequence of losing these assets is so
great that they were carefully
inventoried. Thebuilding, contents and
function/ services provided to the
communityare significant. Source: FEMA

How-to Guide 2/ FEMA 386-2

Critical assets in all 5 modes of
transportation (air, road, transit, rail,sea).
Source: FEMA How-to Guide 2/ FEMA
386-2

Includes wastewater, water, oil,natural
gas, electric power, andcommunication
systems

CHAPTER 3 Asset invefitory

WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

— &
j Vi
.
.')“ »
| “ '
\ @ ot P
e
& J St
2
rv’) '"Rﬁ’ -
-3
19
- 1 iﬁ' a
,'.1-’ ;- i J!u\\.
{ = ¢ 1
| e P
I\_‘ o "\_".I _-'
"o \ (.
\y AP
!

©  Vellteet Critcal Facilities
Great Pond

Critical Facliities Wellfleet

.
et 20 b o VRV MO Pl 202
Buns tnup Sarns MainCr tnd Cape Lot Lavoeibon. °

Cope
& vtwwn o et Loy 922

28 %4 wpmper

e

82 P4 U6

Figure 3.2 | Map of Critical Facilities in Wellfleet



WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Pian

CHAPTER 3: Asset Inventory

Table 3.5 | List of Critical Facilities in Wellfleet

Type of Critical Facility

Name of Critical Facility

Town Pier

Essential Facilities

Assets that are essential to the
health and welfare of the whole
population and are especially
important following hazard
events. The potential
consequence of losing these
assets is so great that they were
carefully inventoried. The
building, contents and
function/services provided to the
community are significant.
Source: FEMA How-to Guide 2/
FEMA 386-2

Wellfleet Town Hali
Wellfleet Police Station
Wellfleet Fire Station
Outer Cape Health Services
Wellfleet Elementary School
Department of Public Works
Wellfleet Library
Preservation Hall
Harbormaster's Office

Transfer Station
Council on Aging/Senior Center
Shellfish Department
Beach Sticker Office
Bakers Field Recreation
National Seashore Headquarters

Gull Pond Landing

Transportation Systems

Critical assets in all 5 modes of

transportation (air, road, transit,

rail, sea). Source: FEMA How-to
Guide 2/ FEMA 386-2

Route 6
Commercial Street
Herring River Dike

Cahoon Hollow Town Landing
Newcomb Hollow Town Landing

White Crest Town Landing
Maguire Landing
Bridge to Lieutenant Island

Lifeline Utilities

Includes wastewater, water, oil,
natural gas, electric power, and
communication systems

Town owned fuel pumps and
tanks
Town owned water tower
National Seashore water tower
Pumping Station #1 (Old Boy
Scout Camp)

Pumping Station #2 (Cole's Neck)

National Seashore Pump House
Wesley Swamp Pump



CHAPTER 3: Asset inventory WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

IS Repetitive Loss Properties

Repetitive Loss Properties are those for which two or more
losses of at least $1,000 each have been paid under the
National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) within any 10-
year period since 1978.

The Town of Wellfleet had no Repetitive Loss Properties in

2016, when the last Hazard Mitigation Plan was completed.
The Town has been unable to get an update from FEMA on
Repetitive Loss Properties in time for the 2022 plan update.



WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan CHAPTER 3: Asset Inventory

New Developments in Wellfleet [ o |

Table 3.6 | New Development in Wellfleet

Bldg Type (Res,

Permit
Non-Res, New Bldg or FIRM
Issued EC Date Address Addition, SI/sD Zone Comments
Date
Accessory, etc.)
X | b i
4/30/20 5/3/21 219 Kendrick Ave Residential New _ AE Elevate above Flood
{unit 2) Construction Flood Vents
2118 6/19/17 210_ Kendrick Ave Residential New . AE Elevate above Flood -
(unit 1) Construction Fiood Vents
. E| =
2/6/18 3/25/19 21 0. Kendrick Ave Residential New . AE evate above Flood
(Unit 3) Construction Flood Vents
!, ial
2/20/19 Plgdtsarans Residential LIS AE Flood Vents
Way improvement
ial :
5/21/19 5 Holbrook Ave Residential Stbstarttia A Devaelaboyeliood
Improvement Flood Vents
1225 STATE HWY New Elevate above Flood -
1/13/17 Residential
(lesiie s ROUTE 6 FS0E Construction g Flood Vents
Most of the new development in Wellfleet since new buildings in Wellfleet since completion of the 2016
completion of the 2016 hazard mitigation plan is infill hazard plan that are located in flood hazard areas and the
development and has not increased the community's accompanying mitigation.

hazard vulnerability. The New Development table shows



Vulnerability
Assessment

CHAPTER FOUR




Chapter 2 of the Wellfleet Hazard Plan
profiles natural hazards that could impact the
town in the future or have impactedWellfleet
in the past. Chapter 3 inventories the assets
that could be damaged during a hazard
event, such as buildings, infrastructure and
critical facilities. Chapter 4 ties together the

hazard profiles and asset inventories to
estimate the potential losses that Wellfleet
could experience during a natural hazard
event. Chapter 4 answers the question:
How will assets in Wellfleet be affected by
hazard events?




WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

CHAPRTER 4 Vulnerability Assessment

Methodology: Vulnerability
Assessments
This chapter provides the following two assessments:

» Vulnerability Assessment of Parcels and
Buildings: this assessment was completed by the
Cape Cod Commission using data from the Town
Assessor’s office and reviewed by the Planning
Team.

e Exposure Assessment of Critical Facilities: the
Planning Team used Geographic Information
System (GIS) analysis to identify whether critical
facilities could be exposed to flooding, surge, sea
level rise and coastal erosion.

The methods for the 2022 Vulnerability Assessments are
provided below.

Methods of the Vulnerability
Assessment of Parcels and
Buildings:

To estimate the total number of parcels and value of
buildings located in Welifleet, the Planning Team used
2021 Town Assessing data. This data set contains
information about parcels such as use codes, building
characteristics and assessed values. The 2021 parcel data

0 property Type Classification Codes, Non-arm’s Length Codes and
Sales Report Spreadsheet Specifications, prepared by the Bureau
of Local Assessment, revised June 2016.

is also linked to geometry data for specific parcels on the
ground. The 2021 data is the most current data set that
contains both the parcel and the geometry data. This large
data set was grouped into categories using Massachusetts
Property Type Classification Codes. Parcel numbers and
building values were totaled for each category.”lIt is
important to note that the category titles are based on the
State's Classification Code designations and not selected
by members of the Planning Team. Below is a list of
examples of asset types in each category.

Agriculture: agricultural land/farms, greenhouses, farm
buildings

Banks: bank buildings

Entertainment and Recreation: includes eating and

drinking establishments, indoor recreation, recreational
land

General Services: includes warehouses and distributional
facilities, post office, housing authority, municipal property

Medical Office/Clinics: includes medical office buildings

Multi-Family Dwelling: includes condos, 2-3 family
homes, multiple houses on a single property, 4-8 unit
homes and 8+ units

Non-Profit/Municipal: government or town owned
properties, public parking lots, libraries, museums,
fraternal offices



Parking: commercial parking lots

Personal/Repair Services: includes buses and funeral
homes

Retail Trade: includes hardware stores, shopping malls,
supermarkets, small retail

Single Family Dwelling: single family homes
Temporary Lodging: includes motels, inns, resorts
Theaters: includes theaters and stadiums

Vacant: includes developable land, undevelopable land,
residential open land, underwater land or marshes not
under public ownership

Wholesale Trade: includes tanks holding fuel and oil
products for retail distribution, bottled gas and propane
tanks, lumber yards

Next, Commission staff used GIS to overlay maps of
hazard areas onto parcel and value data. Only a subset of
natural hazards was identified for further vulnerability
assessment (see Table 2.7 | Relevant Hazards for
Wellfleet for rationale). Below is a list of hazards selected
for the vulnerability assessment and a description of the
available data used for the assessment.

Flooding: FEMA flood hazard maps, adopted by Wellfleet
in 2014.

Hurricanes and Tropical Storms: The storm surge that
occurs during tropical cyclones is assessed using the
SLOSH (Sea, Lake, and Overland Surges from Hurricanes)
model. Currently, there is no model available for the

~ CHAPTER 4: Vulnerability Assessment

impact of wind from tropical cyclones. Figure 2.10 in
Chapter 2 shows a SLOSH map for the Town of Wellfleet.

Sea Level Rise: Bathtub model developed by the Cape
Cod Commission was used to model the impacts of sea
level rise on Wellfleet. Figure 2.17 | Sea level rise map for
Wellfleet. in Chapter 2 shows a Sea Level Rise map for the
Town of Wellfleet.

Coastal Erosion/Shoreline Change: GIS was used to
identify which properties had a physical connection to
saltwater. A property that shares a boundary with
saltwater was identified as “coastal property.” Parcel and
building values were identified. The Planning Team
recognizes that this method is coarse but is useful for
identifying some vulnerable properties.

Nor’'easters: Mapping/location data is not available
specific to Nor'easter impacts. A detailed vuinerability
assessment could not be completed, although the
assessments for flooding and coastal erosion overlap and
are related to some nor'easter impacts.

High Winds: Data is not available specific to wind
impacts/locations. A detailed vulnerability assessment
could not be completed, other than noting as a coastal
community the entire town is vulnerable to impacts from
high winds.

Severe Winter Weather: Data is not available. A detailed
vulnerability assessment could not be completed specific
to severe winter weather.

Urban Fire: data is not available. A detailed vulnerability
assessment could not be completed specific to urban fire
vulnerability.

WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan



WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

CRAPTER 4 Vulnembility Assessment

Wildfire: a wildfire vulnerability assessment was
completed for Wellfleet in 2012 by wildfire professionals
and referenced in Chapter 2.

It is important to note that SLOSH and Sea Level Rise
models are coarse models to illustrate vulnerability to
storm surge and sea level rise using the best available
data. These models have the following strengths and their
weaknesses:

Sea, Lake and Overland Surges from Hurricanes
(SLOSH) model: SLOSH is a computerized numerical
model developed by the National Weather Service (NWS)
to estimate storm surge heights resuiting from historical,
hypothetical, or predicted hurricanes in consideration of
atmospheric pressure, size, forward speed, and track
data2. These parameters are used to create a model of
the wind field which drives the storm surge. The SLOSH
model consists of a set of physics equations which are
applied to a specific locale’s shoreline, incorporating the
unique bay and river configurations, water depths,
bridges, roads, levees and other physical features.
However, the SLOSH model does not explicitly model the
impacts of waves on top of the surge nor does it account
for normal river flow or rain flooding. Future advancements
in the SLOSH model will allow for the resolution of some of
these limitations.”’

Cape Cod Commission’s Sea Level Rise model: Sea Level
Rise data was derived from classified Digital Elevation

1 http://www.nhc.noaa.gov/surge/slosh.php

Model (DEM) data collected through Light Detection and
Ranging (LiDAR) in 2011 by the United States Geological
Society (USGS). The elevation data is accurate to 18 cm at
a95% confidence level with a 1-meter resolution. This
elevation data was adjusted to Mean Higher High Water
(MHHW) using the NOAA VDatum Software. Sea Level Rise
is shown as a simple representation of a change in
elevation, commonly referred to as a “bathtub” model. No
account

has been made for the effects of velocity and resulting
erosion caused by wave action.

The SLOSH and Sea Level Rise models used for the
vulnerability assessment are adequate for the purposes of
this hazard mitigation plan. For more specific analyses to
address flooding risks, the Town of Wellfleet has been
working with consultants using more refined modelling
methodology. The Cape Cod Commission’s “Low Lying
Roads Project,” for example, will identify flooding risk in
low lying areas and produce feasibility analyses for
mitigation options in selected locations.”? The Woods Hole
Group (project consultant) will employ the state-of-the-art
Massachusetts Coast Flood Risk Model (MC FRM) to
identify vulnerable road segments under different sea
level rise scenarios and time scales. One output from this
work is a projection of the probability and extent of
flooding at the present, 2030, 2050, and 2070.

72See the Low Lying Roads Project website: https://www.capecodcommission.org/our-
work/low-lying-roads-wellflest/



CHAPTER 4: Vulnerability Assessment WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan




WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan (CHABTEN 4 Vulnerability Assessment

Results: Vulnera b“ity Assessment *Parcels intersecting A or V zones counted within flood zone.
** Values based on 2021 Wellfleet Assessors data

Parcels and Buildings in Hazard Areas FEMA Flood Insurance Rate Maps (FIRM), version 2019 used

Parcels Buildings
: #in " e Building Value % in
Tﬁ\l/\r/]n Hazard &) |r)\lr-|eaaiard TOt?/Ia?L:J;Lemg in Hazard Hazard
Area* Area**

Banks 2 1 50% $1,155,800 $880,500 76%
Church/Non-Profit Offices 186 123 66% $10,349,700 $2,023,000 20%
Emergency Response 3 - 0% $4,828,600 $0 0%
Entertainment and 18 10 56% $395,700 $228,600 58%
Recreation \
General Services 64 26 41% $19,335,900 $4,999,500 26%
Heavy Industrial 4 1 25% ' $0 $0 0%
Medical Office/Clinic 4 2 50% $6,135,000 $5,059,100 82%
Multi-family Dwelling 305 9 31% $178,481,200 $70,947,300 40%
Personal/Repair Services 2 - 0% $298,600 $0 0%
Retail Trade 29 10 34% $6,333,200 $2,361,400 37%
Single Family Dwelling 3,125 845 27% $867,628,400 $255,296,900 29%
Temporary Lodging 20 7 35% $10201,700  $3,453,200 34%
Theaters 1 1 100% $335 200 $335,200 100%
Vacant 1224 417 34% $1,535,000 26%
Wholesale Trade 8 4 50% $1,533,600 $346,200 23%
‘Water or ' ROWs 42 20 48% $0 $0
TOTALS: 5,037 1,561 31% $1,113,036,700 $347,465,900 3%

Table 4.1| The number of parcels and value of buildings values located in A or V zone. Table generated using 2021 Wellfleet Assessing
Data.



.CHAPTEF“_ 4: Vulnerabillty Assessmant WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

Parcels and Buildings Vulnerable to Sea Level Rise

Sea Level Rise 1- Foot  Sea Level Rise 2-Feet Sea Level Rise 3-Feet

Parcel Value of Parcel Value of Parcel Value of
Type of Use i - o

Count Buildings Count Buildings Count Buildings
Banks 0 $0 ] %0 1 $880,500
Church/Non-Profit Offices 104 $2,023,000 11 $2,309,800 119 $2,309;806
Emergency Response 0 $0 0 $0 o $0
Entertainment and Recreation 10 $228,600 10 $228,600 10 $228,600
General Services 20 $4,317,800 22 $4,693,200 23 $4,933,400
Heavy Industrial 0 ' $0 0 %0 0 %0
Medical Office/Clinic 0 $0 0 $0 0 $0
Multi-family Dwelling 69 $53,876,500 77 $56,024,000 90 $60,167,900
f’érsonai)ﬁépair Services 0 $0 0 $0 1 $1 45,609 ;
Retail Trade 9 $1,750,500 10 $2,160,900 10 $2,160,900
single Family Dwelling 510 $160,927,300 617  $193,740,200 717 $220,610,500
Temporary Lodging 4 $2,246,000 6 $3,060,000 6 £ $3,060,000
Theaters 0 $0 | 0 $0 1 $335,200
Vacant 373 $1,317,000 414 $1,455,400 461 $1,455,400
Water or ROWs 18 18 21
Wholesale Trade 2 $136,000 2 $136,000 2 $136,000
TOTALS: 1,119 $226,822,700 1,287 $263,308,100 1,462 $296,423,800

Table 4.2 | The number of parcels and value of buildings exposed to sea level rise. Table generated using 2021 Wellfleet Assessing Data



WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

CHAPTER 4 Vuinefability Assessment

Table 4.2 The number of parcels and value of buildings exposed to sea level rise. Table generated using 2021 Wellfleet Assessing Data

Sea Level Rise 4-Feet

Sea Level Rise 5-Feet

Sea Level Rise 6-Feet

Parcel Value of Parcel Value of Parcel Value of
Type of Use . _ —

— Cot Buildings satint Buildings | Count Buildings
Banks 1 $880,500 1 $880,500 1 $880,500
Church/Non-Profit Offices 123 $2,309,800 125 $2,309,800 128 $2,309,800
Emergency Response 0 $0 0 $0 0 $0
Entertainment and Recreation 10 $228,600 10 $228,600 10 $228,600
General Services 27 3;317732@6 27 §§:347;i66 29 $§,§1'6‘,§d(’)m
Heavy Industrial 1 $0 1 $0 1 $0
Medicai Off—icelcrii‘ni'c 0 $0 0 $0 0 $0
Multi-family Dwelling 98 $62,940,600 104 $72,310,200 114 $79,871,300
Personal/Repair Services 1 $145,600 1 $145,600 1 $145,600
Retail Trade 11 $2,255,600 12 $3,038,200 12 $3,038,200
single Family Dwelling 796 $242,639,900 871 $262,298,600 954 $282,456,000
Temporary Lodging 6 $3,060,000 6 $3,060,000 7 $3,963,600
Theaters 1 $335,200 1 $335,200 1 $335,200
Vacant 0 $0 509 $1,535,000 541 $2,396,400
Water or RbWs 484 $i,§35,606 24 28 Eﬁ‘
Wholesale Trade 23 4 $346,200 4 $346,200
TOTALS: 1,582 $321,678,000 1,696 $351,835,100 1,831 $381,487,900




CWTER_&:VuInerabllity Assessment WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

Parcels and Buildings Vulnerable to Hurricanes

Table 4.3 | The number of parcels and value of buildings vulnerable to hurricanes. Table generated using 2021 Wellfleet Assessing Data.

Sea Level Rise Sea Level Rise Sea Level Rise Sea Level Rise
1-Foot 2-Feet 3-Feet 4-Feet
Type of Use Parcel Value of Parcel Value of Parcel Value of Parcel Value of
Count Buildings Count Buildings Count Buildings Count Buildings

Banks 0 $0 1 $880,500 1 $880,500 | 1 $880,500
Church/Non-Profit 79 $1 ,432,0(7)70 108 $1,463,600 120 $1,463,600 128 $2,532,500
Offices
Entertainment and ] $228,600 10 $228,600 10 $228,600 10 $228,600
Recreation
General Services 15 $2,823,500 21 $4,139,300 24 $4,507,900 25 $4,507,900
ﬁei_wy Industrial 0 $0 1 $0 2 $0 2 $0 |
Medical 0 $0 $0 1 $755,000 2 $5,059,100
Office/Clinic
Multi-family 50 $45,781,800 7 $53,486,400 20 $65,674,700 106 $76,618,600
Dwelling
Personal/Repair 0 $0 0 $0 0 $0 1 $153,000
Services
RetallTrade s waseo| 8 Sesioo| 1z sieksso|  w i
single Family 348 $113,507,000 576  $184,878,000 792 $241,716,900 934 $279,928,400
Dwelling
Temporarylodging | 4 wepos| & sackoono| 7 saszo| 8 saoesem
Theaters 0 $0 0 $0 1 $335,200 1 $335,200
VigrE 29 1091200 38 $1317000| 37 $1535000| 405 $1,535000
Wholesale Trade 1 © $136,000 2 $136,000 4 © $346,200 4 ' $346,200

Total 733 $168,730,200 1,112 $251,073,500 1,431 $323,760,300 1,642 $379,241,600




WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan CHAPTER 4: Vulng_rability Assessment

Parcels and Buildings Vulnerable to Shoreline Change

Location i# of Parcels Building Value
Not Egastal 4,001 5884,243,400
Coastal 1,036 $228,793,300

Parcel Geometry and Assessed Building Values From WeIIeret Fiscal Year 2021 Assessor

Table 4.4 | The number of parcels and value of buildings on parcels that share a physicat boundary with sea water. If a parcel shares a
boundary with sea water, it is assumed to be vulnerable to coastal hazards such as shoreline change and erosion.

Exposure Assessment of Critical Facilities by the Planning Team

Table 4.5 | Exposure Assessment for Critical Facilities.

i Hurricane Catego _Sea L] Flood Coastal
Faciliay for Flooding (SL?DS?:) i (feet) for zone? Parcel?
flooding

Bakers Field Recreation 3 5 AE N
B_eagh Sticker House 3 4 AE Y
Boy Scout Welis None None No N
Breakwater 1 1 \(E Y
Brldge to Lieutenant Island 2 1 VE Y
Cahoon Hdllow Town Landing NQ“? None rj_lo Y
Cole's Neck Wéllf‘eld » None None No N
Councﬂjm ﬁglng (senlor center) AN»qr_\’e None No N
Deparfmentaf Public Works None None No N
Fuel pu_rnps_and tanks (town owned) 3 5 VE Y
GuII'PSndibathroom None None No N
Gull Pond Landing None 4 No N
Harbormaster and Town Pier 3 6 AE Y
Harbormaster oﬁge 3 6 AE Y
Herrlng River Dike (éhequessett Neck Road Dike) 4 None AE Y



CHAPTER 4: Vulnerability Assessment WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

Facility Hurrican-e Category Ri::?f:::cl)eflor Flood Coastal
for Flooding (SLOSH) A zone? Parcel?
flooding

Maguire Landing None None No N
National Seashore Headquarters None None No Y
National Seashore Pump House None None No Y
National Seashore Water Tower None None No Y
Newcomb Hollow (town landing) None None No Y
Outer Cape Health None None No N
Police Station None None No N
Preservation Hall None None No N
Shellfish Department 3 5 VE Y
Town Hall ' None None No N
Town owned water tower None None Mo N
Transfer Station ) None None No N
Welifleet Apartments (Wellfleet Housing e o Nb N
Authority)

Welilﬂéel':WEIementary School None None No N
Wellfieet Fire Department None None No N
Wellfleet Library k None None No N
Wesley Swamp Pump None None No N
White Crest Town landing None None No i



WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

I3 Vulnerable Populations

Below is a description of segments of the population who
are vulnerable to the impacts of natural hazard events:”®

Coastal Erosion: Coastal erosion is not generally
considered an imminent threat to public safety because
shoreline changes are gradual over several years.
However, drastic changes to the shoreline may occurin a
single storm event which can cause immediate threat to
homes and public safety.

Culvert Failure: All populations in a culvert failure
inundation zone would be exposed to the risk of culvert
failure. The potential for loss of life is affected by the
capacity and number of evacuation routes available to
populations living in areas of potential inundation.

Earthquake: All of Wellfleet is potentially exposed to
direct and indirect impacts from earthquakes. The degree
of exposure is dependent on many factors, including the
age and construction type of dwelling structures, soil
types in which homes are constructed, proximity to fault
locations, etc. Time of day also exposes different sectors
of the community to the hazard.

Wwildland and Urban Fire: As demonstrated by historical
urban and wildfire events, potential losses include human
health and life of residents and responders. The most
vulnerable populations include the elderly, children, and
mobility challenged as well as emergency responders and

Massachusetts State Hazard Mitigation Plan, 2013.

| CHAPTER £ Vulnerability Assessment

those within a short distance of the interface between the
built environment and the wildland environment.

Flooding: The impact of flooding on life, health, and safety
is dependent upon several factors including the severity of
the event and whether adequate warning time is provided
to residents. Exposure includes the population living in or
near floodplain areas that could be impacted. Exposure
includes not only those who reside in a defined hazard
zone, but also others who may be affected by a hazard
event (e.g., risk while traveling in flooded areas, or
compromised access to emergency services during an
event). The degree of such impacts will vary and is not
strictly measurable. Of the population exposed, the most
vulnerable include the economically disadvantaged and
population over the age of 65. Those over the age of 65
are vulnerable because they are more likely to seek or
need medical attention, which may not be available due to
isolation during a flood event. They also may have more
difficulty evacuating.

Hurricanes and Tropical Storms: The impact of a
hurricane or tropical storm on life, health and safety is
dependent upon several factors including the severity of
the event and whether residents receive adequate
warning time. It is assumed that the entire population of
Barnstable County is exposed to this hazard. Residents
may be displaced or require temporary to long-term
sheltering. In addition, downed trees, damaged buildings,
and debris carried by high winds can lead to injury or loss



of life. Socially vulnerable populations are most
susceptible, based on a number of factors including their
physical and financial ability to react or respond during a
hazard and the location and construction quality of their
housing. Of the population exposed, the most vulnerable
include the economically disadvantaged and population
over the age of 65. Those over the age of 65 are
vulnerable because they are more likely to seek or need
medical attention, which may not be available due to
isolation during a flood event. They also may have more
difficulty evacuating.

Landslides: it is difficult to determine demographics of
populations vulnerable to landslides.

Nor'easters: The impact of a nor'easter on life, health and
safety is dependent upon several factors including the
severity of the event and whether residents received
adequate warning time. All of Provincetown's population is
exposed to this hazard (wind and rain/snow). The most
vulnerable include the economically disadvantaged and
population over the age of 65. Those over the age of 65
are vulnerable because they are more likely to seek or
need medical attention, which may not be available due to
isolation during a flood event. They also may have more
difficulty evacuating.

Severe Weather (wind, thunderstorms, tornadoes,
extreme temperatures, drought): For the purposes of this
plan, the entire population of Wellfleet is exposed to
severe weather events. Residents may be displaced or
require temporary to long-term sheltering from these
weather events. In addition, downed trees, damaged
buildings and debris carried by high winds can lead to

'CHAPTER 4 Vulnerability Assessment

injury or loss of life. Socially vulnerable populations are
most susceptible, based on a number of factors including
their physical and financial ability to react or respond
during a hazard and the location and construction quality
of their housing. Vulnerable populations include the
elderly, low income or linguistically isolated populations,
people with life-threatening ilinesses, and residents living
in areas that are isolated from major roads. Power
outages can be life threatening to those dependent on
electricity for life support. Isolation of these populations is
a significant concern. These populations face isolation and
exposure during severe weather events and could suffer
more secondary effects of the hazard.

Severe Winter Weather (snow, blizzards and ice);
According to NOAA's National Severe Storms Laboratory,
winter weather indirectly and deceptively kills hundreds of
people in the U.S. every year, primarily from automobile
accidents, overexertion and exposure. Winter storms are
often accompanied by strong winds, creating blizzard
conditions with blinding wind-driven snow, drifting snow
and extreme cold temperatures with dangerous wind
chills. These storms are considered deceptive killers
because most deaths and other impacts or losses are
indirectly related to the storm. Injuries and fatalities may
occur due to traffic accidents on icy roads, heart attacks
while shoveling snow or hypothermia from prolonged
exposure to cold.

Heavy snow can immobilize a region and paralyze a town,
shutting down its transportation network, stopping the
flow of supplies, and disrupting medical and emergency
services. The elderly are considered most susceptible due

WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Pian



WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

to their increased risk of injury and death from falls and
overexertion and/or hypothermia from attempts to clear
snow and ice, or related to power failures. In addition,
severe winter weather events can reduce the ability of
these populations to access emergency services.
Residents with low incomes may lack access to housing or
their housing may be less able to withstand cold
temperatures (e.g., homes with poor insulation and
heating supply).

Tsunami: It is difficult to determine demographics of
populations vulnerable to tsunamis.

Summary of Vulnerable
Infrastructure

Below is a description of Wellfleet infrastructure that is
vulnerable to the impacts of natural hazard events:

s Commercial Street in downtown area is low lying
and vulnerable to flooding.

o Bridge to Lieutenant Island is vulnerable to
flooding; it is inundated at high tide

e Mayo Creek culvert near the town pieris
vulnerable to flooding

« Blackfish Creek cuivert on Route 6 is vulnerable to
flooding.

e Box culvert on West Road is compromised

74 htt i www.capecodcommic - noor: ‘our-work fow-lLin_-roads-project

CHAPTER 4: Vulnerabiiity Assessment

+ Fresh Brook Creek culvert on Route 6 is is
vulnerable to flooding

« Town landings at Burton Baker Beach and Paine
Hollow are vulnerable to flooding

« 0Old Wharf Road is critical for shellfishing and
vulnerable to flooding

« Beach access points and parking lots at Cahoon
Hollow, Maguire's Landing, Newcomb Hollow and
White Crest Beach are vulnerable to coastal
erosion.

« Herring River culvert/Chequessett Neck Road
dike is vuinerable to flooding. The structure is
being replaced to withstand sea level rise and past
storms of record with a more compliant tide gate
system that will allow a full restoration of Herring
River.

Recent studies to address vuilnerable infrastructure:

The Town of Wellfleet has undertaken several studies and
projects since the 2016 Hazard Mitigation Plan to address
flooding impacts in the community. These include the
2019 MVP Workshop, a Coastal Resiliency grant to address
intermunicipal shoreline management, and a 2021-2023
MVP Low Lying Roads Project (currently underway),”
among others. The Town is also working with MassDOT to
see how Route 6 flooding issues might be addressed in
the state’s 2023 Route 6 resurfacing project.



Mitigation
Strategy

CHAPTER FIVE




Chapter 2 profiles specific hazards that could
affect Wellfleet and Chapter 4 assesses the
losses that could result from hazard events.
The next step in the hazard planning process
is to identify actions to reduce risk and
lossof life and to develop ways to implement

these actions. This so-called "Mitigation
Strategy” determines broad goals and
outlines specific actions for the next five
years. Chapter 5 outlines a hazard
mitigation strategy for the Townof
Welifleet for the next five years.




CHAPTER S: Mitigation Strategy

Mitigation Goals

Mitigation goals are broad guidelines that articulate
Wellfleet's desire to protect people and structures, reduce
the cost of disaster response and recovery, and minimize
disruption to the community following adisaster.”

Mitigation Goals for the 2022 Wellfleet Hazard Mitigation
Plan are:

e Reduce the potential for loss of life, property,
infrastructure, and environmental, cultural and
economic resources in Wellfleet from natural
disasters.

¢ Mitigate financial losses incurred by municipal,
residential, industrial, agricultural and commercial
establishments due to natural hazards.

s Reduce the damage to public infrastructure
resultingfrom natural hazards to critical facilities
including roadways and culverts, the town pier,
shellfishing facilities, and drinking water facilities.

e Competitively position the Town to seek and apply
for funding opportunities to implement the actions
identified in the Wellfleet Hazard Plan.

s Ensure that mitigation measures are sensitive to
the natural features, historic resources, and
community character of Wellfleet.

75 FEMA How-to Guide 3: Developing the Mitigation Plan: Identifying mitigation actions and
implementation strategies, FEMA 386-3, April 2003

¢ Communicate local hazard mitigation planning
activities with Barnstable County, Outer Cape
Towns, Cape Cod National Seashore, neighboring
towns and the Massachusetts Emergency
Management Agency.

« Increase public awareness of existing hazards and
encourage hazard mitigation planning as part of
theoverall municipal planning process.

s Restore salt marshes to increase flood storage, and
functionality of degraded wetlands

Mitigation Actions

Mitigation actions are any action, process or project
designed to reduce or eliminate long term risk from
natural hazards. These mitigation actions are developed
by the Planning Team and must be consistent with the
vulnerability and risk assessment performed in Chapter 4
and with the priorities of the Town of Wellfleet.

Below is a description of how the Planning Team
developed the Mitigation Actions section of the 2022
Wellfleet Hazard Mitigation Plan:

e Progress Determination on Mitigation Actions in 2016:
The Planning Team assigned a status to each mitigation
action in the 2016 Hazard Mitigation Plan and explained
whether the action was completed, an existing capability,
in progress, deferred, or deleted {See Table 5.1).

WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan



WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

s Future Mitigation Actions for the 2022 Hazard Mitigation
Plan Update: The list contains new mitigation actions
based on the Vulnerability and Risk Assessment in Chapter
4, MVP actions, and other considerations; and “In
Progress” and continued actions identified in Table 5.1
were carried forward into the 2022 Mitigation Actions list

o Capability Assessment: The Team reviewed and
revised the Capability Assessment from the 2016
Hazard Mitigation Plan. Also, any action designated
as an “existing capability” in Table 5.7 was carried
over to the Capability Assessment. (Table 5.2)

P90 Progress Determination on
Mitigation Actions since 2016

Before identifying new Mitigation Actions for the 2022
Hazard Plan, the Planning Team discussed the status of
the mitigation actions in the 2016 Wellfleet Hazard
Mitigation Plan and assigned one of the following status
determinations to each mitigation action:

* Complete: The project was implemented and
completed in 2016 - 2021.

o Existing Capability: The project was implemented
and completed in 2016 - 2021 and it will continue
to be implemented on an annual basis in the
future. These action items are also identified in the
capability assessment (Table 5.7).

* InProgress: The project was started in the 2016 -
2021 timeframe and it is still in progress.

Deferred: The project is important, but it was
deferred because there was no funding available or
it is not feasible to complete the project.

Deleted: The project is no longer relevant to the
community.



CHAPTER 5: Mitigation Strategy

WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

Table 5.1| Progress Determination on 2016 Mitigation Actions

All Hazards

All Hazards

All Hazards

Responsible
Department

Harbormaster,
DPW, Police, Fire

All

Police and Fire,
DPW

Action
Item
Number

Action Item Status

Continue to gather accurate data
on the location, history, extent
and impact of natural hazards in Capability
Wellfleet

Conduct an assessment of local
infrastructure that is subject to
damage from flooding or storm
surge or that is likely to cause
damage to surrounding areas
should it fail or flood. Develop,
prioritize and seek funding for
a list of needed infrastructure
improvement projects.

In Progress

Seek an alternate or emergency
traffic route for travel over
Blackfish Creek in the event that
Route 6 is compromised

in Progress

Ongoing/Existing

Explanation

Participated in Center for Coastal Studies
Stormtides Pathways study that identifies
coastal inundation areas. Ongoing work with
CZM and other regional partners will continue.

Roadways are currently being assessed in
two grants, one MVP and the CZM Coastal
Resiliency Grant. Working with CZM and CCC
on a Low lying roads grant for FY 2021, in
conjunction with Health Agent. Add beach
parking lots for future assessment, Mayo
Creek, Hs Pond, Chequessett Neck Rd dike.?

Have made MassDOT aware of this to see if
they can incorporate into their design for the
Pavement Preservation Project for Federal
fiscal year 2023. They will also lock at other
areas along Route 6 that are identified as
within the 100-year flood event. Still need to
look for alternate route up to West Road.
Worked with CCNS, legislative delegation to
look for emergency route alternative should
Route 6 be closed. NPS land not an option.
Perhaps create new action item for 2022 to
pursue other alternatives.



WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

Action
Item Action Item Status Explanation
Number

Responsible
Department

Hazard Type

Through our consultant Contec, we applied
for a BRIC {Building Resilient infrastructure

Investigate utilizing the Senior Communities) through MEMA/FEMA. We
Police and Fire, Center as a shelter; this will were not successful because they wouldn't
All Hazards DPW 4 reguire rewiring for a Completed view the building as a shelter. Regional
generator and wind shudders shelter program shut down the discussion,
on the windows. no locat shelters. Add new action to

investigate using COA as a warming/cooling
center during extreme temperature events,

Continue to coordinate with the
Local Emergency Planning
Committee, Barnstable County
Regional Emergency Planning
All Hazards H‘ealth, Palice and 5 Committee, Cape Cod National OngoirlglExisting
Fire Seashore, Massachusetts Capability
Department of Transportation
(i.e. salt, sand, sheltering
equipment, manpower, message
boards)

This is ongoing. BREPC and HAC meet
regularly to discuss emergency preparedness
planning. We conduct drills, exercises, and real
life events according to our emergency
management plans.



CHAPTER S: Mitigation Strategy WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

Action
Item Action item Status Explanation
Number

Responsible
Department

Hazard Type

Distribute educational
brochures, put up signs, post
on social media about
emergency services and natural
hazards likely to affect the town
i.e, storm surge, urban
flooding, coastal erosion,

All Hazards All 6 nor'easters and winter storms.
This outreach is specifically for
the general public, visitors and
tourists. When visitors and
tourists need emergency
services, they often do not
know how to successfully
access those services.

This has been done and is ongoing through
town website. DPW also posts on website
and is looking into creating a Facebook page.

Ongoing/Existing  Police dept. uses message board , social

Capability media, civic ready. Health and Conservation
Department shares a Facebook page with the
Truro Health & Conservation Department
and disseminates relevant information.

Purchase variable message

All Hazards Police and Fire 7 Completed Done/accomplished.
boards for the town
Obtain a town specific
emergency notification system
and conduct public outreach to
Increase the number of Completed. Increasing number of
All Hazards Police 8 subscribers. This action will Completed subscribers or system enhancement could be
enhance communication to new action

residents and vulnerable
populations before, during and
after hazard events



WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

Action
Item Action Item
Number

Responsible
Department

Hazard Type

Seek funding opportunities to

ine/Existi
All Hazards All 9 reduce Wellfleet's vulnerability to Ongouig/ xisting
Capability
natural hazards

Update the Continuity of

Operations Plan for the Town

of Wellfleet to ensure that

ts i
All Hazards Al 10 e e El e Completed

town are aware of the Chain of
Command and know who to
call and where to go in the case
.of a hazard event.

Continue planning efforts and
playing a role in sheltering on

All Hazards Police and Fire 11 Cape Cod, inter-municipal and
intra-municipal communications
and shared services

Ongoing/Existing
Capability

Explanation

Herring River restoration project underway.
Phase 1 final construction plans and bid specs.
Town was awarded Low lying roads project
grants. DPW is working with Cape Cod
Conservation District to compile stormwater,
fish passage and saltmarsh work remaining.
Hope to have this done by the end of the year
as part of our overall Cape Cod Water
Resources. The CZM Coastal Resiliency Grant
is addressing some of the environmental and
infrastructure issues in a broad sense. Action
grants will be needed in the future to carry out
identified solutions. Also ConsComm has draft
regs for coastal development and used DLTA
funding award to develop draft floodplain
bylaw.

Former ATA compiled the entire towns COOP
plan. The DPW updated theirs for COVID, but
should continue on working on other types
of hazards

PD and COA continue to do this. Considering
COA as warming/cooling station.



CHAPTER 5: Mitigation Strategy WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

Responsibie Betlon
P Item Action Item Status Explanation

Hazard Type Departmant

Number

Monitor critical facilities to
ensure that they are protected Ongaing DPW is looking into Facility

All Hazards All 12 from the effects of natural Ongolr.w'g/Emstlng Management software that could be a good
X Capability .
hazards to the maximum tool for this.
extent possible,
Reduce the number of power
outages in town during a hazard
event by educating the public
about tree trimming, maintaining DPW is in constant communication with
All Hazards DPW 13 atree trimming program/ Ongoi?.g/Existing Evers.ource ?n thei.r management plan.
vegetation management plan. Capability Consider using social media for
Also communicate with communications/education.
Eversource about utility pole
infrastructure, maintenance, and
vegetation management.
Evaluate the generators at the
Palice and Fire Stations to
ensure that the current
generator at the Fire
Department can handie the New Palice Dept building & new generator,
All Hazards Police and Fire, 14 |oa'd <.:f the Police Department o FD is oversized for the facil.ity and th.e COA
DPW buitding. Purchase a new doesn't need one because its not going to be
generator for the Police a shelter.

Department if appropriate and
then move the existing
generator to the Council on

Aging



WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

Action
ltem Action Item Status
Number

Responsible
Department

Hazard Type

Explanation

All Hazards

All Hazards

Flooding,
Hurricanes,
Tropical Storms,
Severe Winter
Weather,
Nor'easters

Flooding,
Shoreline
Change,
Hurricanes,
Tropical
Storms,
Nor‘easters

All

Fire, DPW

All

16

17

18

Obtain better communication

equipment (i.e. portable radios,

mobile terminals) for emergency Completed
personnel to use during a hazard

event

Obtain more resources and
personne! for the Department
of Public Works and the Fire
Department

Capability

Educate the public about MEMA's
“Know Your Zone"” Campaign and Completed
sheltering in place

Conduct public outreach within
the community about
relocating or building a new
shellfish building outside the
floodplain

In progress

Ongoing/Existing

PD and FD received a grant to upgrade radios.
Beach department got repeaters for beach
emergencies. Beach and Harbormaster need
to upgrade to digital. DPW existing radio
system is fully functional and adequate for our
current services. Consider new action to
upgrade Beach & Harbormaster equipment.

Add the PD, Marina, Conservation/Health to
the list for 2022 action item.

Town continues to educate public on MEMA
programs, but this program isn't active.

Ongoing discussions with the Shellfish
department, | believe they added this to their
capital plan for FY 2023



) Action
Responsible
Hazard Type Department Item
Number
Flooding,
Shoreline
Change,

. All 19
Hurricanes,

Tropical Storms,
Nor'easters

Flooding,
Shoreline
Change,
Hurricanes,
Tropical
Storms, Severe
Winter
Weather,
Nor'easters

Police and Fire,

DPW 2

Flooding,
Shoreline
Change,
Hurricanes,
Tropical Storms,
Nor'easters

All 21

CHAPTER 5: Mitigation Strategy WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

Status

Explanation

Action Item

Evaluate the impact of natural
hazard events on Title V
infrastructure and consider
alternatives (i.e. sewering)

Ongoing/Existing  Ongoing in the development of our watershed
Capability permit

Develop a debris management
pian for the town of Welifleet
or coordinate with the
Barnstable County Regional
Emergency Planning
Committee about a regional
debris management plan. A
debris management plan
would include information on
the amount, type and disposal
of demolition debris, storm
debris, and hazardous waste.
Also the plan would identify
sites for sorting, chipping and
transporting the debris after
the hazard event

Good idea worth reconsideration - perhaps

T
Refered for future action item.

Completed draft floodplain zoning
revisions/regs updates. Working with
Barnstable County Coop Extension on CRS
program.

Improve Wellfieet's Class in the
Community Ranking System to at
least a Class 8

Ongoing/Existing
Capability



WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Pian

Responsible Rerion
P Item Action item Explanation
Department
Number

Flooding,

Shoreline

Change, Administration,

Update the harb D as of Jan 2021. Alsa ¢ leted pond
Hurricanes, Harbormaster and 22 PP R Completed R85 OLEn 202150 complEEap
¥ management plan management plan.

Tropical Marina

Storms,

Nor'easters
Flooding,

) 8 Replace the current docks at the
Shoreline X .
marina with wooden docks. The
Change, . .
; current dock system is degrading
Hurricanes, Harbormaster and . . -
. . 23 during the winter months and In Progress This is 75% compiete
Tropical Storms, Marina .
. the docks are challenging to
Severe Winter o
remave and maintain in the even

Weather, of an emergen

Nor'easters gency

Flooding,

Shoreline

Change,

Hurricanes, Continue to monitor assets that T Ee Ongoing, as mentioned above - this action is
Tropical DPW 24 are vuinerable to the effects of Ca gability J a good candidate for Facility Management
Storms, Severe climate change B software tracking (Similar to Action #2)
Winter

Weather,

Nor'easters

Table 5.1 | | st ol 2016



CHAPTER 5: Mitigation Strategy

Mitigation Actions for the 2022
Hazard Plan

This section of the plan is the most dynamic because grant
funding and staff capabilities and capacity influence
viability of proposed actions. This section will be updated
to ensure that it remains consistent with current Town
priorities. The mitigation actions are in no particular order.

The Planning Team created a prioritization ranking for the
Mitigation Actions. Several variables factor into
development of actions and priority designation:

Life Safety/Social:

How effective is the action at protecting lives and
preventing injuries?

If the action is to improve structures/infrastructure,
will it also protect lives and prevent injury?

Will the action affect one segment of the
population more than another?

Will the action disrupt the community in any way?
(i.e. impact emergency service routes, break up
neighborhoods)

Property Protection:

Will the action eliminate or reduce damage to
structures and infrastructure? If so, how?

What are the secondary impacts of the mitigation
action?

Does it solve a problem or a symptom of the
problem?

Technical/Legal/Environmental/ Administrative:

Is the mitigation action technically feasible based
on Wellfleet's current capabilities?

Is the action a long or short-term solution?

What are the benefits of the project? What are the
costs?

Does the action support Wellfleet's Mitigation
Goals?

Does Wellfleet have the authority to implement the
action? If not, who does?

Is the action consistent with town values and other
planning projects?

What are the environmental impacts of the action?
Does it comply with environmental regulations?

Political/Local Champion:

Is there political support to implement and
maintain the action?

Does the public support the mitigation action?

Is there a strong advocate for the action?

The Priority designations for 2022 Mitigation
Actions (high, medium, low) are based on the
following factors:

High Priority: town will begin or complete these
projects within three years.

Medium Priority: own will begin or complete these
projects within four years.

Low Priority: town will begin or complete these
projects within five years.

WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan



WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

2022 Mitigation Actions Table 5.2 | Hazard Mitigation Actions

The following is a list of project/actions recommended by "
the Planning Team. The list identifies Responsibility, All Hazards

Funding, and a Time Frame for each. The actions will begin = A F
once the plan is approved and the community is eligible Mitigation Action #1

for funding, unless otherwise stated, and will be Continue to gather data on the location, history, extent and
completed in the amount of time as noted in the impact of natural hazards in Wellfleet

“Duration” section. The list also identifies relevant town
plans and Hazard Mitigation Plan goals addressed for

each action. Project Type: Responsible Dept:
Data Collection Harbormaster, DPW, Police,
Fire
Funding Source(s): Timeframe:
Town Staff Budget/<$50K Annual, ongoing

Consistency With Mitigation Goals:

Competitively position the Town to seek and apply for
funding opportunities to implement the Wellfleet Hazard
Plan.

Consistency With Other Town Plans:

LCP

Carried forward Priority: H




CHAPTER 5: Mitigation Strategy WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

Flooding All Hazards

Mitigation Action #2 Mitigation Action #3

Conduct an assessment of local infrastructure that is Work with MassDOT on the future Route 6 resurfacing

subject to damage from flooding or storm surge or that is project to provide safe travel over Blackfish Creek in the

likely to cause damage to surrounding areas shouid it fail or event that the road is compromised.

flood. Develop, prioritize and seek funding for a list of

needed infrastructure improvement projects. Project Type: Responsible Dept:
. . Mitigation Police and Fire , DPW

Project Type: Responsible Dept: :

Planning All Funding Source(s): Timeframe:

FEMA HMA grants (25% local 3 years

Funding Source(s): Timeframe: match), Federal Highway
FEMA HMA grants (25% local ~ Annual, ongoing Administration grants,
match), CZM grants, $50-100K

<$100,000

. Consistency With Mitigation Goals:
Consistency With Mitigation Goals: y e

Reduce the potential for loss of life, property,
infrastructure, and environmental, cultural and economic
resources in Wellfleet from natural disasters; Competitively
position the Town to seek and apply for funding
opportunities to implement the Wellfleet Hazard Plan

Reduce the potential for loss of life, property,
infrastructure, and environmental, cultural and economic
resources in Wellfieet from natural disasters; Competitively
position the Town to seek and apply for funding
opportunities to implement the Wellfleet Hazard Plan

Consistency With Other Town Plans:
Consistency With Other Town Plans: y

CEMP

ok In Progress / Carried forward (as Priority: M
Carried forward Priority: H modified)

CEMP




WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

All Hazards All Hazards

Mitigation Action #4 Mitigation Action #5
Continue to coordinate with the Local Emergency Planning Distribute educational brochures, put up signs, post on
Committee, Barnstable County Regional Emergency social media about emergency services and natural hazards
Planning Committee, Cape Cod National Seashore, likely to affect the town i.e. storm surge, urban flooding,
Massachusetts Department of Transportation (i.e, for salt, coastal erosion, nor'easters and winter storms.This
sand, sheltering, equipment, manpower, message boards outreach is specifically for the general public, visitors and
needs) tourists. When visitors and tourists need emergency
services, they often do not know how to successfully access

Project Type: Responsible Dept: those services.
Outreach/Plannin Health, Police, and Fire . .

B Project Type: Responsible Dept:
Funding Source(s): Timeframe: Outreach All

Town Staff Budget, < $50,000 Annual, ongoing Funding Source(s): Timeframe:

. . . . Town Staff Budget, < $50,000 Annual, ongoing
Consistency With Mitigation Goals:

Communicate local hazard mitigation planning activities
with Barnstable County, Outer Cape Towns, Cape Cod
National Seashore, and the Massachusetts Emergency Increase public awareness of existing hazards and
Management Agency. encourage hazard mitigation planning as part of the overall
municipal planning process.

Consistency With Mitigation Goals:

Consistency With Other Town Plans:
Consistency With Other Town Plans:

CEMP

CEMP
Carried forward Priority: H
Carried forward Priority: H




CHAPTER 5: Mitigation Strategy WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

All Hazards All Hazards

Mitigation Action #6 Mitigation Action #7
Seek funding opportunties to reduce Welifleet's Continue planning efforts and playing a role in sheltering
vulnerability to natural hazards on Cape Cod, inter-municipal and intra-municipal
communications and shared services
Project e: Responsible Dept: . .
/ Typ P P Project Type: Responsible Dept:
Planning All .
Planning Police and Fire
Funding Source(s): Timeframe: . .
9 (s) Funding Source(s): Timeframe:

FEMA HMA grants (25% local  Annual, ongoing
match), CZM grants,
$100,000 +

FEMA HMA grants (25% local ~ Annual, ongoing
match), Town Staff Budget, <
$50,000

Consistency With Mitigation Goals: . . e .
onsis y ™9 Consistency With Mitigation Goals:

Reduce the potential for loss of life, property,
infrastructure, and environmental, cultural and economic
resources in Wellfleet from natural disasters

Increase public awareness of existing hazards and
encourage hazard mitigation planning as part of the overall
municipal planning process.

istency With Other T :
Conslstency ‘With Other Town Plans Consistency With Other Town Plans:

LCP, MVP

CEMP
Carried forward Priority: H S
Carried forward Priority: H




WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

All Hazards

Mitigation Action #8

Monitor critical facilities to ensure that they are protected
from the effects of natural hazards to the maximum extent
possible.

Project Type: Responsible Dept:

Planning All

Funding Source(s): Timeframe:

FEMA HMA grants (25% local  Annual, ongoing
match), Town Staff Budget, <
$50,000

Consistency With Mitigation Goals:

Increase public awareness of existing hazards and
encourage hazard mitigation planning as part of the overall
municipal planning process; Reduce the potential for loss of
life, property, infrastructure, and environmental, cultural
and economic resources in Wellfleet from natural disasters

Consistency With Other Town Plans:
LCP, CEMP

Carried forward

All Hazards

Mitigation Action #9

Reduce the number of power outages in town during a
hazard event by educating the public about tree trimming,
maintaining a tree trimming program/ vegetation
management plan. Also communicate with Eversource
about utility pole infrastructure, maintenance, and
vegetation management.

Project Type: Responsible Dept:
Preparedness, DPW

Planning and Outreach

Funding Source(s): Timeframe:

Town Staff Budget, < $50,000 Annual ongoing

Consistency With Mitigation Goals:

Increase public awareness of existing hazards and
encourage hazard mitigation planning as part of the overall
municipal planning process.

Consistency With Other Town Plans:

LCP

Carried forward




CHAPTER 5: Mitigation Strategy WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

All Hazards Flooc.:llng, Shoreline Change, Hurricanes,
Tropical Storms, Nor'easters

Mitigation Action #10 Mitigation Action #11
Obtain more resources and personnel for the Department Evaluate the impact of natural hazard events on Title 5
of Public Works, Police, Marina, Health/Conservation and infrastructure and consider alternatives (i.e. sewering)
the Fire Department
. . Project e: Responsible Dept:
Project Type: Responsible Dept: ) Typ N N
Planning All
Preparedness Fire, DPW
Funding Source(s): Timeframe:
Funding Source(s): Timeframe: )
Town Staff Budget, Annual, ongoing
Town Staff Budget, $100,000  Annual, ongoing $100,000+

+
Consistency With Mitigation Goals:

Consistency With Mitigation Goals: Reduce the potential for loss of life, property,

Increase public awareness of existing hazards and infrastructure, and environmental, cultural and economic
encourage hazard mitigation planning as part of the overall resources in Wellfleet from natural disasters

municipal planning process. . )
Consistency With Other Town Plans:

Consistency With Other Town Plans: LCP

CEMP Carried forward Priority: M
Carried forward Priority: M




WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

Flooding, Shoreline Change, Hurricanes,
Tropical Storms, Severe Winter Weather,
Nor'easters

Mitigation Action #12

Develop a debris management plan for the town of Welifleet
or coordinate with the Barnstable County Regional
Emergency Planning Committee about a regional debris
management plan. A debris management plan would include
information on the amount, type and disposal of demolition
debris, storm debris, and hazardous waste. Also the plan
would identify sites for sorting, chipping and transporting the
debris after the hazard event

Project Type: Responsible Dept:

Planning Police, Fire, DPW

Funding Source(s):

FEMA HMA grants (25% local IEmeirame:

match), Town Staff Budget, < 3years
$50,000

Consistency With Mitigation Goals:

Increase public awareness of existing hazards and
encourage hazard mitigation planning as part of the overall
municipal planning process.

Consistency With Other Town Plans:
CEMP

Flooding, Shoreline Change, Hurricanes,

Tropical Storms, Nor'easters

Mitigation Action #13

Improve Wellfleet's Class in the Community Ranking System
to at least a Class 8

Project Type: Responsible Dept:

Planning All

Funding Source(s): Timeframe:

Town Staff Budget, < $50,000 Annual/Ongoing

Consistency With Mitigation Goals:

Reduce the potential for loss of life, property,
infrastructure, and environmental, cultural and economic
resources in Wellfleet from natural disasters.

Consistency With Other Town Plans:

Carried forward / in progress

LCP

Carried forward (deferred)




Flooding, Shoreline Change, Hurricanes,

Tropical Storms, Severe Winter Weather,
Nor'easters

Mitigation Action #14

Replace the current docks at the marina with wooden
docks. The current dock system is degrading during the
winter months and the docks are challenging to remove
and maintain in the even of an emergency

Project Type: Responsible Dept:

Mitigation Harbormaster and Marina

Funding Source(s): Timeframe:

Town Staff Budget, $100,000 2 years

+

Consistency With Mitigation Goals:

Reduce the potential for loss of life, property,
infrastructure, and environmental, cultural and economic
resources in Wellfleet from natural disasters

Consistency With Other Town Plans:

Harbor Management Plan

Carried forward (75% complete) Priority: H

CHAPTER 5: Mitigation Strategy

Flooding, Shoreline Change, Hurricanes,
Tropical Storms, Severe Winter Weather,
Nor'easters

Mitigation Action #15

Continue to monitor assets that are vulnerable to the
effects of climate change

Project Type: Responsible Dept:

Outreach DPW

Funding Source(s): Timeframe:

Town Staff Budget, < $50,000 Annual/Ongoing

Consistency With Mitigation Goals:

Reduce the potential for loss of life, property,
infrastructure, and environmental, cultural and economic
resources in Wellfleet from natural disasters

Consistency With Other Town Plans:
LCP

Carried forward

Priority: H

WELLFLEET | Hazard Mijtigation Plan




WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

All Hazards All Hazards

Mitigation Action #16 Mitigation Action #17

Acquire a generator and rewire the Council on Aging (or Obtain digital communications equipment for
other public building) for use as cooling/heating station Harbormaster, DPW, and Beach Program
during hazard events, power outages, etc.

. i Project Type: Responsible Dept:
Project Type: Responsible Dept: J ye P N
. . Preparedness Harbormaster, DPW

Mitigation Police and Fire , DPW,
Council on Aging Funding Source(s): Timeframe:
Funding Source(s): Timeframe: Town Staff Budget or grants, 2 years
<$50k

Grants, Town Staff Budget, 2 years
“$50k Consistency With Mitigation Goals:

Consistency With Mitigation Goals: Reduce the potential for loss of life, property,
infrastructure, and environmental, cultural and economic

Reduce the potential for loss of life, property, resources in Wellfleet from natural disasters

infrastructure, and environmental, cultural and economic

resources in Wellfleet from natural disasters Consistency With Other Town Plans:

Consistency With Other Town Plans: CEMP, Harbor Management Plan

CEMP New Priority: M
New Priority: H




CHAPTER 5: Mitigation Strategy WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Pian

Flooding, Invasive Species Coastal Erosion, Flooding

Mitigation Action #18 Mitigation Action #12
Pursue funding for culvert replacement and salt marsh Identify low-lying roads and beach parking lots susceptible
restoration. to erosion and develop and implement a plan to address
road flooding problems and beach access issues.
Project Type: Responsible Dept: Project Type: Responsible Dept:
Mitigation DPW, Conservation Planning Conservation, DPW
Funding Source(s): Timeframe: Funding Source(s): Timeframe:
Grants, $100k+ 3years Town staff budget or grants,  2-3years
< $50k
Consistency With Mitigation Goals: Consistency With Mitigation Goals:
Reduce the potential for loss of life, property, Reduce the potential for loss of life, property,
infrastructure, and environmental, cultural and economic infrastructure, and environmental, cultural and economic
resources in Wellfleet from natural disasters. Restore salt resources in Wellfleet from natural disasters
marshes to increase flood storage, and functionality of . .
degraded wetlands Consistency With Other Town Plans:
. . MVP, LCP
Consistency With Other Town Plans:
MVP, LCP New Priority: H

New Priority: H




WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

All Hazards

Mitigation Action #20

Work with the state and regional partners to expand and
improve Broadband and electrical infrastructure network
through improved access.

Project Type: Responsible Dept:
Preparedness, DPW

Planning and Outreach

Funding Source(s): Timeframe:

Grants, >$100k Annual/Ongoing

Consistency With Mitigation Goals:

Reduce the potential for loss of life, property,
infrastructure, and environmental, cultural and economic
resources in Wellfleet from natural disasters

Consistency With Other Town Plans:

MVP, LCP

New Priority: M

All Hazards

Mitigation Action #21

Develop an Outer Cape grassroots education and outreach
strategy to address climate resilience,

Project Type: Responsible Dept:
Planning and Outreach Conservation
Funding Source(s): Timeframe:

Town Staff Budget, < $50,000 2 years

Consistency With Mitigation Goals:

Increase public awareness of existing hazards and
encourage hazard mitigation planning as part of the overall
municipal planning process.

Consistency With Other Town Plans:
MVP




CHAPTER 5; Mitigation Strategy

All Hazards Invasive Species, Flooding

Mitigation Action #22

Pursue bylaw and regulatory changes to address resilience

Project Type: Responsible Dept:

Planning/Regulaiton Conservation, Planning

Funding Source(s): Timeframe:

Town Staff Budget, < $50,000 Annual, ongoing

Consistency With Mitigation Goals:

Reduce the potential for loss of life, property,
infrastructure, and environmental, cultural and economic
resources in Wellfleet from natural disasters

Consistency With Other Town Plans:
MVP, LCP

New

Mitigation Action #23

Develop and implement a ptan for nutrient reduction

Project Type: Responsible Dept:
Planning Conservation
Funding Source(s): Timeframe:

Grants, >$100k 2-3 years

Consistency With Mitigation Goals:

Reduce the potential for loss of life, property,
infrastructure, and environmental, cultural and economic
resources in Wellfleet from natural disasters

Consistency With Other Town Plans:

MVP, LCP

New Priority: H

WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan



WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

Coastal Erosion, Flooding Flooding

Mitigation Action #24

Conduct an inventory of privately owned structures within
100' of coastal banks, review continually, and prioritize
outreach efforts.

Project Type: Responsible Dept:

Data Collection, Outreach Conservation, Building

Funding Source(s): Timeframe:

Town Staff Budget or grants,  1-2 years,
< $50k
Consistency With Mitigation Goals:

Reduce the potential for loss of life, property,
infrastructure, and environmental, cultural and economic
resources in Wellfleet from natural disasters

Consistency With Other Town Plans:

MVP, LCP

New Priority: H

Mitigation Action #25

Conduct an inventory of and develop a contingency plan for
Town owned buildings and infrastructure in the flood zone,

Project Type: Responsible Dept:

Data collection, Planning Conservation, Building

Funding Source(s): Timeframe:

Town Staff Budget or grants,  1-2 years
< $50k
Consistency With Mitigation Goals:

Reduce the potential for loss of life, property,
infrastructure, and environmental, cultural and economic
resources in Wellfleet from natural disasters

Consistency With Other Town Plans:

LCP




CHAPTER 5: Mitigation Strategy

Participation in NFIP

Continued compliance with NFIP

To be approved by the FEMA, the Wellfleet Hazard
Mitigation Plan update must describe the Town's
participation in the National Flood Insurance Program
(NFIP). The NFIP is based on a mutual agreement between
the Federal government and the Town of Wellfleet.”®
Federally backed flood insurance is available in Wellfleet
provided the Town agrees to regulate development in the
mapped floodplain.”” To remain compliant with the NFIP,
Wellfleet is committed to the following activities:

Issue or deny floodplain development/ building permits.

Inspect all developments to ensure compliance with local
bylaws.

Maintain records of floodplain development.

Assist with floodplain identification and mapping as well
as any revision of floodplain maps, including local
requests for map updates.

Help residents obtain information on flood hazards,
floodplain map data, flood insurance and proper
construction practices.

Maintain standards required for Community Rating
System compliance.

6 National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) Floodplain
Management Requirements: A study guide and desk reference for
local officials, FEMA 480, February 2005

In addition, Wellfleet will be updating its floodplain zoning
and adopting new coastal resiliency bylaw (through the
Conservation Commission) before the next hazard plan
update.

77 Ibid.

WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan



WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

I Existing Capabilities Assessment

During the development of the 2022 Wellfleet Hazard
Mitigation plan, members of the Planning Team reviewed
the capabilities of each town department.

Table 5.3 | Existing Capabilities

Responsible

Department Natural Hazard(s)

Existing Capability Explanation of Capability

PLANNING AND REGULATORY:

The LCP articulates the Town's future vision and provides

goals and actions to achieve the vision. The LCP is the

community's primary planning document and addresses

issues related to land use and growth management, open Town

space protection, natural resources, capital facilities, . . All Hazards
. . . Administration

economic development, housing, and transportation. The

plan is currently being updated by the Local Comprehensive

Planning Committee and will go to Town Meeting for

adoption once ready.

Local Comprehensive Plan
2005

Comprehensive Emergency Management Plan: Town staff

determine supplies, equipment and communications needs
Comprehensive and prioritize purchases so that Wellfleet is prepared for
Emergency Management any needed emergency response to any natural hazard Police and Fire  All Hazards
Plan event. The Police Chief chairs and attends the monthly

Barnstable County Regional Emergency Planning Committee

meetings.



CHAPTER 5: Mitigation Strategy

Responsible

Explanation of Capability

WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

Natural Hazard(s)

Regional Transportation
Plan

Stormwater Management
Plan

Open Space Plan

County Wildfire
Protection Pian 2012

Municipal Vulnerability
Preparedness (MVP) Plan

Intermunicipal Shoreline
Protection Framework

Department

The Regional Transportation Plan identifies priority
transportation projects across Cape Cod, which may include
projects related to road floading and culvert repair.

DPW

Clean out the storm sewers on a regular basis. in addition
to cleaning storm water drains, the Department of Public
Works also cleans catch basins annually.

DPW

Wellfleet's open space plan addresses open space protection
needs and acquisition strategies, including parcels in coastal
hazard areas for conservation and recreation.

Conservation

The Barnstable County Wildfire Management Plan identifies
priority areas in each community for wildfire
management/risk reduction.

Fire

Town of Wellfleet received Municipal Vulnerability

Conservation,
Preparedness (MVP) designation in 2019. The Town is now

Town
certified as an “MVP community” and eligible for MVP action Administrator
grant funding only available to MVP-certified communities, DPW ’

which the Town will use to implement its resiliency plans.

The towns of Wellfleet, Provincetown, Truro and Eastham
partnered with the Center for Coastal Studies to conduct a
study on bayside sediment transpert in 2018. The grant
funded first year study has led to a successful submission
for an additional two-year CZM grant to further our work.

Conservation

Flooding

Flooding, sea level
rise, severe winter
storms, nor'easters,
hurricane/tropical
storms

All Hazards

Fire

All Hazards

Flooding, sea level
rise, severe winter
storms, nor'easters,
hurricane/tropical
storms



WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

Responsible
Department

Existing Capability Explanation of Capability

Natural Hazard(s)

Flooding, sea level rise,

The Harbor Management Plan addresses harbor severe winter storms,
Harbor Management Plan management issues including climate change impacts on Harbormaster nor'easters,
harbor infrastructure and shellfish resources hurricane/tropical
storms

State Building Code: Substantial monitoring and compliance
activities are performed under administration of the State
Building Code. Inspection and certification of lowest floor
elevation is required by State Building Code. Elevation
certificates are required by State Building Code. The town's
floodplain manager receives continual certification that
requires annual education and training. Applicants are
required to submit plans that include the Special Flood
Hazard Area and proposed elevations of the proposed
structures.

State Building Code Building All Hazards

Fire Code: Town observes State, Federal and local fire
codes, New sprinkler system laws are continually enforced.

Fire Code The Building Commissioner seeks input from the Fire Fire, Building Fire
Department on where to place sprinklers in local




CHAPTER 5: Mitigation Strateqy WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigaticn Plan

Existing Capability Explanation of Capability gz;g‘:;‘;‘:ft

Natural Hazard(s)

This bylaw is consistent with NFIP regulations and the State
Building Code. The town reviews the bylaw to ensure it
reflects current floodplain science and policy. The Town is
working with regional partners to update its floodplain
zoning to meet the state's model bylaw. The Planning Board
is responsible for drafting changes to the zoning code, which
must be approved by a two-thirds vote at Town Meeting for
adoption.

Town
Administrator, Flooding
Planning Board

Wellfleet Zoning Bylaw

Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM): voters amended the

Flood Insurance Rate Wellfleet Zoning Bylaw in 2014 to make it consistent with Conservation, Floodin
Maps the newly updated Flood Insurance Rate Maps (FIRMs) for Building g
Barnstable County.
ADMINISTRATIVE AND TECHNICAL:
Essential Records and Cultural Items: Building files are ?_Z:: Board,
Essential Records backed up and stored in a building outside of the Special N Flooding
Flood Hazard Area Adp-sieser
: 2o
Community Rating System (CRS) The 5 Year Community .
. . . . e Conservation, .
Community Rating System Rating System evaluation of the Town's participation was Flooding

Buildin,
completed in 2021. Wellfleet is at a Class 8. &
Town staff reviews and monitors an inventory of town-
owned generators

Generators Police, Fire, DPW  All



WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

Existing Capability Explanation of Capability Si;i?tnrisft

Natural Hazard(s)

Mutual Aid: Wellfleet opted-in to the Public Works Mutual Aid

Agreement through MEMA. By opting in, Wellfleet can send

and/or request assets from any other community within the

Commonwealth that has also opted into the agreement. This
) Harbormaster

agreement can be used for everyday use and/or be activated

for any public safety incident/event. Wellfleet also has mutual

aid agreements with neighboring communities.

. Police and Fire,
Mutual Aid

All Hazards

Emergency Communication: The town owns large variable
message boards which display 3-4 lines of text, They are
usually placed on Route 6 to notify residents of hazards,

Emergency

lane closures and parking instructions. The Code Red Police and Fire All Hazards
Communication . . X ’ ]
system listed in the previous Hazard Plan is now called Civic

Ready. Town administration DPW, and police post
announcements on Town website and social media.

Town staff determine supplies, equipment and

communications needs and prioritize purchases so that is

prepared for any needed emergency response to any natural Police and Fire All Hazards
hazard event. Town officials attend the regular Barnstable

County Regional Emergency Planning Committee meetings.

Emergency Planning

Wellfleet Police and Fire Departments collaborate with

other departments to send out press releases about the : ]
. A . ] Police and Fire All Hazards
Education/Outreach locations of regional or local shelter, warming/charging

stations and natural hazard responses.

Sheltering




CHAPTER 5: Mitigation Strategy WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

Existing Capability Explanation of Capability g‘:f:::r:::\et Natural Hazard(s)

Educational Materials: The town distributes educational

materials from local, county and State level organizations

such as the Barnstable County Regional Emergency Planning

Committee (BCREPC) and the Cape Cod Cooperative Police and Fire,
Extension (CCCE). Materials include but are not limited to: Building
CCCE's "Questions and Answers on Purchasing Coastal Real

Estate in MA" and "Homeowner's Handbook to Prepare for

Coastal Hazards.”

Educational Materials

In 2012, an Act Relative to Emergency Response of Public
Utility Companies was signed into law, requiring a more
robust response to emergencies from power companies,
Additionally, Eversource has MOUs with private companies
to provide accommodations during all but the summer
seasons.

Police and Fire

Departments, Ali Hazards
DPW

Eversource

STAFFING AND BOARDS:

Police and Fire Departments oversee emergency

Emergency Management Lo
gency & management coordination

Police and Fire All

All, more especially in
planning, mitigation

The Conservation Commission reviews the local regulations and grant writing for
Conservation Commission on an annual basis and regulates development within and Conservation flooding, sea level rise,
adjacent to wetland resource areas coastal erosion and

storm response
planning



WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

Explanation of Capability gz:‘::;:g:i Natural Hazard(s)

Existing Capability

The department responsible for all town infrastructure is
critical to any preparation, mitigation, response and DPW Al
recovery from natural hazards in the emergency

management cycle.

Department of Public
Works

The Harbormaster works directly with boat owners and
private marinas to educate them on appropriate actions to

Harbor & Marina
take during a storm event.

COA is a resource for Wellfleet residents and provides
educational programs for the community, including hazard

Council on Aging planning and emergency preparedness. The building has COA All

potential to be used as a warming station (see 2022

Mitigation Actions).
FINANCIAL

The Health & Conservation Agent and DPW director pursue

grants to address flooding and related hazard impacts. Fire  Town

All Hazard
Grapt funding and Police pursue grants related to public safety and Administrator e

emergency management



An Assessment of the Changes in Priorities
from 2016 to 2022

Below is a list of activities that remain a priority for the
Town of Wellfleet in 2022:

+ Wellfleet remains dedicated to public outreach on
emergency preparedness, communication with
residents and visitors before, during and after a
hazard event, and communicating with the public
about the impact of natural hazards.

* Wellfleet remains committed to assessing local
infrastructure for damage from coastal hazards
such as storm surge, flooding and shoreline change
in the National Flood Insurance Program.

+ Wellfleet remains dedicated to reducing the
potential for life, property, infrastructure, and
environmental, cultural, and economic resources in
the Town from natural hazards.

o Wellfleet will continue to ensure that mitigation
measures are sensitive to natural features, historic
resources, and character of the community

Current Focus/Priorities

Since completing the 2016 Wellfleet Hazard Mitigation
Plan, the Town has developed a greater sense of urgency
in addressing hazards and climate change impacts.
Wellfleet staff have pursued and received several grants to
conduct studies and projects to increase public education
and outreach; emergency preparedness, infrastructure
redesign/upgrades to reduce flooding and better protect

CHAPTER 5: Mitigation Strategy

the town from flooding impacts. The January and March
2018 nor'easters, which caused flooding to homes and
businesses and roadways in the downtown, Indian Neck,
and other coastal locations, were instrumental in spurring
public understanding of the urgency to address natural
hazards/climate change impacts, particularly those related
to storm surge and sea level rise. Wellfleet has increased
its efforts to engage with stakeholders and the public on
issues related to hazard mitigation and climate change.
Completion of the MVP workshop with the Town of Truro
in 2019 reflects the Town’s expanded interest in both
educating the public on hazard and climate change issues
and seeking community input on mitigation actions.

Wellfleet has been successful in partnering with
neighboring communities, regional, state, federal agencies
to address hazards/climate change impacts. In addition to
the MVP workshop/certification, recent efforts include the
2019/2020 CZM resiliency grants/Intermunicipal Shoreline
Management plan; the 2021 EDA/MVP Low Lying Roads
Project; and the District Local Technical Assistance Model
Coastal Bylaw project. This joint/partnership approach will
continue as the town implements the hazard mitigation
plan actions.

Wellfleet also faces challenges that could affect its ability
to address hazards and climate change impacts. The lack
of affordable housing has grown into a significant crisis on
the Outer Cape. Skyrocketing housing costs and lack of
supply have made it difficult for local employers to keep
staff and attract new workers. The Town of Wellfleet has
experienced substantial staffing turnover and vacancies
since the 2016 hazard plan, which has impacted its

WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan



WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

capacity to pursue additional hazard/climate change
actions. Join efforts with neighboring communities and
regional, state, and federal partners will help the Town
manage future efforts to address hazard impacts.



Plan Evaluation
and Maintenance

CHAPTER SIX




Once the 2022 Wellfleet Hazard Plan is Hazard Mitigation Plan will be evaluated,
adopted by the Wellfleet Select Board, the updated and enhanced over the next five
plan enters a five-year “maintenance” phase. years.

Chapter 6 describes how the Wellfleet




Who is involved?

Each department identified in the Wellfleet Hazard
Mitigation Plan is responsible for implementing specific
mitigation actions as listed in the Mitigation Action section
of the plan (Chapter 5). “Lead” departments are assigned
to each proposed action listed in the Mitigation Action to
ensure responsibility and increase the likelihood of
subsequent implementation.

The Wellfleet Town Administrator will be responsible for
ensuring that the plan is monitored, evaluated, and
updated throughout the next five years

How will the plan be
maintained?

Below is a list of the activities describing how the plan will
be maintained and updated over the next five years:

Plan Monitoring:

e« Members of the Planning Team will meet annually
to discuss the implementation status of each
Mitigation Action identified in Chapter 5. During
these meetings, the Planning Team will also
describe and document any new hazard data that
can be incorporated in the Hazard Profile section of
the plan such as new hazard locations, extent and
impacts.

s After the annual meeting, members of the Planning
Team will present to the Select Board on the
implementation status of the Mitigation Actions

WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

identified in Chapter 5. This presentation will occur
once per year and will include an evaluation of the
appropriateness of Mitigation Actions, If an
amendment, change or update is needed, the
Select Board can vote to adopt the change and
amend the Hazard Mitigation Plan.

Plan Evaluation:

A subset of the Planning Team will meet annually to
evaluate the stated purpose and goals of the
Provincetown Hazard Plan. During this annual meeting,
this smaller group will ensure that the plan continues to
serve its purpose through the following activities:

» Review the Mitigation Goals in the 2022
Provincetown Hazard Mitigation Plan

¢ Discuss any recent activities to reduce the loss of
life and property in Wellfleet such as grants
received/applied for and any completed Mitigation
Actions.

» Distribute an online survey to gauge the public's
awareness of the risks posed by natural hazards.
Discuss ongoing or recent planning efforts that are
consistent with the Mitigation Goals and Actions of
the Wellfleet Hazard Mitigation Plan

Plan Update:

The Wellfleet Hazard Mitigation Plan will be reviewed and updated
every five years to ensure that there is no lapse in plan coverage.
The Hazard Mitigation Plan update process should begin one to
one and half years before the plan is set to expire.



WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

When will the planbe
maintained?

A start date and time period were assigned to each
Mitigation Action in Chapter 5 to assess whether actions
are being implemented in a timely fashion. Also, the
Planning Team will also reconvene annually to discuss
progress on the Mitigation Actions.

Following a disaster declaration, the Wellfleet Hazard
Mitigation Plan will be revised as necessary to reflect

lessons learned or to address specific issues and
circumstances arising from the event. It will be the
responsibility of the Planning Team to reconvene the Local
Emergency Planning Committee and to ensure the
appropriate stakeholders are invited to participate in the
plan revision and update process following declared
disaster events.



Plan
Adoption

CHAPTER SEVEN




Once the draft of the Wellfleet Hazard
Mitigation Plan is reviewed by the Planning
Team, stakeholders and the general public,
Massachusetts Emergency Management
Agency (MEMA) and the Federal Emergency
Management Agency (FEMA) review it.
Following their approval, the Wellfleet Select

Board can officially adopt the plan.Once
adopted, it enters a five year “maintenance”
phase. Chapter 7 describes the timeline for
plan adoption and includes
documentation for Select Board adoption.




Timeline for Plan Adoption

The timeline for Plan Adoption is as follows:

May 2022: After approval by the Select Board, the
Planning Team submitted the draft Wellfleet Hazard
Mitigation Plan to the Massachusetts Emergency
Management Agency (MEMA). MEMA reviewed the plan
and returned it to the Town of Wellfleet with required
edits. The updated Plan was then submitted to the Federal
Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) for final review.

e [INSERT MONTH 2022: FEMA issued an Approved
Pending Adoption status and the Wellfleet Select
Board officially adopted the 2022 Hazard Mitigation
Plan during its meeting on [INSERT DATE]

Plan Adoption

The Certificate of Adoption signed by the WellfleetSelect
Board is shown in Figure 7.1.

WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

Figure 4.1 | Certificate of Adoption signed by the Wellfleet
Select Board.

Certificate of Adoptlon
Wellfieet, Massachusetts
Select Board
A Resolution Adopting the 2022 Wellfieet Hazard Mitigation Plan

WHEREAS, the Tawn of Wellflear astabiished a Committee 1o prepare the Hazard Mitigabon
Plan; and

WHEREAS, the Town of Wellflest partiapated in the development of the 2022 Welifleet
Hazard Mitganon Plan; and

WHEREAS, the 2022 Welllleet Hazard Mitigation Plan ontains several potential future
projects to mitigare potentisl Impacrs from natural hazards m the Town of Wellfiest, and
WHEREAS, a duly-noticed public meeting was held by the Welttleat Select Bozrd on May 24,
20,2022, for the public and to review prior of this

and

WHEREAS, the Town of Wellflzet authorizes responsible departments and/or agenoes to
execute them responsibikties demonstrated in the plan, and
NOW, THEREFORE 8E IT RESOLVED that the Town of Wallflast Select Board formalty

approves and adopts the 2022 Weflfleet Hazard Mibgation Plan, in accordance with M.G.L
c. 40

ADOPTED AND SIGNED this Manth Day, 2021

LA R el

161



Appendix




({CHAPTER 7! Plan Adopticn WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

Hazard Survey Results

163



WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan CHAPTER'Z Plan Ad

Public Survay for the weliflest Hazard Miligetion Plan

Q1 Have you experienced a weather-related event or disaster while living,
working or visiting Wellfleet?

m-
On 1% oW W 4% JOR 60N TN B SOW DOM

ANSWER CHOICES RESPOMSES

Yes w5 1w

H
=
2

8

TOTA

I
]

Publie Suney fot 1he waliflest 14azend Mitigation dtan

Q2 Which of the following hazards have you experienced while in
Wellfleet? The hazards listed below are from the 2018 Massachusetts
State Hazard and Climate Adaptation Plan.

%



§ WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

Pubbc Survay for tha walllaet Hazard Mitigstion Plan Pubhie Survay for the Wallfleet Hazard Mitigstion Plan
ANSWER CHOICES RESPOMSES
ene ol te
avow l Nore of the bove 5% u
= Sroemene
i Danvevkea laburs STK 12
vanfevieert T .
iore Drought
Earhauare 2% 5
e
Fre (Kl of wiidwe) 400% q
mu-.l Filoong Gniand of Los1a s 1
Hurscane o kopx af Som 57 1e% 10
Fiee
e Lonasiice ooa% ]

o == =
Ontand o gt B8P o
e — i -

Tomas. 40K 1
Lanaved
' Exteme mopecaues 20 44% »
- S =
Toumary 000%
| —— i L
o e
-
_—
.
i
QRDw PLOtm,.
i
-
o M
325 4§25

165



65 WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

; CHARTER 7 Blan Adoption

Public Survey for tha Wellflaw. Hazerd Mitigation Plan

Q3 which of the following hazards are you most concerned about?
{Choose up to3.)

1

Comma
mosionas

rapumet

e

aazd!.

mmml

L
wosw,

Hwarg
e

Hunene
Tk
[= L
—_—
-—
upwwm.l
e
-1
e e

winter storm
mow wesrm,

o

o (DK 2w It A% IS G0% TN 00N SON 100%

5/25

Public Survay for tha wallfast Hazard Mitigation Plan

AMSWER CHOICES

CoRgtat piouson A Shoming thange
Danveubven fakm

— z

Eshaske
Fomtstrucind o widivel
Fioedrg trlad on £03et4y

s ana of Gopk o staem

[ ]

Norugster

High Wins.

Lighngttundersiorn

Tanso

Extrme napcaisas

Wnter sam(.t;t;usl;m bRz g I!ﬂm )
Taunarn

Seawvalnss

Total Respaaerts: 223

)25

RESPORSES
5378%

ELL
13-4
Q4%
7%
nUx
At 7Ew
L00%
200%
230%
1u%
qu%
[ 14
044%
0.80%
Biiw



Pubhc Survey for tha wellfieet Hazard Mimigation Plan

Q4 How concerned are yau about the possibility of a natural disaster

impacting Wellfleet?

02 by

30m S % 6O VoW 00W

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES
Extrmaly toncemea 2O
Somewter tomeltRe B4 sck

et e amed 750%
TOPL

7825

CHARTER 7 Pln Adoption

Publis Survey for the wellftest Hezard Miligstion Plan

QS Which of the fdlowing actions have you taken to be more hazard

resistant? (Select all thal apply.)

Nont of o
avov

Bgned untor
Chewihee
Pacchered.
Nood wsemnce
Panogatd
Meguezon

Snazadmy
mome or othe.

Remares dabrie
ErT

LUSTLN
a0 o pasr e
Tk aDor
[ ETN

obeared o
emeegency.

s m-.-
ey

oA ON 20 J0% MM S0%  6Ba OM SON  RO% WO%

8f3s

WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

167



63

WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

Public Survey forthe Wallflast Hazerd Mitigation Plan

ANSWER CHOICES

Rone ut e shove

Sigewd Up Tor Ihe Wiliee! Alet Systent (Civie Roady) niolgh The Wettesl P ofice Departnery
Puschasad ioad mzince

Paitclpaled i WS

Sboct haziesd
Elevatediy home of et tuidag on Ty DY

Remaved amw»-u.naus e f1em my propetty

P rinid Trees Gn of nee! Iy propery

Took. 3c(i0ns 10 HTpns & SKATAGE 0 Y ropeny

Dttt 30 wmerery megones kA

Ot (plesse smecity)

Tatel Prepontants A3

] OTHER FPLEASE SPECET)

1 ot attod Wack U gaeINar

2 In 2Bt an m [ Lo g

3 ingtaiad ganwraer

4 oot yove

5 Sterat waikr

& Took $ens 10 380U POTCH WUTHATE K8 SO IPONG bed
T P has o penasatan )

] 108 aB83 2 gaverator

L] st albect DaCK-Up gEnerdor

18 ramiarad j0ofing

1 i0talted garmrater

17 Stay Intarrved of The ssuet

13 et idind @ whol? QSR

2@ propar Y]

it It alod 2 ganendt sgped b Iar M aes aes

16 1wt o, comI TSl HORKTS

17 g 3 QEreDr S @ S K00

1 Inetdina stom pansls

19 Insfalad A generalor

20 Nowi tourelBlion snd It 3w 10 redut weter camage:
2 AL eY SNGAYS N guvernma 10 M RTe I AR E WG
22 Evplormg oo mekpetion aptiors

2 5 sk Garme s

2f25

RESPOMSES
aan
o
M ﬁ\
wam
0%
@
o
R
wam
2w

DATE
V20202 216FH
L2NER2 1 RPH

1022918 AM
1B 447 PR
JLE TS Y
MMt P
1IN2022 100 Pl
VISR 1217 PU
1AN2 112NN
INYA22 1053 AW
9202210 50 AM
NYZ2ZT06AM
VLA 308PM
142022 244 F4
YA 2P
M2 TP
HNUA22 7 5PM
e 21N
Y22 I WPk
L1227 1000 A4
HAAB2 D 50 AM

| GHARTER 71 Plan Adogtion

-
R e B8 8 &2

Ry R

Public Survey for tha weliflaet Hazard Hitigston Flan

u tood yaltaenansio U6 2P
o5 First o1 Kk, batlowen, tiahighs, fre cbnguishers. et 10222 650 PM
& Genszat M2 313 PY

10725



Bubhc Survey for the wellfleet Hazard Mitigation Plan

Q6 What is the most effective way toinform or engage you in hazard
planning and emergency preparedness activities? (Select all that apply.)

_
Wit Towe
MesalyuTIO.

1Y

Welihest
Poles

Town of
Weltiart

Frai

Pub

wsops

oa »«npl
cxber pwame
apeedy |

- Tom 2% JoW 0% bW % 0% 60w BOm 10PR

1/

Pubie Survay for the wellffeet Hazard Miligstion Plen

AHSWER CHOICES

[

Wektiet Town Mactal VouTuda charmel
Rado

walen Poiize Deowirmart Fa 3000k, page
Town of Walliset websity

Estad

uas

Putic wrkahops snd meetngs
S mestigs

Dt (hoase spacdy)

Total Fgspongents 213

] OTHER PLEASE SPECFY)

1 Tert

2 et rmassages

3 phonk

4 tm

s ot notEATONG Waih 2 ik 10 The roke
6 Facenaos growp Waltheet Comemuny Space
7 Tert

e Promamt

[ Toxt messags ks

1 ‘e mosiwes

1 ™

iz W

1 Text rrwssge

u ‘Wetloet conrranty sce £ ebook
15 Facabow

15 Tet

” Tont

16 Toxtz

19 Soeinmeca Wetest Communty Space fiage on F at o
0 Tt

El Nane

2 Reverss 921 cad

£ Toxt maasoge

12428

RESPONSES

DE
234
Ft )
RN
S36%
WK
15E%
2% 2%
1%
15 9%

DATE

WY 6P

w221 e

V2212 5 AM
o022 L R PH

V120 15PM

1N 42 PH

LINXZI12 10PN
G0 44TPH

NSX22 10 41 P
UIFAR2 6 4 PM

115222 55LPM

U1HA22 12 40 PM
115222 10 50 AM
1192022 019 AM

1152022 70 A0

1102211 9PM
1Ne222 35 Pu

nexzsnry

NEART § 08PN

1026 43P

10020225 00PN

LAW2022 8 34 PR

110202 3.0 P8

Eas2e

E]

¥ o 8K

169



WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

Public Survey For the wallflest Hazard Mitigation Plan Public Sursay forthe welifieer Hazard Mitigation Plan
4 orwpEbod S ged. om 42022 26d W
% Lowes Cage TV NEN22 43PN Q7 What steps would you like your local government to take to reduce the
2 tet ez PR risk and pratect Wellfleet's buildings and people from natural
2 Welloet Alot Syt 100222718 PH hazards? (Select all that apply.)
28 Faesbook VIS0 210 Pul e T
2 W9 Comyrnty Space Faceooy Mu222LEPU

£ ‘Wesbon Cormroundy Facaboot Page fhore vext meseage V1N02 18PN s
. 3
B Cmeascm s = vz rma <z
2 taete o mobiy phone WMUN21BPM s,
n Westiool COA ULSI0E2 1016 AW el ehan
£l The orwn wabirte s bown oweut 10r 30 Jarg ve a8 kv nod Lo Retter v NAA2229PH m...._
35 Prone 1122229 18 44 a7,
SR8 Moz 0w .
o
drdnige ca
Cduczeths)
fubbe 5
poly Ter
foRggL0

Parton
aecaind riv

Work to reduce
Rood iaters.
Educaetns
publiconth
pr o =
Er T
Ut
welblerr,
tonnmewo
wurk wn

0% TR Z0W  IOM  Y0W  IIW BN W BOR 0% D%

13425 M8



Pubiic Survey fortha welifleet Hazard Mitigation Pisn

ANSWER CHOICES
Hmpror ¢ M UG/ AONAE SHON Sy RAM

aetaton o them

E stotivsh wawn o POWEr DR &k
- on kown oropedy

1geT: @ orainage o area madi

Edxatethe pabix on evarualan malhods.
ARy 10l fUnAng 10 ke Welger s ). 1o nural hie 3oE
Periom: detaded Hisk asssuments

erks thecugh e Communty Ratng System

EQxae b pubix: on the d werenpacy

T 6 he LOMTRISC ahon 3 stem N HZ-H0 o4 ants 88 PO (owers, colldar Fvices)
Upsate (he Wedlleat 2anng Bylaws {ox ofhey developmant reglaeons) 35 thew refale 1o floodng
[ 2 S0 foc vt fom natued drsastens

Toal Responaenty 713

15725

RESPOMSES

48w m
50.2% 24
3B EM% n
2% bl
£Y:1Y ™)
AL L L
2% 12
nis B
2304 5
2% B
AT 108
30.05% -]
6100 1%

CHARTER 7, Flan Adtipticn

Public Srvey fos the welifteet Hezard Miigatien Plan

Q8 If the Town were to create a local heating/cooling center in a public
building for use during power outages. hazardous weather evenls, etc.
what type(s) of services wauld you likely use or need?

At ) A
oo o
abows
weltand
meczanic
ormkegwiter
Mitng wztion

:mm-u_
Iofeartuarbial

rverag:
Ocker piacme|

pwcty |

Oh M XM IW e TR MM A% SO 0% 100V

ANSWER CHOICES RESPORSES

Nona of the above zEw a
WER arsd plectoone Davice EDrgng JEN b
Diring e il o TS 15
Regl mometolets N =
Catipertaarhit b orsis Haw n
v (plaaee specey) Lux

Torsk Respordats, 209

» OTHER PLENSE SPECF V) DATE

1  camonwion for pere 197222 228 P

2 Jancy tacutins VINIR2 B2 P

E] Aot ine above MEA2L2I6PN

4 Food, beds.§ prokonpRs ouer 3w s ILARZ 103 a4

5 Wl v <taton for (et Ineing buce 2t V1920264 PM

16425

WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

71



.m_ .

WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

public Survey forthe wallflest Hazerd Mitigation Plan

Tols, IS

Sagals wouki b ce

tomtotatle fuTILrE, €Ot X we e L0 Sleen ey

Shows

Sivgla g suteh

Contng a5 our generator CasTt Fowa the e J0RS

walot 0! 143G fosars A Pomes o welk

oot ¥ Ive omrene y wak fongrlasiing pousdey Hankets
Place 1o stesp Tl showen

1.don e pats ad tarn ammas, L thay need Teip 163,
Loved the P G Aterthe st outigel

Very Srmpk: S0 X EOMMOIAI0NS I £950 Of artented tueages
Shteary

Healin £2in morhe

Hoad o 3 confIoning. Us# town BUSINgS ateacy i suslence

1 nave tovn wate;, propane ooking iove. wood siove and arteu sBfset protected bul many
ahers danx

Flxetorpots 95 wett

1725

| CHAPTER 7 Blah Adation

1052221 11 PR
1NY2022 1240PK
L5222 1053 A4
Ll 6.20 74
U2 BRPM
MHA2 .06 P
MR 5P
42224 3 PU
Vi3 4T PN
VU2 T U PN
LG22 PU
U227 PH
1A ARE1 5 PW
MIYZ2T 9PH
ANGAL2Y X2 PH
AR08 PM
M¥2222 47PN
VT2 1000 A
NADM2BPH
MAR2I 1AM

V12022316 PH

Public Survey for tha wellfleet Hazard Mitigation Plan

Q9 Do you use any of the following services? (Select all that apply)

s of tho
abom
Councca
Agg
Tamto
O
roumattrw
Toun il
Tow of
Walieer
Gmargoncy
At Syum.
weslfaet
L
wlitee
wbessy
o
ANSWER CHOICES
None o the abovs
Countitup Age
Tranater StHONDEW
WasnaPrr
Town Hsll
Town of Wallieat Waosns
Ervergarecy Alerl Sy st € kFeRdy )

Weltiont Elomentay S¢hudl
Wetllear Librivy
Tosl Resmondente. M1

(L

18725

on WM Ww

0% W% 00w

RESPONSES

E2 LY
A u%
L8
56 2%
nRes
A%
560%
g



WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

Public Survay for tha weliffert Hazaid Mitigetion Plan Public Survey for tha wellfieet Hezard Mitrgation Pisn
Q10 Please check the corresponding box of any itemn below that you have Q11 Please tell us about yourself. Select all that apply to yau.
heard of or are familiar with, e 81 Rl 34

Wt
renden
Hont pttax

abore Fa-bme

rvnden
o el Somn akome
wiasemae e wethea
irentaneme
ROvIWRiBear it
rams
s .ml

sondenr of
Emepac
s sectss ,,“.
vsemonn
o 1 2% 0% 40A J0W  RO% W BO% 90W OO

G dom Ja 30 0% SDR GOW  TOW BN 30% 00%

ANSWER CHOICES REEPONSES

ataow @ ANSWER CHOICES. RESPONSES
tNone on the ova N Tasi% 152
e 4 P 15 =
Wurssoa! Yusersably Plon ¥ omeony (o1eTe1 o s MYPT) P T ®
T Wall o 12 d H tngaion Flan TN © -
= = 1 0w 8 Norre o Wektioed TIoM 50
4098% Ll
Emengency wer sackon of Town ot Wetlipal webste | po1e.2 B W 2% s
Tatal Responaenis. X5
13 X 2 muziert of Webieet, 0 | arm eTioyed 1 Wi 142% 3
1 a0m 2 business twner o Weleet 5% b
Tatal Pespondenty 211
® OTHER PLEASE SPECFY) OAIE
1 Vioter 1 setiast YA AU
H ok 9 1ers w8 3umers oy WNEAZ22 0P
3 iz mesnaia whes 1NS202255¢PU
a 1 am s tows slacted ot 112022 24P
5 21w G Toware Tl 1T R swlency 152022 1 2 PM
€ I formes rescencs | IS 2022 1 15PM
v co¥ ams 2 mad fioodng arel okt ¢ Krate Isaues | Gont wees haTmownec
feamaches.
19125 20/

173



Public Survey for the Wallfast Hazerd Mitigation Plan

1 hiwre Ches hed yaat rond tud actugly | iva bece s 8 monthe ol of theyaar ( vate e
and consiier (his y man sesdance

oaany owner

1 100 09 Hoan of e Liwer €0 TV Stakon

Gor Gt 50 7ol ok es 5o,y 19010 of the LomMRs 35 Bvi0k

Curently 2 padt tme resident bul WAl ba & yEarOUE resdanl $0oq Recendy rend
1 amemaoyad o Waltlea

el (e

21435

UL 2R2E00PH

1NG2022 243 P
L 248 PM
M2 100PU
M3AT21020 P
VIIZRZZUPH
15210 37 AM

Public Survay tor tha wallflset Hazaid Mitigation Plan

Q12 If you would fike to be more involved in the hazard planning process,
please provide your name, emall and/or altemate cantact information.

AHSWER CHOICES
Name.
Email

Ateaie Coma  formalon

» NANE

1 Brad Rahoat

H Peler St

3 Dt Kignio

] Denns OCompet
5 wh SN

8 Jom Goed

? Cabarah Mauger
L) Tuans Towasens
[ Fitk Ofn

10 O b Lisa Trimes:
1 OigaKam

12 Fripfalk @come aet el
12 Xabny B
u s Eaniey

15 Wayne Qs

16 Ly Sruster

b4 Manyn Pechuis
l Fthad Daiey

1 Sizanno M Ryan
n Daborah Lew's

= [ Sy

2 Sue Sancrson

= Doug et

£ Pat Siok

% uion pé abody

= Dabora Magee

n Gragoy Darkowsit

32128

RESPONSES
T
LT
£106%

DATE
Pz
1922370 P0
VIAARZ I0G PN
122wz 109 AW
122 1212 PHE
MNe26T PN
MY 1 AIAN
1nFD210 42P¥
vz a8
YVIF207 615 PH
NP2 L15PH
IS 1242 PH
Ny 1201 P
MACTIL01 A
1am2 105208
FAL2 907 AN
SR 50 A
1002229040
114202 800 PM
1N4A02 T 25 PH
vIvxER 7.0 P
LA EH PR
ViaXR2 4237
MuAC2 582
4R 2B M
Lew2 24580
11922 213PM

&



BBy

Bublic Survay fortha welifeet razard Mitigstion Plsn

o Schausiss

Fhanda s Warc Fowter
was st

Faery Cox

Gire Pape

Ryan Qurtoy

G Frug Vadersc it
Ot Felis

AmE Sugps

68 Wetherspoon

Kaly Greand

KRy Cusermen

D Lynch
AmaNeisen

Catharte Nass

BARRY MCLAUGHUN
B ca Taylor

Scolt tovsiey

Mal

ENAL

Braichardgme com
PSiond 468 pmail tom
ERoeanE gima com
carny o @ onasi net
ristE 0t com
Gebrsuger@ ) com
HernistoAnSEnD@e omeasl nel
Pt 157 €@ gmad com
teArRs@y o com
opwahnggTed com
Kalfytambimetsown@gmat com
tmeasiey @yhd com
gacwc 20L2@grman com
Andebeagmac com
sandodart I@vemon ned
e rsed comeas! net
azaryadiggmal com
Devstangopomne el

23525

ez 156 PM
1142022 1 SIPM
Uy222 151 PM
1142221 37 P
AR 1 TP
1#22 LOB P
1IYD22 B PH
MINE2T RPN
103222100384
172229 2644
1T 124 AM
¥ T BAM
11272022 2 29 FM
ViZae22 N M
INYM2 7 52PH
YA 649 P
1N W2022 10 37 AN
UIVA22 T 41 A
110202 4 29PK
DAE
WIHR28 AN
120202 218 P4
1222022 200 PM
170222 L IIAR
MEGH2BITPM
1AEXR2 10 43AM
Ny 1082 PM
WY EIIPM
NT2615PM
MF 11554
T2 12 01 ¥4
MN¥A0221 01 A4
VIS222 1652 AW
YAC2IT AN
152022 22 AM
VG222 904 PH
U280 P
D2 7PN

L3 2]

A2 281

w8

WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Pla

Public Survey for the wellfleet Hazard Mitigation Plan

HemtaBoutiotk com
oSk TS NGy shoo com
Toughiewt @ eont a5t st
Patshol20@gmal com
gurRicrpesbody Bomal tom:
dabrmagee@Frat com
Gragoy doinkowsk It ok
IIW) 00 COM
w1220 gTal Lo
warkolydingr gt ¢ o
amyome to @gani com
Ginapagegrrin tam

nan Culey@wotiiest ma oo
Frot apecod ok

1@ sianktonaowet nit
nnGagys2 @omal L om
IonEnul TS Do (oM
reen 200l com

£ a5y wGumalt tom
SohiegORG sl com
Soarseraggriad com
FpraTHNE ST ¢ U
camanemraBvenzon et
Préchanmzatei com
quane gs 10DRgmalt ¢ o

« oorsiey RSy £ om
uskrt_grati@ysho con
ALTERMATE CONTACE SHFORMATION
125 ST0R)

0LO1EBAT

500247 3904

020

COR8 54

20654058

506-3%0 5017

ot msa @ ano com

col 784540586
B75%1133

247125

1HeAR2 7 0 PY

V1€ 8% PM

L9z a PN

o2 TE P

1142002 246 PM

14222 45PM

i 213FH

D22 1%PU

L1402 53FM

119202 1519M

142213 PR

ez 1M

1LY 106 P

Iz 8PN

AL 2PH

1132022 10 0340
MIIRET 9% A

1322297 AW

1IAZT0IAM

172002 10 28 PR
M2 RPN

112222 TO0PH

VX227 52PU

19VEATEOEH

LLY22210 37
12028 4 AN

oz s AP

OME

weAE RAN

wrERR2 TP

1232022 200 PH

1A 2 12PM
VG2 2T

1162022 10430
115202 142 P
11520226 16FM

MHAR LIS

IFAR2 1052 AR

175



WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan CHAPTER 7Plan Adontion

Public Survay For the Wattflest Hazend Mitigstion Blan

1 BOHUGOLS Y1622 904 PU
12 ] 1420227 25PK
13 2N 116222707 PH
u T V1422 4 2PU
15 a0t Com 114N22 2 46PH
1w BTG ez 245FU
g 00T Y222 13PM
1w yan.d ¢ oy Bgmai torm 11420221 W PN
w 03285000 1NAN221 2PN
2 T VM e s
B 08347078 VI2L2T06AM
22 e —— 1nAA22029PU
b 508 3480004 w222 782 Pu
% S08309.204 LINA8 s PH



CHAPTERT: Blin Aacption WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

Planning Team Meeting Agendas

177



WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

Welifleet Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan
Planning Team Meeting

December 15, 2021

1:00 PM
Virtual Meeting via Zoom
Link: https://capecodcommission.org/mhm/join
Passcode: join
Meeting ID; 922 0959 7528
Agenda

Follow-up on remaining Meeting 1 agenda items (Powerpoint presentation)
2017 Actions Summary — Review status
Draft public survey
Hazard Profiles
Tasks for next meeting:
a) New development since 2017
b} Capabilities Assessment {per FEMA Worksheet 4.1)
6. Schedule next meeting

nwewnNe

Handouts sent before meeting:

¢ Meeting Packet: Agenda and 2017 Actions Status Summary
« Draft public survey {email attachment)

For reference: Status Explanation

Eompleted

[ngoing/Existing Capabllity

 project was implemented and completed in 2017-
022

project was implemented and completed in 2017-2022 and it
ill continue to be implemented on an annual basis in the

ure. These action itesns will also be identified in the capability
ssessment,

e project was started in 2017-2022 timeframe and is still in

in Progress

project is important, but it was deferred because there was no
inding available or it Is not feasible to comalete the sroject
he groject is no longer i nt to the commun|




WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

Wellfleet Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan
Planning Team Meeting
January 5, 2022
1:00 PM

Virtual Meeting via Zoom

Link: https://capecodcommission.org/mhm/join

Passcode: join

Meeting ID: 922 0959 7528

Agenda

1. Follow-up on December meeting agenda items
a. 2017 Actions Status Summary - edits/changes
b. Draft public survey - edits/changes and outreach strategy
¢. Hazard Profiles - events/updates needed

Capabilities Assessment (per FEMA Worksheet 4.1)

New development since 2017

Changes in Town priorities since 2017

Relevant plans & documents

oW

Handouts sent before meeting:

e Meeting Packet: Agenda; 2017 Action status updated; sample capabilities assessment
and FEMA worksheet
e Link to draft survey — demo https://www.surveymonkev.com/r/D3L7K9T

179



WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan CHAPTER 7 Blan Adautin:

Wellfleet Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan
Planning Team Meeting
February 8, 2022
1:00 PM
Virtual Meeting via Zoom

Link: https://capecodcommission.org/mhm/join
Passcode: join
Meeting ID: Meeting ID: 943 7659 5383 € New
Phone: (929) 205-6099

Agenda

1. Review of 2022 Draft Actions table — Table has list of carried over 2016 actions. The
Planning Team will review them and add new actions for 2022. Also review MVP
actions & decide which to include/modify for Hazard Plan.

2. Check-in on progress of other plan pieces and outreach - If we have enough time, will
discuss other plan sections under way.

Files sent before meeting:

1. 2022 Draft Actions Table for meeting



Meeting 1 — Kickoff Meeting with Local Planning Team -December 1,2021 (Teams)

e Town staff to provide overview of update work to date

e Overview of Plan Update process — required content, timeline, tasks, Planning Team
responsibilities

s Develop an outreach strategy

e |dentify relevant town plans

e Review of relevant hazards and critical facilities

e Schedule planning team meetings

[POST-MEETING NOTE: This meeting focused on the scope of work and tasks, rather than follow this
agenda. Continue these topics in Meeting 2]

WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

181



WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan CHARTER 7.'Blan Adogition

FEMA Local Mitigation Plan Review Guide, October 1, 2011 edition



WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

Local Mitigation
Plan Review Guide

October 1, 2011

183



WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

al ELEMENTA: PLANNING PROCESS
Regwrement f
§201.6(b)

§201 6{b}(1)

§201.6{b)(2)

§201.6(b){3}

§201 6{c)(1)

§201.6(c)ia))

Overcll Intent. The planning process Is as important as the plan itself. Any successful
planning activity, such as developing a comprehensive plan orlocal (and use plan, involvesa
crose-sectlon of stakeholdersand the pubtic to reach consensus on desfred outcomesar to
vesolve 8 communlity problem. The resultis a common set of community values and
widespread suppart for directing finandlsl, technical, and human resources to an agreed
upon course of action, usually identified in aplan. The same is true for mitigetion planning.
An effective and open planning process helps ensure that dtizensunderstand tisks and
wlnerabllity, and they can wark with the jurlsdiction te suppart policies, actions, and tools
that over the fong-term will (ead to g reduction In future fosses.

Leadership, staffing, and in-house knawledge In local gavernment may fluctuate over time.
Therefore, the description of the planning process serves as a permanent record that
explains how decisians were reached and who Involved. FEMA will sccept the planning
process as defined by the commurity, as long as the mitigation plan includes a narmrative

14 Local Mitigation Plan Review Guide



desaiption of the process used to develop ther

int about

plan—a sy

how the mitigation plan evelved from the formation of s planning team, to how the public
participated, to haw each section of the plan was developed, to what plans or studies were
incorporated into the pian, to how i1 will be implemented. Docurhentaton of a current
planning process Is required for bath new and updated plans.

ELE S A

A1 Doed he Ple docurseat ihe
planaing process, lecleding how it
was prepared and who was
Inwolved in the process foreach
jricdiction?

44 OFR 201 BT}

lokot Toinform the pubc ond
Dihes readers ohot the tue ol
approach ta the plan’s development
ond serve as @ permanent secord of
how decisions were mode and who
was kvofve d This recond alsois
useful for the next plan vadate.

2

Drainenkation of how the plan ws prepared mal inchide the
schedule or timafrarne snd actiyities that made up the plan’s
deweloprient 3s well as wha Waninkotved Documientstion
typically (s mat with & neTalive gesoiption, but may alw mouds,
Tou enarmple, ather documentstian suth ol coparsaf mesting
mintes, sgrein sheely, & mewiceper wticles

Jor bow the

provide the Joctud et
iwrisdichions develope d the plan

The plan must list the Jurisdiction(s] participating In the plan that
seek appravel

The plah rewst (dentify wha represented each Wvisdiction. The
Plan pasd provide, 2t a minimum, the Junsdiction represented and
the person’s posiion or title and agency within the jurisdidtion

Fot ¢ach lufisdiction seeking pian approva), the plan meust
darument how they were invelved in the planning process Foi
example, the plon may document meetings sttended, data
provided, or stak offered

and publl
that adopt the plan without d haw they
participated in the planning pracess wil not be soproved

{nwived Ip the process meons engoged as participants and giver
the chonce togrovioe input to affect the gon’s content Thisis
mare than simply belng invited (See *opportonily i be involved
In the planning process” in A2 below) or enly adopting the pian

Pian updates st indude documentation of the aurrent planning
process undertaken to update the plan

A2. Does the Pian docameni an

The plan must identify all stakeholders nvolved or glvenan

appotunity for selghboring oppartunity ta he Invaived in the planning process Ata

commu siies, localasd regional minraum, stakehotders must indude

aprncies iaw hed io hazard 1)Local and regional agendes invalved in hmard mitigation

nitiatios activiies, apeacies Lt activities,

k3w the saihority to cegubie 2)Agendes thet have the authonty ta regulate development; and

deselbpnenl as wellas other 3)Neighboring communities

interests 10 be iyolved in the

phanning process? 44 R A gonortuniv bo be involved iathe afonning atcess rwe on's thot

208, 56X2} the stokehofders o engaged o nvite 8 as particlponts ond given
the chanze toprowde tnout to affect the dfan’s content |

Leocal Miigation Plan Revisw Guide 15

WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

185



WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

Inteaf: Todemonstrotr b The Man must provide the agengy or organization represented
delibe rotive glonning process that and the person’s position or title within the agency.

involves stakeholders with the ‘dato
ondexpertise negded o devalop the | T The plan rust identily how the stakehplders were invited to

Blon, with responsitifity of authority participate In the process.

toim plement hazord maitipation

xtivities, and who will be most Examples of stakceholdersincdude, but are not Hmited to;
afféc o by the pion's outcomes *  Loce and regional agencies ivotved In hazerd mitigation

Indude public works, zoning, emergency mantgement, locel
Tioodplain administeators, spedial districts, and GIS
departments

*  Agencies that have the authority to regulste development.
indude planning and comenunity development departments,
Hilding officials, planning commissions, or othes elected
offidals.

@  Heighboring communities indude adjacent wounties snd
‘municpalities, such as thoss that are aff ected by smilar
hazard events or may be pariners in hazars mitigation and
Tesponse mthities

e Otherinterests may be defiaed by 2ach jurlsdicion and will
wary with each ane, These indude, but are not imdad to,
business, acxdemin snd other private and nan-praiit
interests depi an the unique cha i i the
comenunity.

A3. Does the Plap docament kow %, The plan muest document how the publlc wasgien the

the publicwas involved in the opportunity to be Involved In the fanning process amd how their
plnaing process duriag the fezdback was incorporated into the plan, Examplesindude, but
drafting stage? are not imitad to, sgn-in sheetsfrom open meetings, interachive
48 &2 201. 6(6X1) and 202.6{c X1} webntes with drafts for public reviaw and comment,

questionnaires ar surveys, or booths et popukar community
Intent Toenswr dtizens events

vnderstond whot the coepen ity 15
doing o thelr behalf, ond to provide | b, The opperhinity for pactiapation must occur during the plan

odhance for hpot on compmunity develapment, which (s prior ko the comment pesiad on th firel
viiperatifibes ond raitigation plan and prior to the plan approval / adophipn

octivities that Wil inform the plan’s

cintent Pullic mvolvement & lso

an ppportunity to educote the public

ahout harards and risksin the
cammunity, types of activities to
Pitgire those Hsks, md bow these
dm pact them.

16 Lomsl Mitigstion Plan Review Guide



A4 Doss Tie Mlss docement The
review aad incosponation of

exk ting plass, studies, reporis, and
techsicaliaforamiine? 44 OFR
201 66)3)

Inkent. Toldentfy exsting doto ond
; "

b

The pisn mest doume it what ssisting chang, s TEpOTTE, anr
technical farmation were evidwed Enanenivs of the types of
exliting sourees reviesed Indude but we not mited to, the Tate
hiaserd milig stion phon, Iocsl comprehensive tilang hasrd specfic
veparty and flood inssrance suides

The plan must dacument Bow relevant inform ation was

shared and
past ond onpaing ocbwites that con
helg inform the mlligotion plan. &
also helps 1dentify the existng
capabibties ond planning
mechonismas toimpleraent the
mitigotion strotepy.

incorp: d lnto the plan.

{pcorporete reans toreferenae or mdude mformation from obher
existing sources to forn the content of the mitigotion plan

AS.E theredbrussion an how the
contrew aRyfies }will contiene pablic:
mriicimtios by the plan
reainicaaace proces? 44 R

201 B 4HE)

fkeqt Toidenbfy how the pobic
will conbinve tohiove an ooportunity
o pavtcipete i the plan’s
mantenonce md implementotion
over tree

The nlm’nm describe hosythe jurisdid onlc} witl continue to
seek public participation after the plan has been approved and
turmng the plan’s ng and

Eaukiogthon meons eaguped ond givent the chonce (o wosde
feeidbock Examplesinclude, but are not lirted ta, perladic
presentations on the plan's progressta eleded oftioals, schaols or
other community groups, snnul questi onnaires or surveys, public
meetings, postings on sotial media ond interadive websites

Ab. i therea description of tbe
neethod and scheduie for eeping
1he plan cunrest (o niloring,
eniatingasd ypdating the
miigtion plan withina S-year

3

The plan mest identify how, when, snd by whom the plen will be
montored. Atgaitoriog e ons tracking bhe impiereen toiion of the
olon over bme  Forexorpple, monitorng moy mdude o systers for
tracking the stotus of the identzfed hozard mit gation aclons

cycle)? 48 OFR 204 64X b The plen mmst 1dentify how, when, and by whora the plan will be
| d ing the of the
Infenit: Toestoblish g precess for plon ot achieving its stobr d pwrpose and gods
junsdictions to track the progressof
the plon’simplernenttion Thisalso | = The pian must idenbify how, when, ond by whom the pfan will be
rves os the basis of the next plan updated. Updating means reviewing and rewsing the plon ot feost
updole. oncz every five years
d  The plan mest include the title of the individual or nome of the
department/ gency responsible for leading each of thess efforts.
Lozal MRipation Plan Raview Guide 1?

WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

187



WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

4.2  ELEMENT 8. HAZARD IDENTIFICATION AND RISK ASSESSMENT
Reguirement

§201. 8{c)2)t)

201 6{c)(2}6i)

§201. 8(c)(2)ii)(A}

§201.8{c)(2)()(8]

{e)i2)ta)(c)

§201.6(c)(2

Overall igtent, The tisk assessment provides the factusl basis for activities proposed in the
strategy that will reduce losses from Identifled hazards. A quellty risk assessmentsmakesa
clear connection between the community's wulnerability end the hazard mitigation sciions.
In other words, Tt provid f 1 1 to enable the jurisd (<) to identity and
pricritize appropriate hazard mitigstfon actlans,

Lacal risk assessments do notneed to be based an the most saphlsticated technology, but
do need to be acaurate, current, and relevant. During a plan update, local jurisdictions
assess current and sxpected future vwinerablifty to dl hazards and [ntegrate new hazargd
data such as recent hazard events and new flood studies. In the mitigation plan review,
FEMA looks at the quallty of the infarmatlon In the risk sssessment, not the quantity of
infarmatfon In the risk assessment.

18 Loaai Mitigation Plan Review Giida



The

Jdl

several “optional™ renuirements for the

g Planning reg

vulnersbility assessment. These are easlly recognizable with the use of the term “shouldl” in
the requirement {See §201.6{c){2){1{A-C}). Although notrequired, these are strongly
recommended to be included in the plan. However, their absence will not cause FEMA Lo
disapprove the plan, These “aptional” requirernentswere originally intended to meet the
overall vulnerability assessment, end this analysls can assist with jdentifying mitigation

actlons.

BL Docs fhe Pin ncldes
description of the type, loratbs,
andextent ofall natunal kazards
thal rau s flect cach jurkdittlon?
44 GrR 201, 6(HZ)() end 24 GFR
201 BeHZNE)

inkat; Toonderstnd the ootentiol

The plwn mmd nclude 8 sesaignon of the natural Wsrds fhat
an Wffed the ot rsdictions) in the planning wiea

A potorgl harerd s o source of horme or difficalty crected by o
loucal, /. o ge ol D £ The plan
tadd hazards human-caused
hazards may be iiduded inthe docwment, butthese are not
required and will not be reviewed 1o meet the requirementsfor
natural hazards. in addition, FEMA will not require the removal of

ond dvenic harards affecting the "

plonning oreain ordertpidentfy W gitraméocreation, prior tu'plenispproval

wH«':# ﬂﬂ?ﬂ‘dﬁifﬂ'f_"'ﬂﬂ The plan must provide the rationalefor the omission of sy
whic natural F fy recog! to affect the

tocations are m sely Juwisdidtion{s} in the plenning area.

affecee g

The desgiplian, of profite, st inchade inforraatian on jocation,
extent p and futre ity for each
harard Previousocaurrences and future probability ace addressed
In sub-element 82

The informatian does not necessariy need to be described or
presented sepacately for bocation, etent, previous pooutrences,
wnd fisure probability. For example, for some hazards, anz map
with expl ¥ text could provide infe oflocation,
extent, and luture probebifity.

Lamlicy mems the geagrmphic arets in the plonning orea tht ore
affected by the hoxors For many hazards, maps we the best way
to lilustrate location However, locaipn may be described in othet
formats. For example, ff ageographically specific location cannat
be identified for s hazard, such as tornados, the plan may state
that the entire planning areais equally at risk to that hazard

Extepf e ons the streagth ormagutude of the hararo. Far
example, extent could be described in terms of the spedfic
mersurement of an acurrence on a saentific kale ([fr example,
Enhanced Fujita Scale, STicSimpson Hutticane Scale, Richter
Scabe, fiood depth grids) and/or other harard factors, such as
duration and speed of anset. Extent isnotthe same asimpacts,
which are described in sub-element B2

®OHS Risk Lexizon, 2010 Edition 11501/ vowr Shayl I s okl e on 2080 07

Lecal Mitigation Flan Review Guide

19

WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

189



WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

4 Torp fictions in & ™ the

pian mest desaibe any hazerdythat are urique eond/or yosied
from those affecting the overallplanning orea

B2 Does the Pivs fnclude
Information ow prerios
ocramences of hazard events and

The plan must indude the history of previaus hazard eventsfor
zach of the Identifled hazards.

on the protwbility of feture kazand | b,  The plan st include the probability of future eveotsfor each
ewents for each jurizdiclion? 44 GR tdenttfied hazard.
20L5{X 2N}

Prpbablfty meons the Mefthood of the hazord wewring and moy
lotept Toandsrstond potential be definedin kesns of genead descriptoys (for exomple. unfikely,
mpocts to the commonity based on Nkely, Hphly kety), historicd fre quercies, statisticot prchiobites
inforaction on the harard events {for exarmple 1% chance of tosorrence i ony given yeoid, end/or
that hiove occwred In the past ind hozord aps: fgeneral o are ased, thenthey
the htekhood they will occir in the mewct be defined Inthe plan For zxample. “highly likely” cauld be
Juture defined s equals hear UIDX chance of GCELITANCE NEXE year of

happens every year

. Planupdetes amst indude hareed events thet hove ooauried sine
the test olan was developed.
B3. k these a description ofeach 8. Foreach particpsting jusisdiction, tha plan mast desgibe the
idestifled harand’s impact oa the patentied impaces of 2ach of the identiffed hezardson the
0
sumnm ry of the commuaity’s
walneizbiiy for eath jusisdiction? RDGE me ans the consequence or effect of the heaordon e
4 R 201 BN comal dnlty ond s ssets. Assets ore debermine dby the
dinclude, for e xomple, pe ople, s, fadfties,
fnigol For ench junisdiction o systerms, dities, ond/or actvibes that have valve Lo the
cms‘derrbrirm{xmumynsnwhok commenity. For=xample, Impacts could be described by
eferendng historical disaster impacts and/or an estimabe of
and enalyze the potenliof wnpocts of o
Jotore heazardevents ond the potential future josses {such as parcent damage of total
volnerabifities that could be e duced exposure).
Hwooph hazard oitipation oCHiEns | & The plan mast provide an averall summary of each jurisdiction’s

vulnerabliity to the Tdertdied hecards. The oversll surmmary of
wulnerability identifies structures, systems, peputabons ar other
community assets a5 defined by the cammunity that are
susceptible to damag & and lass from hazard events. A plan Wil
meet this sub-slement by ndd the ibed
in 5201 B{QU2)UNA-C)

Vulherable asssts and potentis losses (s more than ailst of the
total exposure of populstian, strudtures, and oritical facllities in
the planning area An énemple of an overall summary isa list of
key Issues or problem statements that dely describesthe
community’s greate stvilinerabiigies and that wil] be addressed in
the mitigation strategy

Loa| Mitigation Plan Review Guide




B4, Does = Pl 8 addvess NFP

s weed stractues within eack
ursdiction 1hat b ve been
repetiively dansaged by foods? 44
@R 201.KcA2MD)

inteat Tomforn hozord ritigaticn

8 piar) (st dese i the Ty wdrntia, conmercl,
invmtunonal et | and extieate the number of repetitive o
properies bocated modepotind flood naswo weas

Bcpetitive loss propeyfics ore those Jor which two ov more fosses
of ot feast $1,000 ecch have been poid tndet the Nationa? Aood
lasaronce Progean INFIR) within ony 30-ye or penod since 1978

octions for prope ries that hove

sufferedrepetitie domoge due to Severe repelitive fosg properiies are residential propertes thot

Hooding, particuloiy problem areos hove at Jeast four NFiP pownents pver 55,000 eock endthe

that moy not be goparent on praount of such o) ds 520,000, or ot Jeast twa

[Hoodpldn maos Mformabot on seporote clams poy with the an

tapetitive Joss propertie s belps the marke tvafue of the buiidng.

nform FEMA hoord mitigotion

nsgistonce rogroms under the Use of fleod tnsurance deim and disaster assistance information is

National Food isuronce Act subgect to The Privacy Aa of 1974, 25 eitended, which prohibits
publizrelease of the names of policy holders or reciplents of
financial asistance and the amount of the daim payment or
wesistance. Hawever, maps shawing general areas where dairs
have been paid can be made public f 8 plan Indudes the naris
©of pofoy holders ar redpiepts of finonaa! assistanca and the
amount of the caim payment ot zssistanez, the plen cannot be
Bpproved untilthis frivaoy Ack covered Information is removed
from the plan

Lacal Mitigation Plan Review Guide £1

WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

191



WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

43  ELEMENTC. MITISATION STRATEGY

Reguirement [The slam shal ined

201. 6{c)i3))

5201 8{c)(3)fi)

§201. 6{c)3 iki)

§201.6(c)(3)(n)

§201. 6{c){4}){ii)

Qverall iotent, The mitigation strategy serves as the long-terra biueprint for reducing the
potentid losses identified in the risk assessment. The Stafford Act directs Local Mitigation
Plans to describa hazard mitigation actions and establish a strategy to implement those
actions.* Therefore, all other requirements for a Local Mitigation Plan dead to and support
the mitigation strategy.

*Section 322(b), Robert T. Stafford Disasier Reliel and
42USC 5165

Y Ack (Stadford Ac), ded,

22 toal Mitigation Plan Review Suide



The mitigation strategy indudes the development of goals and prioritized hazard mitigation
actions. Gosls are long-term policy statements snd global vislons that support the
mitigation strategy. A critical step in the development of specific hazard mitigation actians
ahd projects Is assessing the community's existing authorities, polides, programs, and
resources and Its capabllity to use or modify local tools to reduce lossesand winerability
from profited hazards,

In the pian update, goals and actions are either reaffirmed or updsled based on current
conditions, Induding the pletion of hazard mitigation inilistives, an updated or new risk
assessment, or changes In State or lacal prioritles.

1. Does plia docurseat eack B, The plan rest descnbe ead) junsgsdion s e xifing authortes,

Iurisdiction’s exbting avthorithes, polides, programs and resources available to accamplish hazard

polkies, d

and Rsablily o esxpond on 28d

freprave these exukiing policles and Examples Indude, but are not limited to: staff Involved in tocal

prograns? 44 GR 201.5(c){3) planning activilies, pubhic works, and emergency manxg ement;
funding through taxing authority, and annusl budgets; or

iodzet Toensur thotesch ] v suthorities for iva planning, buitding codes,

Jtyisdiction evoluntes Its coprinfthes and grdinances

20 accom phsh hee ord mitigotion

actions, through existing

mechoniams Thisisespecioty
useful for mutt-jurisdictiond pins

where locot capabibly vades widelv.
C2. Daes the Pl addmes mmch | 3 The plan mest describe each jansdidion s parbopation in the NFEP |
forisdiction’s matkpation in the and desgibe thelr floodplain management program far continued
NAP and I Simply stating “The comenunity will mntinus ko
with NFIP mquicments, as comply with BFIP,” will ot meet thiscequirement, The
appropebte? 44 GFR 201.6(c XXM description could inctude, byt is not limited to-
Intent: To demonstrote flood hrard e Adoptien and of i

jort e {forts by the i ncluding new icn in
through NFiP ocbvitles Whese FEMA Special Flood Hazard Areas [SFHAs);
Is the officiol adralnistzding federd *  Floadpiain identification and mapping, including any local
Dyency of the NFIP, porticipetion in requestsfor meq updatas; or
the grogran is ¢ bosccoma ity = Description of commumity assistance and monitoring
copehility avd resource for food adivities,
hazard miligation ocbivities

lunisdigionsthat are currently not partidpating in the NFIP and
where an FHBM or FIRM b been issusd may meet this
réquirement by desgibing the reasons why the community does
not perticipate

na
v

Lecal Miigation Plan Ravies Guide

WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

193



WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

LLEMENT

£, Does 1he Plan inclotde goak b
red scefavold long-tenm
Mhles Yo the deabiied

n The plan et ecliode g evet ol hesmd mitgation goss Lhal
represent what the Jusisdiafon(s! seeks to acoompiish through
plon i i

barands? 44 (FR 20L 6(cHIHD

oot Toguide the development
ond impleraentotion of haad
wibpotion octions fov the
commnityfles). Gools are
statements of the cowmonity’s
wsions for the future.

Gagls ore brood pokcy statements thotexaloin whot s tabe
achieved

b Thegoals mest be consistent with the hezards jdentifled o the
plan,

T4, Does the Plan identiyand
amhee a nprekencive mage of
specific mitigation actions and
projects far exch jurisdicton bring
sonsiklered to cedupe the efiects of
hamuis, wih emphask os sewand
exiting bulidings and
mf@strecture? 44 CFR
20L.6(cH 3NN and 44 TR

201 &eX3Hiv)

latepl Toensure the horord
nutigouon octions one boased on the
dentified hazard valnercbiitic s, are
Within the copebifity of erch
feasdiction, ond rduce or ovoid
Jutuee losses Thicis the heort of e
mltgaton plon, and isessenticd to
Jeading comrpunities to e duce thels
nsk Corminitles, not FENA, ‘own”
the howord mibgotion acticnsin the
strotegy.

a4 The plan must Indlude a mitigation strategy that 1) anslyzes
adtjons and/ar projects that the jurisdiction considerad to reduce
the impacts of hazards identified in the risk assessment, and 2)
Identiies the actlons andjor projects that the jurisdictior Intends
to implement

Mitioetlop ocEons ond profects means o hoaard mibgoticn ocfion.
ooty or proecess (forexanple, adopling obuwlding code) or i
con be o physical project (for excmple, ele voling stractures or
retrofiting catical mfrostructuse) designed to reduce or eliminote
the jong berm dsks from hozards. This sub-slemant can be met
with either actioprs or projects, of a combination of actions and
projects.

The mitigation plan may inciude non-mitig stlon actions, such as
edionsiha are résponse or ional pregered,

In noture. These will not be acrepted as hazerd mitigation actions,
but neither will FEMA require these to be remuved from the plan

prior to epproval.

A gomprehensiye rgnge censsts of diffedent hozard mitigation
stern that address tte httes to the

i B ore most

b EachJurisdicton participating |n the plan ress have mitigation
pctions specticto that jurisdiction that are based snthe
s risk snd e s, as well as

prior ties.

£ The actiop plap mest reduce riskta existing buildings and
Infrastructure as well as lirnit any risk to hew development and
redevejopment, W] i3 00 0¢ xs ding end
e s thot the action i Includes a consdde sztion
of ootions that oddress the built envirinntent

2

Local Mitigation Plan Review Gulde




n Thi plue meest deuribe the oitevia used For priontiong

phar thatdescribes how the actions implenentation of the actions,
identificd will be priotitized
Gaduding cost benefit review), & The plan sk when prj g hazard
implemented , and ad miskiesred by aaions tha the locl furisdichions nsidered the benefits that
ench urikdiciios? 44 o2 woutd result from the hazard mitigation ections versus the cost of
202, SN 3) ernd 34 R (3N those actions. The requirement ;s met asiong asthe econemic

consderations & & summarized n the plag as part, of the
Ipiept Tordeatify how the pion Wi s analysis. A complete b [ analysisis not
ety fead toimplementation of required. Qualtative bencfits [fov example, quaiity of hife, netural
e haxord mibgotion octions As and beneficial values, o other “henedits™} can also bz included in
opportunites arise for octions of how actions wil be prioritized
prejects tobe implerented, the
responsble entity will be able to ©  The plan must ientify the postion, office, department, or agengy
toke pction of spansble for impl and i ng the adien ffor
the octivities each jurisdictiony, and 1dentfy potentiz! funding sources snd

expected timeframes for completion
C5. Does the Plan describea #  The plan must describe the community's process to tnkegrate the.
provess by which bcal dats; and hazard s and acttons inte
will ntegrate the requirements of other planning mechanisms.
Lire nitigatio w plan leto other
phening neechanis ns, s och 2 b The plan must identify the local planning mechanisms where
compeebess e o5 apRal hazard migstiors information and,/ or acriens may be
prosemewt plaac, wies incorporated
appropriate? 44 GR 201.8c)SNE)

thot ove used

Inkat T E locd lend v dzvelopment end community decisiom-
copetolfdng on of ovaifobic moking, such os 0 plans, cogital plons,
roechonin s that they hove ot their of other long-ronge phms
ispnsal in pocom giish horord
mitpotion and se duce rist € Amutthjurisdicions plan muet desaibe sach partiipating

i s dud process for hazard

adtons applicable to their mmmunity into other planning

methanisms.

d  The updated pian mmsst explan how the jurisdiction(s)
tnoorparated the mitigation plan, when apprepriate, inte other
planning mechanisms os 3 demonsitation of progress in tocal
hazard mitig ation ettorts

&, The updated plan mast contitue to desaibe how the mitigation
stretegy, Induding the gosls and haesrd mitigation sctions will be
ncorparated into other planAing mechanisms.

Local Mitigation Plan Review Guide 5

WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

195



WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

Requirement
201.6(d )3)

In order to continue to be an effective representation of the jurlsdiction’s
oversl| strategy for reducing Its risks from natursl hazards, the mitigation plan must reflect
current conditions. Thiswill require an assessment of the current developrient patterns
and development pressures 2s well as an evaluation of any new hazard or risk information.
The plan update is an opportunity for the jurisdiction tn assessits previousgoals and action
plan, eval progress in imp! hazard 1 actions, and adjust Its acHons ta
sddress the cutrent resfltles.

Where conditions of grewth and revisions In prorides may have charged very litle ina
community, much of the text in the updated plan may be unchanged. This Is acceptable ss
lang es it still fits the priorities of thelr community, and it reflects zurrent condftions. The
key for ptan readers to recagnize agood plan updateis documentation of the community's
progress or changes In their hazard mitigstfon program, dong with the community's
continued engagement in the mitigation planning process.

D1. Wae the plan revised Io mflect
changes in devebpment? 9¢ OR
201, 6(dN3)

The plan mas? describe changes i oeveiopment thal have
occurred in hasrd prone areasand Inoreased or degreased the
vulnerahiiity of each jurisdicion sinez the last plan was epproved

If no changesin Impacied the Jurisdittian’s overall

{gkent Toensun that the Inerabiity, plan updat validate the inthe

mitigotitn strobegy continue s to previously approved plan.

oddme ss the Ask ond vulneralilities

toeaisting ond potend of Ch i deveke meansrecent devi Gar

devefogment, and tokesinto example, consttuction completed since the last plan was

cenisi geration passible futire appraved), patential development {forexampte, developrment

eenditions thotcon impoct the plannzd o under consi i Jurisdretic i

vulnerbifity of the comrpunlty, that may affect the risksand of the ictions (for
exgaple, dimate varisbBity, dedining populations or projected
Increasesin ar ) Not sl will
affed p jusisdiction’s vulneratility

5 Local Mitigation Plan Review Guiide




i SN E
peogiess bn bocal mitigs tlon eflaris?
44 O 201. KXY

iolent Toevalaote and

ern on strate grogee 55 mode i the
pestfive vearsin adhieving eodls
ond irpkeamentiag aclions oothae d
wn ther mibgotion strategy

The pian mmst describe the sratus of hetard eeitigacion sctiomg in
the previous plan by identtfying those that have been completed
or not completed. For actionsthat have not been teted, the
plan must ether describe whether the edion lsna longer relevant
ot be indluded 2s part of the updated aaion plan

D3. Was the plan revised fo refiect | a.
changes in priorities ? 44 R
202.6dX3}

lofept Toensun the plan reflects
cwrentecondtions, inclodng
finonad legal, ond politicd reolities
as wel gs posh dsostereandiion .

The plan mest describe if and how any priosities changed since the
plan was previously approved

1 no changes in priorities & & recess2ry, plon Updates-may
validate the inform ation In the previously spproved plan

Local Mitigation Plan Review Guide

WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigatiaon Plan

197



WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

4.8 ELEMENT E PLAN ADOFTION
Requirement [ite
§201.6{(c)i5)

QOvergli Intept, Adoption by the local governing body demonstrates the furisdiction’s
commitment to fulfiliing the hazard mitigation goals and actions aytlined in the plan.
Adoptlon legitimizes the plan and authorizes responsible sgendes to execute their
respansibiiities. Updated plansslsa are adopted anew to demonstrate community
recognition of the current planning process, changes that have ocourred within the previous
five years, and validate for hazard mit actions,

EL Does the P ndede s The slen sewt inclide docuntend tlon of phan sdopbon, il 2

docemeentstios Phal the plon ke Tesolutian by the goveming body or other authority

e forman iy o dopted by the

povembng body ol the juidictios 1F the local jurisdiction has not passed a formal resafutian, ar used

rem e ting a pprow B &4 OFR same other dotumentation of adaption, the derk or dity attatney

TOL &l S et provide written nfirmation that the action meets thelr
cammunity's leg af tequirements for offidat adoption andfer the

lokgat Todemonstrote the highest elected official or their designee must submut written

Jurisdieton’scommltment to praaf of the adoption, The signature af one of thass offidalsts

Soifiting the horord ribgation goa's required with the eaplanation or other praaf of adoption.

putline din the pion, ond' to

outhori 2z responsible ogencies to Minutes of 3 toundl o othes meeting during which the phan Is

execude their responsibifities adopted witl be sufflaent if local law ik be

submitted o doosmemation of adoptlon The derkof the
governing bady, o dty ettarney, must pravide & copy of the low
snd e brief, written ion such a3, i Ith
section ___ of the dty codefordinance, this constitutes formal
ndapbon of the measure,” with an officiat sgnature.

(£ dopled after FEMA review, adoption must taka placs within
one colendar year of receipt of FEMA's “Appraval Pending
Adoptian ™ Sez Section S, Han Sewew froce dwe for more
inforreatian an *Appravable Pending Adoption ™

B Local Mitigation Plan Review Gutda



EZ For renlli |uibedie tional plans,
#as each jusdcdktion requesting
approw] of the plan documented
farma] paaadaption? 44 OR
201 BeNS)

dpignt Tademonstrote the
Iviisdiction's commibment to
Julfiling the hix ard mitlgation godls
outhnedin the plon, ond to
outhoize responsihle ogencies to
execule their resaonslukties.

Each jurtsdictiom thel iy invclisded In the plon memet hewe &
governing Body sdopt the plan prine to FERMA spproval eeen
when 2 regiona sgency has the sulhanty Lo prepare st olens

Aswhh sirgle jurisdictionat plans, in order for FEMA to give

=pproval ta 3 mutte pim, at feastone
junsdictian must farmatly adopt the plan within one calender year
of FEMA's desi af the plan 26 %) ble Pending

Adoptinn.” Ses Section 5, Mlon Bewew Froce dwe far more
Informetlon o "Approvabie Prnding Adagtion ™

tocal Mitigation Plan Review Guide 25

WELLFLEET | Hazard Mitigation Plan

199



SELECTBOARD

AGENDA ACTION REQUEST
Meeting Date: May 24, 2022

PUBLIC HEARINGS
~ A ~
REQUESTED BY: Michael DeVasto ~ Selectboard Member
DESIRED ACTION: | Amend the current Beach Rules & Regulations
PROPOSED I move to approve the amendments made to the current Beach
MOTION: Rules & Regulation.
SUMMARY:
Project Moved By: Seconded By:
Condition(s):
VOTED: Yea Nay Abstain




| Ad Preview |

WELLFLEET
SELECTBOARD
In accordance with MGL
Chapter 40A, Section 11, The
Wellfleet Selectboard will
hold a virtual and in person
public hearing TUESDAY,
MAY 24, 2022, at 7:00 p.m. af
the Wellfleet ACC, 715 Old
Kings Hwy, Wellfleet, MA
02667 to consider the follow-
ing:
To review, amend, and adopt
The Wellfleet Beach Rules
aond Regulations.
May 11, 18, 2022 7277707

272



TOWN OF WELLFLEET
BEACH RULES AND REGULATIONS
Amended 12/18/00, 02/24/03, 01/27/04, 05/11/04, 06/13/06, 06/26/07, 03/24/09, 1/26/10, 2/22/11,
8/14/2012, 2/26/2013, 4/22/2014, 5/10/2016, 4/11/2017, 1/23/2018, 6/11/2019, 1/12/2021, 5/26/2022

1. Authority

The Board of Selectmen of the Town of Wellfleet, MA, has adopted the following rules and regulations pertaining
to the use of all Town-owned landing places and beaches within the Town of Wellfleet pursuant to the provisions

of Mass. General Laws, Chapter 88, Section 19, Chapter 21, subsection (1) and Chapter 90B, Section 15(b) and
any amendments thereof.

2. Purpose and Intent

The purpose and intent of these regulations is to establish requirements for the orderly use of the bathing beaches
and associated parking areas owned by the Town of Wellfleet to protect the health and safety of the public and to
preserve and protect the resource areas covered by these regulations. A list of the applicable bathing beaches
within the Town of Wellfleet is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

3. Definition: “Summer season” is the period between the third Saturday in June through Labor Day between
the hours of 9:00 am and 5:00 pm. (amended 02/27/07)

4. Parking

Any motor vehicle parked at a Town landing place or beach or on Nauset Road in the marked area during the
summer season must clearly display a valid parking permit.

. Newcomb Hollow . The terminus of Chequessett Neck Road aka The Gut
. White Crest . Duck Harbor

. Maguire Landing at LeCount Hollow Powers Landing

o Gull Pond . Indian Neck

o Great Pond ° Nauset Road (designated area)

U Long Pond ° Burton Baker Beach

A. The permit must be permanently attached to the upper part of the exterior of the rearmost side window on the
driver’s side of the vehicle. (Taping of the sticker renders it invalid)

B. Any motor vehicle without a rear side window shall clearly display its permit on the upper portion of the
driver’s side window.

C. Vehicles that remove soft tops and side doors may put the sticker on the lower corner of the front windshield
in front of the driver.

D. Parking permits will not be issued to Dealer Plates unless authorized by the Director of Community Services.

E. Parking without a valid permit may be authorized only by the Director of Community Services. (amended
02/24/03, 01/27/04, 11/20/09)

F. All Town landing places and beaches shall be closed to parking between the hours of midnight and one half
hour before sunrise each day from June 1 to October 1 except to those persons actively engaged in fishing.

G. No trailers or overnight campers are allowed to park in beach areas or Town parking areas between midnight
and one half hour before sunrise from June 1 to October 1 except for those persons actively engaged in fishing.

H. Parking at Maguire Landing at LeCount Hollow is restricted to those vehicles with a Resident Beach
or a Resident Beach/Transfer sticker. (5/26/2022)



5. Prohibitions

A.

L=

=

Fishing or surf casting, water skiing and use of personal watercraft are prohibited within 500 feet of all Town
landing areas during the summer season. Personal watercraft are prohibited in any Town-owned parking lots
or on any Town- owned beaches (amended 01/27/04)

Surfing is prohibited during the summer season on the guarded portion of the beaches at Newcomb Hollow,
Cahoon Hollow or Maguire Landing at LeCount Hollow when the lifeguards are on duty. Surfing is
permitted during the summer season on the guarded portion of the beach at White Crest. (amended
03/24/06)

Hang gliding and para-gliding are prohibited at any Town beach or landing, adjacent dunes and parking lots
from April 15% through October 1. (amended 06/26/07)

Using, launching, landing or operating an unmanned aircraft from, above or on land, or waters associated with
any of the Town of Wellfleet bathing beaches is prohibited at all times by private individuals and entities
except as approved in writing by the Town Administrator. The term “unmanned aircraft” means a device that
is used or intended to be used for flight in the air without the possibility of direct human intervention from
within or on the device and the associated operational elements and components that are required for the pilot
or system or system operator in command to operate or control the device (such as cameras, sensors,
communication links). This term includes all types of devices that meet this definition (e.g. model airplanes,
quadrocoptors, drones) that are used for any purpose including recreation or commerce.

Garbage, litter and recycling of all kinds must be deposited in the specified containers or carried from the
area with you.

The use of soap, shampoo, detergents or cleaning substances is prohibited in all fresh water ponds.

Nudity is not permitted at any time on Town of Wellfleet beaches and landings. (amended 01/12/2021)

No rafts or other floatation devices may be used at any ocean beach without the permission of the
lifeguard(s) on duty during the summer season. (amended 01/27/04)

Climbing on all dunes and coastal banks is prohibited except along designated access routes to the beach.
Alcoholic beverages are prohibited on all Town property. (General By-Laws, Article VII, Section 19)

6. Animals

A.

B.

o™

No domesticated animals may be left unattended in any parked vehicle in any beach parking lot or in any
beach area or on Nauset Road from May 1% to October 1.

The owner or person in charge of any domesticated animal that defecates on any Town of Wellfleet owned
property shall promptly remove the fecal matter and dispose of it in a place where it will not cause pollution
either directly or indirectly of any pond, wetland, groundwater or coastal water.

. All domesticated animals must be leashed at all times on Town beaches and landings where they are permitted.
. Domesticated animals are not allowed on the lifeguarded portions of Newcomb Hollow, Cahoon Hollow,

White Crest and Maguire Landing at LeCount Hollow between the hours of 9am and 5pm during the summer
season except to walk from the parking lot to a point beyond the end of the guarded beach.

Domesticated animals are never allowed on the following salt water beaches and landings: Burton Baker,
Indian Neck and Nauset Road, Mayo Beach and Powers Landing.

Domesticated animals shall be kept away from bathers at all town landings and beaches at all times.

. Domesticated animals are not allowed in the following freshwater ponds or on the beaches of these ponds:

Gull Pond, Long Pond, Great Pond, Duck Pond, Higgins Pond, the Sluiceway, Spectacle Pond, or Dyer Pond
from May 15" through October 15th. (amended 03/24/09)

7. Lessons and Events

A.

Permission to Use Town Property must be obtained from the Wellfleet Board of Selectmen to use a Town

beach or landing prior to and for the purpose of:

» giving lessons of any kind
+ conducting canoe, SUP Board or kayak tours or lessons



* holding events
 conducting a private rental business of canoes, kayaks and SUP boards in which the agent of the business
drops off the vessels at Town Landings for use by private individuals for a fee.

. Liability insurance naming the Town of Wellfleet as an additional insured in the amount of
$1,000,000 is required.

. A fee may be required by the Selectboard.

. All surfing lessons and surfing competitions shall be limited to White Crest Beach and adjacent

parking lots. (amended 06/13/06, 03/24/09)
B. Activities at Gull Pond are limited to:
* Swimming Lessons conducted by the Recreation Department
* Extended Day Summer Recreation conducted by the Recreation Department
* Supervised canoe and kayak tours by the Cape Cod National Seashore or by the Mass Audubon

8. Enforcement Penalties

A.

Whoever violates any provision of these rules and regulations may, in the discretion of officers of Wellfleet
Police Department, the Director of Community Services, Harbormaster, Assistant Harbormaster, Shellfish
Constable, Deputy Shellfish Constables and Animal Control Officer be penalized by a non-criminal complaint
pursuant to the provisions of M.G.L Chapter 40, Section 21D and be subject to a fine according to the schedule
listed below. A violation of each specific rule or regulation shall be deemed a separate offense, and each day
on which a violation occurs or continues shall be deemed a separate offense, subject to the penalties stated
herein. (03/24/09. 1/26/10, 8/14/2012, 6/11, 2019, 1/12/2021)

Schedule of Fines
a. Section 6
i. First Offense $50
ii. Second Offense $100
iii. Third Offense $300
iv. Fourth or subsequent offense $500
b. All other Sections $75 per offense
If the payment for such a fine or any other outstanding fees owed to the Town of Wellfleet is not received by

the Town within the time mandated by the department charging the fee, the violator shall lose the right to
obtain or use a Wellfleet Beach Fire Permit and a Wellfleet Beach Parking Permit. Permits will be issued only
upon verification in writing that the required payment has been received by the Town.



Town of Wellfleet

WELLFLEET SELECT BOARD
PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE

In accordance with MGL Chapter
130 Sections 52, 57, 58, 60, and
68 and all applicable Town Shellfish
Regulations, notice is hereby given
that the Wellfleet Selectboard will
hold a virtual and in-person public
hearing on TUESDAY, MAY 24,
2022 at 7:00 p.m. at the Wellfleet
ACC, 715 Old Kings Hwy, Wellfleet,
MA 02667 to consider the following:

Individual votes to consider if each
of the following license holders’
grant licenses will be forfeited for
failure to meet minimum productivi-
ty per Town of Wellfleet Shellfishing
Policy and Regulations Sections
7.12 Evidence of Productivity: Use
It or Lose It, 7.12.2. Failure to Meet
Production Levels and 7.13.3 Noti-
fication of Failure to Meet Minimal
Requirements. List is in alphabeti-
cal order.

1) Agquacultural Research Corpo-
ration, Dennis, MA, for grant
#792 consisting of three acres
on Indian Neck

2) James Gray and Allison Gray,
Wellfleet, MA, for grant #7312
consisting of 0.5 acres on Old
Wharf Point

3) David Paine and Kristi Johns,
Wellfleet, MA, for grant #s 851,
863 and 861-B consisting of a
total of 2.5 acres on Field Point

4) Keith Rose and Lisa Dexter,
Wellfleet, MA, for grant #s 95-25
and 95-26 consisting of a total
of two acres on Egg Island

5) William Young, Jr., Wellfleet,
MA, for grant #01-04 consisting
of three acres on Indian Neck

Published: Independent, May 12
and 19, 2022



SELECTBOARD

AGENDA ACTION REQUEST ‘ /
Meeting Date: May 24, 2022

PUBLIC HEARINGS
~B ~

REQUESTED BY: | Nancy Civetta ~ Shellfish Constable

DESIRED ACTION: | To discuss and vote on the appeal made by James Gray and
Allison Gray regarding minimum productivity for license # 7312

consisting of 0.5 acres on Old Wharf Road.

PROPOSED
' MOTION:

Summary:

ACTION TAKEN: Moved By: Seconded By:

Condition(s):

VOTED: Yea Nay Abstain




SELECTBOARD

AGENDA ACTION REQUEST
Meeting Date: May 24, 2022

PUBLIC HEARINGS
~(C ~
REQUESTED BY: Nancy Civetta ~ Shellfish Constable
DESIRED ACTION: | To discuss the appeal made by David Paine and Kristi Johns
regarding minimum productivity for license’s #851, 863, and
861-B consisting of 2.5 acres on Field Point
PROPOSED
MOTION:
SUMMARY:
ACTION TAKEN: Moved By: Seconded By:
Condition(s):
VOTED: Yea Nay Abstain




SELECTBOARD

AGENDA ACTION REQUEST
Meeting Date: May 24, 2022

PUBLIC HEARINGS
~D ~

REQUESTED BY: Nancy Civetta ~ Shellfish Constable

DESIRED ACTION: | To discuss the appeal made by Keith Rose and Lisa Dexter
regarding minimum productivity for grant license #92-25 and

95-26 consisting of a total of two acres on Egg Island

PROPOSED
MOTION:

SUMMARY:

ACTION TAKEN: Moved By: Seconded By:

Condition(s):

VOTED: Yea Nay Abstain




SELECTBOARD

AGENDA ACTION REQUEST
Meeting Date: May 24, 2022

PUBLIC HEARINGS
~ E a4
REQUESTED BY: Nancy Civetta ~ Shellfish Constable
DESIRED ACTION: | To discuss the appeal made by William Young, Jr. regarding
minimum productivity for grant license #01-04 consisting of
three acres on Indian Neck
PROPOSED
MOTION:
SUMMARY:
ACTION TAKEN: Moved By: Seconded By:
Condition(s):
VOTED: Yea Nay Abstain




SELECTBOARD

AGENDA ACTION REQUEST
Meeting Date: May 24, 2022

PUBLIC HEARINGS
1~ F ~7

REQUESTED BY: Nancy Civetta ~ Shellfish Constable

DESIRED ACTION: | To discuss the status of license holder Aquacultural Research
Corporation (ARC) of Shellfish grant License #792 with regards
to Sections 7.8.1. Eligibility requirements, 7.8.2 domicile
requirement and exception, 7.8.8 aquacultural research and
development projects

PROPOSED

MOTION:

SUMMARY:

ACTION TAKEN: Moved By: Seconded By:
Condition(s):

VOTED: Yea Nay Abstain




SELECTBOARD

AGENDA ACTION REQUEST
Meeting Date: May 24, 2022

PUBLIC HEARINGS
~ G ~7
 REQUESTED BY: Nancy Civetta ~ Shellfish Constable
DESIRED ACTION: | To discuss the appeal from Aquacultural Research Corporation,
Dennis MA regarding minimum productivity for grant #792
consisting of 3 acres on Indian Neck
PROPOSED
MOTION:
SUMMARY:
ACTION TAKEN: Moved By: Seconded By:
Condition(s):
VOTED: Yea Nay Abstain




SELECTBOARD

AGENDA ACTION REQUEST ‘ 2 I
Meeting Date: May 24, 2022

BUSINESS 11
~A ~

REQUESTED BY: Ryan Curley ~ Chair

DESIRED ACTION: | To discuss what needs to be done to ensure town meeting is

successful ~ the board will check in the town moderator.

PROPOSED No motion is needed for this agenda item

MOTION:

SUMMARY:

ACTION TAKEN: Moved By: Seconded By:
Condition(s):

VOTED: Yea Nay Abstain




SELECTBOARD

AGENDA ACTION REQUEST ‘ ) I
Meeting Date: May 24, 2022 y

BUSINESS 11
~B ~

REQUESTED BY: Charlie Sumner ~ Town Administrator

DESIRED ACTION: | Charlie will give an update to the board of his progress
regarding his discussions with the collective bargaining Units

within the town.

PROPOSED If a motion is needed one will be made at the town of the meeting.
MOTION:
SUMMARY:
ACTION TAKEN: Moved By: Seconded By:
Condition(s):

VOTED: Yea Nay Abstain




SELECTBOARD =

AGENDA ACTION REQUEST ‘ ) I
Meeting Date: May 24, 2022
BUSINESS I
~ C ~7

REQUESTED BY: Ryan Curley ~ Chair
DESIRED ACTION: | The chair will discuss with the board and give instructions to all

town boards and committees who will be meeting in person

moving forward.
PROPOSED If a motion is needed one will be made at the town of the meeting.—
MOTION:
SUMMARY:
ACTION TAKEN: Moved By: Seconded By:

Condition(s):
VOTED: Yea Nay Abstain




SELECTBOARD = 5

AGENDA ACTION REQUEST ‘ } II
Meeting Date: May 24, 2022 '

SELECTBOARD REPORTS:




SELECTBOARD

AGENDA ACTION REQUEST \ / II I
Meeting Date: May 24, 2022
1

TOWN ADMINISTRATORS & ASSISTANT TOWN
ADMINISTRATOR REPORTS

e Charlie will give a verbal update to the board and
public at this meeting



SELECTBOARD

AGENDA ACTION REQUEST
Meeting Date: May 24, 2022

IX

TOPICS FOR FUTURE DISCUSSION

e The Selectboard will discuss a list of current items that are

outstanding




SELECTBOARD

AGENDA ACTION REQUEST —x‘
Meeting Date: May 24, 2022

CORRESPONDENCE AND VACANCY REPORTS

***Please see the packet for full reports***



Ik F& ],_@ zFrom |Subject ‘Receivedr |Size |¥

Today —
{| Rebekah Eldr... scanned correspondence Thu 5/19/2022 ... 839 KB
| got to the mail this morning.. Rebekah L . Eldridge Executive Assistant to the Town Administrator (508) 349-0300 ext 1100
Massachuset... Senate budget debate begins Tuesday, please contact your Senators a... Thu 5/19/2022 ... 62 KB
<https://www.informz.net/admin31/images/spacer.gif> N
Charles Sum... FW: Wellfleet Thu 5/19/2022 ... 16 KB
FYl only. ) ]
Charles Sum... FW: Open Meeting Law Complaint Thu 5/19/2022 ... 21 KB
FYI Only — : —T
Michael DeV... Mosquito alert Thu 5/19/2022 ... 14 KB
FYI- I'm already seeing irregularly high mosquito activity on Pole Dike rd. <end>
Yesterday

Massachuset... CORRECTION: Important Details: Save the Date! MOD Disability Summit Wed 5/18/2022... 64 KB
A hybrid event October 27 at 10 AM o -

Nancy Civetta FW: Shellfish Advisory Panel Meeting this Friday Wed 5/18/2022... 23 KB
The Shellfish Department posted this on our Facebook page already, but we wanted to forward the State’s email to ensure you all are

Welifleet Cha... Ptown, Truro & Wellfleet Residents: Public Health Needs Assessment Wed 5/18/2022... 76 KB

Massachuset... Important Details: Save the Datel MOD Disability Summit Wed 5/18/2022... 61 KB
- Thur_gday, October 27 at 10 AM
Helen Miran... PS Re. Agenda item request. Wed 5/18/2022... 14 KB
At their last meeting, the ZBA discussed a lack of follow up on this on the part of the SB/Town. Having a report from the ZBA and the
Helen Miran... Agenda item request. Wed 5/18/2022... 250 KB
B Begin forwarded message: _|}
Wellfleet Cha... Your Customers 0 Wellfleet Chamber Guidebooks Wed 5/18/2022... 74 KB
_ Pick up copies for your business!
Wellfleet Cha... Wellfleet's Parade is back on Monday, July 4 us Wed 5/18/2022... 74 KB

"Hometown Heroes" coming to a parade near you!

Tuesday
Nancy Civetta Recreational Shellfish Crier: Breakwater on Indian Neck Closed, Regula... Tue 5/17/2022 ... 52 KB
Town Shellfish Crier May 17, 2022

Wellfleet Cul... Ask Your Senator To Support Increased Arts Funding Tue 5/17/2022 ... 69 KB
Building Community Through Cultural Engagement B
l] Rebekah Eldr... Fwd: KP Law, P.C. eUpdate / SCOTUS - Boston's Flag-Raising Decision ... Tue 5/17/2022 ... 843 KB
Please see the attached for tonight's meeting. Rebekah

Helen Miran... CONFIDENTIAL: Document or 5/17/22 Executive Session Tue 5/17/2022 ... 464 KB
Sh, no reply or “reply all” please. This document was somehow not included in our Exec. Sess. packet. b
B Patricia Lem... Fwd: Tue 5/17/2022 ... 2MB
- Hi James and Christine,
Michael Hurley Re: Touch a Truck Event Tue 5/17/2022 ... 23 KB
Lol Devasto and his family dunked me few times Sent from my iPhone
Michael Hurley Touch a Truck Event Tue 5/17/2022 ... 20 KB
Good morning Select Board members, | wanted to send a quick email recapping a successful Touch-A-Truck event held this past
Wellfleet Cha... Support Individuals and Families Living & Working in Wellfleet Tue 5/17/2022 ... 89 KB
Monday
Massachuset... Save the Date! MOD Disability Summit Mon 5/16/2022... 59 KB
_Thursday, October 27 at 10 AM S
Sunday

MA Division ... Commercial Trap Gear Fishery to Open and Small Vessel Speed Limit t... Sun 5/15/2022 ... 47 KB
Commercial Trap Gear Fishery to Open and Small Vessel Speed Limit to Expire Effective Monday, May 16th
Last Week

MA Division ... Saturday May 14th Update on DMF's Monitoring for Right Whales in C... Sat 5/14/2022 ... 45 KB
Saturday May 14th Update on DMF's Monitoring for Right Whales in Coastal Waters - o

Wellfleet Cul... Cultural Council Supported Events Next Weekend! Sat 5/14/2022.. 84 KB
Building Community Through Cultural Engagement

ryan.d.curley@gmail.com 1 5/19/2022 3:42 PM



'D E;‘IEI ‘From ‘Subject Received™ ‘Size v

§ Rebekah Eldr... CONFIDENTIAL Fri 5/13/2022 3... 11 MB
Happy Friday, | have attached your packet for Tuesday’s meeting. There are hard copies for those of you that like them in your office
Ryan Curley  Re: June 21st SB meeting to Thursday June 28th Fri 5/13/2022 1... 17 KB
- It's a reqular meeting
Helen Miran... Re: June 21st SB meeting to Thursday June 28th Fri 5/13/2022 1... 11 KB
What's it about?
MA Division ... Applicants Sought for ASMFC Advisory Panels Fri 5/13/2022 1... 51 KB
Applicants Sought for ASMFC Advisory Panels o B
MA Division ... Update on DMF's Monitoring for Right Whales in Coastal Waters Fri 5/13/2022 1... 46 KB
Update on DMF's Monitoring for Right Whales in Coastal Waters -
Ryan Curley  Re: June 21st SB meeting to Thursday June 28th Fri 5/13/2022 1... 16 KB
Hi Suzanne says it will be difficult to get the meeting room set up by Thursday June 23rd so | am scheduling the meeting for Tuesday
i Charles Sum... FW: DASHBOARD REPORT--MAY 4, 2022 Fri 5/13/20229... 6 MB
— From: Giovanna Venditti <vendittiu@nausetschools.org> B
Ryan Curley  June 21st SB meeting to Thursday June 23rd? Fri 5/13/2022 8... 15 KB
Hi everyone | realized last night with the new schedule the board has a meeting scheduled for June 21st which is the same date as
{} Michael Hurley Draft Hazard Mitigation Plan Thu 5/12/2022 ... 7MB
Hello All, We are in the home stretch of finally compteting this review and approval of the Hazard Mitigation Plan 2022. This review
ﬂ Ryan Curley  Fwd: FW: TA Contract Thu 5/12/2022 ... 39 KB
---------- Forwarded message --------- -
Community ... CDP and HPC Launch Housing and ADU Resource Center Thu 5/12/2022 ... 54 KB

Ryan Curley  Re: Jordan Halloran-Wellfleet-Shellfish Constable Training Certificate Thu 5/12/2022 ... 24 KB
Tell her congrats from me!

ﬂ Rebekah Eldr... 2022 ANNUAL TOWN MEETING WARRANT Thu 5/12/2022 ... 1 MB
DRUM ROLL PLEASE....... Attached is the Final Town Meeting Warrant! Rebekah L Eldridge Executive Assistant to the Town ]
i Nancy Civetta Jordan Halloran-Wellfleet-Shellfish Constable Training Certificate Thu 5/12/2022 ... 3 MB
Hi Julia, Please find here attached Jordan Halloran’s certificate for having completed the state required Mass. Shellfish Officers
Rebekah Eldr... Warrant Thu 5/12/2022 ... 37 KB
Good Afternoon! | am happy to announce that we have the warrant ready. | am sending it to the printer right after this email and |
Jennifer Con... RE: WHC Approved Minutes 4-6-2022 Thu 5/12/2022 ... 39 KB
All set! Jennifer M.Congel Town Clerk Town of Wellfleet, Ma B 1
U Wellfleet His... WHC Approved Minutes 4-6-2022 Thu 5/12/2022 ... 276 KB
Attached please find the approved minutes for our April 6, 2022 meeting. Wellfleet Historical Commission Town Hall o
{} RyanCurley SB Regular Meeting Schedule Thu 5/12/2022 ... 39 KB
Hi all attached is an updated schedule of our meetings. If there is an obvious mistake or if you have a foreseeable scheduling conflict
Wellfleet Cha... A message for Members and Friends of the Wellfleet Chamber Wed 5/11/2022... 69 KB

Wellfleet Cha... Wellfleet Historical Society & Museum: Calendar of Events and Emplo... Wed 5/11/2022... 73 KB
New for 2022! -

Ryan Curley  Fwd: And Curt’s #s must be way off Wed 5/11/2022... 17 KB
—————————— Forwarded message --------- —__ -

Ryan Curley  Fwd: Any financial report needs to include dates you spoke with Harry... Wed 5/11/2022... 18 KB
---------- Forwarded message ---------

William lacu... Regarding the GWR Situation Wed 5/11/2022... 18 KB
= Dear ZBA Members. It puzzles me why the ZBA would even entertain an appeal from GWR given that they have not abided by your
[] Ryan Curley  Outstanding Agenda ltems Tue 5/10/2022 ... 53 KB
Hi All these are currently outstanding items. Not fully taking into account anything from today. <end> N
Q Ryan Curley  Animal Control Bylaw Changes Tue 5/10/2022 ... 869 KB

Hi Al this is the existing and proposed animal control bylaw. I've highlighted where the changes are throughout. There are likely
Helen Miran... NOT FOR TONIGHT'S AGENDA Selectboard report: re. Wellfleet Shellfi... Tue 5/10/2022 ... 222 KB
Sb no reply. This update will be included in my report tonight. No opinions included here. -
Smart Cities ... Get your Smart Cities Week ticket and join Smart Cities Academy free.  Tue 5/10/2022 ... 36 KB
Join us in Denver, May 23-24.

Ryan Curley  Re: GOOD NEWS! Tue 5/10/2022 ... 16 KB
Helen this is OML violation.
Helen Miran... Premature sending... Tue 5/10/2022 ... 14 KB

....cat on key board. <end>
ryan.d.curley@gmail.com 2 5/19/2022 3:42 PM




!lD IE, ‘@ From 'Subject  |Received® ISize v

Helen Miran... GOOD NEWS! Tue 5/10/2022 ... 14 KB
The possible regulation that could accommodate ARG, as well as any other entity that might apply to use the fishery for purposes
Massachuset... Alert: SENATE W&M COMMITTEE Releases FY2023 Budget Tue 5/10/2022 ... 63 KB
<https://www.informz.net/admin31/images/spacer.gif> N -
[ Charles Sum... FW: Budget with Cuts Tue 5/10/2022 ... 105 KB
Good afternoon all, Attached are 2 documents that | will present this evening under Article No. 2 — Alternative Budget. The ]
Helen-Miran... Re. ATM 2022 Warrant; Deletion of previous “Dog Leash By-Law" Tue 5/10/2022 ... 24 KB
HI EVERYONE (Sh no reply or "reply all, please.). B B
ﬂ Ryan Curley 80 State Hwy Timeline Tue 5/10/2022 ... 35 KB
e -- Sincerely, Ryan Curley (508)-246-4718
MA Municipa... Reminder: Input Needed for Select Board Handbook Update Tue 5/10/2022 ... 41 KB
Feedback Needed for Select Board Handbook Update o
Ryan Curley  Fwd: Affordable Housing Trust ATM Recommendation Votes Tue 5/10/2022 ... 18 KB
---------- Forwarded message --------- B B
ﬂ Ryan Curley  Fwd: Mail Tue 5/10/2022 ... 1MB

—————————— Forwarded message ---------

@ Charles Sum... FW: Town of Wellfleet Selectboard - Response to Open Meeting Law C... Tue 5/10/2022 ... 3 MB
FY! only no replies please. Charlie Charles L. Sumner Interim Town Administrator Town of Wellfleet

Wellfleet Cha... Opening Day at the Wellfleet Farmers Market! Tue 5/10/2022 ... 69 KB
Tomorrow, Wednesday, May 11 // 8am-noon
i Ryan Curley  Shelifish Constable's Proposed Regulations Mon 5/9/2022 ... 47 KB
Hi All, attached are proposed regulations formulated by the Shelifish Constable for non-domicaled entities, my understanding is that
ﬂ Charles Sum... FW: updated warrant Mon 5/9/2022 ... 69 KB
‘Good morning all, We will incorporate these changes in the final warrant document, and review tomorrow evening. Charlie Sumner
ﬂ ciotti_family... WHA April minutes Sun 5/8/2022 1.... 53 KB
Jennifer, Attached please find two (2) sets of WHA April minutes. Thanks Richard <end>
Ryan Curley  Re: Working Group press release with amendments. Sun 5/8/2022 9:... 19 KB
Hi Helen we had decided on Friday to not include the list of people on the press release to keep it under 500 words. That information
D Ryan Curley  Fwd: Board of Registrars Sun 5/8/2022 9:.... 576 KB
—————————— Forwarded message --------- - R
Wellfleet Cha... Networking tomorrow at WHAT + Vote for the Parade theme! us Sun 5/8/2022 7:... 84 KB
Monday, May 9 // 5:30-7:00pm
Two Weeks Ago -
Helen Miran... Also, please add: Sat 5/7/2022 2:... 15 KB
Also Nancy Najmi and Susan Spear. | wasn't sent a list of the names last night so it took awhile to get it together. <end>
Helen Miran... Fwd: Working Group press release with amendments. Sat 5/7/2022 1.... 189 KB
[ Rebekah, | forgot -please add Sarah Pechukas to the Working Group list. Thank you. -
Helen Miran... KPLaw/Sb April 18,2022 OML complaint response. Sat 5/7/2022 1:... 142KB
With typo, etc. corrections. Please insert dates that we pinned down last night. | didn’t make notes of them. <end>
[] Helen Miran... Working Group press release with amendments. Sat 5/7/2022 1... 184 KB
Sb, no reply please. <end> B B
ﬂ Ryan Curley = Amended Press Release Fri 5/6/2022 7:... 41KB
-- Sincerely, Ryan Curley (508)-246-4718
ﬂ Rebekah Eldr... Agenda and Packet for May 10, 2022 Fri 5/6/2022 4.... 12 MB
Happy Friday, Attached is the agenda and packet for Tuesday night's meeting. Have a nice weekend Rebekah Rebekah L. |
Helen Miran... For tonight's meeting. Re. OML complaint. Fri 5/6/2022 2:... 17 KB
Sb, no reply please. 3
Ryan Curley  Fwd: FW: DLS Alert: FORWARD Bill - Projects by Municipality Fri 5/6/2022 2:... 38 KB
T Forwarded message --------- B -
Ryan Curley  Meeting Tuesday May 17th @ 7pm Fri 5/6/2022 11... 15 KB
Hi, All | am scheduling a meeting for Tuesday, May 17th @ 7pm there will be a couple of items in open session and then the
Smart Cities C... See you at Smart Cities Week! Fri 5/6/2022 8:44... 42 KB

Join us in Denver this May.

Massachuset... DMF Virtual Meeting 2022 Vibrio Parahaemolyticus Control Plan for O... Fri 5/6/2022 7:... 49 KB
free registration required
{l Jude Ahern please include Janet Reinhart's email admitting the intentional act in ... Thu 5/5/2022 6... 1 MB

You forgot this. Please include it with my complaint. Thank you. <end>

ryan.d.curley@gmail.com 3 5/19/2022 3:42 PM



!lD ‘ﬂ_ 0 ‘From iSubject Received™ gze v

U Rebekah Eldr... agenda and packet for May 6, 2022 Thu 5/5/2022 2... 895 KB
| have attached your packet for tomorrow night's meeting. Please let me know if you have any questions. Rebekah L . Eldridge
Jude Ahern Fwd: to confirm what you just said Thu 5/5/2022 9... 19 KB
Begin forwarded message: ) B -
[j Jude Ahern copy of my April 18 OML complaint not in May 6 packet Thu 5/5/2022 7:3... 3 MB

Dear Selectboard: Unlike my OML from April 4th (about March 8), my April 18 OML complaint (about April 12) is not included in

ryan.d.curley@gmail.com 4 5/19/2022 3:42 PM



SELECTBOARD '

AGENDA ACTION REQUEST
Meeting Date: May 24, 2022

MINUTES
REQUESTED BY: [ Executive Assistant
DESIRED ACTION: | Approval of Minutes

e April 26, 2022

e May 6, 2022
PROPOSED I move to approve the Minutes of April 26, 2022 and May 6,
MOTION: 2022; as printed in draft.
ACTION TAKEN: Moved By: Seconded By:

Condition(s):

VOTED: Yea Nay Abstain




DRAFT »#+4 Sfull recording of this meeting can be found on the town’s website***

Wellfleet Selectboard
Tuesday April 26, 2022; 7pm
Virtual Meeting ~ Zoom
Meeting Agenda

Members Present: Ryan Curley, Chair; Michael DeVasto, Vice Chair; Janet Reinhart, Helen
Miranda Wilson, John Wolf

Others Present: Charlie Sumner, Town Administrator; Rebekah Eldridge, Executive Assistant;
Kathleen Bacon, Wellfleet Resident; Daniel Silverman, Town Moderator; Elaine Mcllroy,
housing authority; Gerald Parent, Chair of the Wellfleet Planning Board; Jim Hood, Chair Board
of Water Commissioners, Curt Felix, Board of Water Commissioner Member; Will Sullivan,
Harbormaster; Suzanne Grout-Thomas, Beach Director

Chair Curley Called the meeting to order at 7:04pm.

L Announcements, Open Session and Public Comments
Note: Public comments must be brief. The Board will not deliberate or vote on any
matter raised solely during Announcements & Public Comments.
Chair Curley announced to the public that the town of Wellfleet Selectboard has
reached a purchase and sales agreement to purchase Maurice’s Campground. He gave
some information on the special town meeting and stated that more information can
be found on the press release for this purchase.
Bacon questioned the board about the status of the fuel tanks to be installed at the
pier, Chair Curley referred to Sumner, who explained that this project has gone out to
bid and they will need to begin that again.
Wilson announced that on May 2, 2022, from 12pm to 7pm the voting polls will be
open to vote in selectboard, school committee and other town candidates.

1L Consent Agenda
A. Baker’s Field ~ Wellfleet PTA ~ May 28, 2022, 9am to 5pm, (rain date May 29,
2022, 9am to Spm)
Chair Curley Moved; Board Member Seconded and it was voted to adopt
the consent agenda as presented, with no fee to be charged.
Roll Call Vote: 5-0

L. Letter in response to Open Meeting Law Complaint filed April 4,
2022, by Judith Ahern
The board continued and began to address the complaint. Wilson spoke to the letter
and stated she read through it and made some minor changes to be sent to town
counsel and get her amendments added to the letter. Wolf spoke to the board about
the complaint and questioned the need for an open meeting law complaint, stating
he didn’t feel that this incident didn’t rise to the level of an open meeting law
complaint.



DRAFT 4 full recording of this meeting can be found on the town’s website***

Board Member Wilson Moved; Board Member Reinhart Seconded; and it was
voted send the official report of the open meeting law complaint filed on April
4,2022, by Judith Ahern with the amendments to the Attorney general’s office.
Roll Call Vote: 5-0

Ahern spoke to the board and asked that the letter be added to the public record so it
can be read by the public. Ahern corrected the chair and stated that she wanted it
listed as public documents in the meeting minutes.

Iv.  Special Town Meeting
Silverman spoke to the board and public about the special town meeting in the fall.
He requested that the meeting be held on the 14™ of September as the 10" of
September is very close to Labor Day Weekend and felt it might be difficult for
residents to focus being so close to Labor Day.
The board discussed this and the issues with weather and changing the original date.
Chief Hurley informed the group that there is road race that day. The board
discussed this and came to the decision that keeping the fall town meeting on the
10t of September.
Silverman asked them to keep in mind that the special provisions issued by the
governor will be expired and the lower quorum will no longer be in effect. He also
asked to keep the options available to have the meeting inside.
Before the board moved on Chair Curley asked Sumner to introduce to the board
and public the “Plan B” article in the warrant. Sumner explained that the budget as
it is right now, exceeds the funds that the town has. There needs to be a proposition
2 Y override at town meeting. IF that doesn’t happen o the ballot and the override
fails, there is no budget. The Department of Revenue suggested that the town have 2
warrant articles that will explain each budget to the voters.
Silverman recommended voting on both budgets so the public can see what they’ve
voted. Bacon spoke again and stated that he agrees with the moderator to have both
budgets discussed and voted on at one meeting. Stating that she feels it would be
difficult to have two town meetings so close together.
Ahern questioned the unaccounted money, Sumner responded stating that is an
inaccurate statement as no money is missing, he explained that there were ledgers
that were filled in incorrectly. He continued stating the finance team has met with
the department of revenue and they will be closing fiscal years 2020, and 2021
within the coming weeks. He reiterated there is no missing money rather poor
record keeping from past employees.
No Action was taken

V. 95 Lawrence Road PEL
Mcllroy spoke to this letter. Chair Curley had one amendment. They discussed the
letter and fully supported the letter.
Chair Curley moved, Board Member Wilson Seconded, and it was voted to
approve the letter as amended and o designate the chair to sign it on behalf of
the Selectboard.
Roll Call Vote: 5-0



DRAFT 4 Sfull recording of this meeting can be found on the town’s website***

V1.  Planning Board Contractor’s Yard Zoning Amendment
Parent spoke to the board to discuss what the planning Board has discussed and
presented to the board how they came to this decision. He explained what was
changed in the bylaw and why the planning board came to those decisions. There
were some questions from the board to Parent and they discussed some scenarios
concerning a contractor’s yard. It was discussed that this zoning bylaw needs to
remain on the June town meeting warrant due to the fact that the Planning Board
had their public hearing for the bylaw change in February and there needs to be a
town meeting 45 days after the public hearing. They discussed more about
permitted uses.
Chair Curley Moved, Board Member Wilson Seconded, and it was voted to
insert and recommend the article amending the Wellfleet Zoning Bylaw
Contractor’s Yard into the Wellfleet Annual Town Meeting Warrant.
Roll Call Vote: 5-0
Before Parent left the meeting, he announced his gratitude for Reinhart’s service.

vil. Enterprise Budgets
A. Water Enterprise Budget ~ Karen Plantier/Jim Hood

Hood was on the meeting and spoke to his budget and asked the board some
time to fix and adjust the schedule within their budget. The warrant is due to
close on May 10, 2022, and all articles need to be reviewed and commented on.
Sumner spoke to the board and stated he would be willing to allow Hood to
meet with Souve and himself to.
No Action was taken on this agenda item.
Water Rate Service~ Felix spoke to the rate survey and had a small slide show
presentation for the board and public. He explained the new rate structure the
board has been working on with the water consultant to help the enterprise
budget be able to be less dependent on subsidizing their account. Felix
explained to the board the breakdown of the benefits of having this new rate
structure. Felix stated that the Board of Water Commissioners have voted in
favor of this new rate structure. Sumner agreed that this new rate schedule will
help the enterprise fund be able to cover costs that they incur. Beginning to start
a small reserve to help build up the fund.
They continued discussing the rates and the benefits to the town for having the
rates be changed and looking into grants to help rid the debt of the water system.
It was discussed to have the DPW help set up new customers to the water
system to reduce the amount of money that it costs to connect to the water. The
discussion continued for a while going into the need for water and health aspect
of town water. There was some opposition, due to the cost of connecting to
town water.

B. Marina Enterprise Budget ~ Will Sullivan ~ Harbormaster
Sullivan spoke to the board about his enterprise fund he questioned the board as
to what they wanted to discuss regarding this budget. He stated there was
nothing significant in changes and stated that they are running on the same
budget. He explained to the board that there needs to be some increase in fees
for the marina to be able to pay for the marina’s needs. Board Member DeVasto

3



DRAFT +++4 Sfull recording of this meeting can be found on the town’s website***

spoke to the board and asked Sullivan if there would be an increase in fee
schedule in the upcoming year? Sumner explained a huge priority of the town in
the upcoming year will be to have an increase in fees. He gave some examples
on what could happen if the fees weren’t adjusted. Sullivan gave some details on
how he has been working keep the budget the same but with the inflation and
changes within the harbor he agrees that there needs to be an increase.

Chair Curley Moved; Board Member Wilson Seconded, and it was voted to
approve the 2023 Marina Enterprise Budget as presented.

Roll Call Vote: 5-0

vill. Community Concerns
A. Lt. Island Bridge Railings

The board discussed the bridge and it’s railings. Chair Curley spoke to the rust
on the railings. Wolf asked if wood would hold up better and questioned the
actual problem of this railing. It was discussed that railings could be dangerous
as it has been known to have children jump off the bridge and the railings could
cause more harm than good. The railings won’t stop people from trying to jump
so it should be taken down.
Chair Curley Moved; to remove the railing at the Lt. Island Road Bridge;
Board Member Wolf Seconded.
Roll Call Vote: 2-3
MOTION FAILED

B. Ocean View Drive/Cahoon Hollow Issues
Chief Hurley spoke to the board about these issues. He stated they are going on
year five with the discussion at this beach and the many issues that surround this
situation. He stated that they continue to have the conversations about no
alcohol on town property but is allowed on the National Seashore which is a
growing problem for the many departments that run the beaches during the
summer. Chief Hurley continued to give statistics over the past few years with
busses coming to the beach and informed them with the summer officer program
being removed the lack of help for his department is an issue. Chair Curley gave
some ideas on how to regulate people coming from the seashore to Cahoon
Hollow which is considered town property. He suggested a fence to let people
know where the town property line is.
The board discussed the issues concerning Cahoon Hollow and Ocean View
Drive, the parties and how will they be able to limit these parties and if they
even can limit them. Reinhart asked if the board/town could put a maximum
capacity on the beach. Thomas expressed that they couldn’t because of the
seashore and the large size of the beach, she added it would be difficult to know
when to shut that number off.
It was discussed to charge for getting onto Cahoon Hollow beach.
This discussion continued at great length, discussing charging to get onto the
beach, more for parking.
No Action was taken



DRAFT #++4 Sfull recording of this meeting can be found on the town’s website***

IX. Annual Town Meeting Warrant
A. Police Department New Staff ~ Chief Curley

Chair Curley explained why he was waiting on taking a vote on this particular
item but stated he was ready to do so now.
Board Member Wilson Moved; Board Member DeVasto Seconded, and it
was voted to reconsider the recommendation for the Police Department
New Staff warrant article.
Roll Call Vote: 5-0

Chair Curley Moved; Board Member Wilson Seconded; and it was voted to

insert and recommend the Police Department article into the annual town

meeting warrant.

Roll Call Vote: 5-0

B. Plastic Bottle Bylaw Amendment

Placing the plastic bottle bylaw on the special town meeting warrant
Chair Curley Moved, Board Member DeVasto Seconded; and it was
voted to reconsider the plastic bottle bylaw for the town meeting
warrant.
Roll Call Vote: 5-0

Chair Curley Moved; Board Member Wilson Seconded and it was
moved to amend the plastic bottle bylaw as drafted and delete it
from the annual town meeting warrant and place it in the special fall
town meeting warrant.

Roll Call Vote: 5-0

C. Insertion of Housing Stabilization Fund A ~ Chair Curley
Chair Curley stated that town counsel explained that these funds need to go into
a special purchase fund. The board discussed this at great length discussing the
dire need for housing in Wellfleet and all over the cape. Chair Curley stated he
spoke with town counsel to get clarification on the articles
The discussion continued about housing and the importance of this article.
Chair Curley Moved; Board Member DeVasto Seconded, and it was voted
to insert an article establishing an affordable housing stabilization fund as
drafted into the Annual Town Meeting Warrant.
Roll Call Vote: 5-0
Chair Curley Moved; Board Member DeVasto Seconded, and it was voted
to recommend said article into the Annual town Meeting Warrant.
Roll Call Vote: 4-1 (Wilson voted no)

D. Insertion of mixed income Housing Stabilization Find B
Chair Curley spoke about this as well and talked about the critical need to
address the housing issues. Chair Curley stated this has been discussed at length
and feels the board can vote.



DRAFT #+4 Sfull recording of this meeting can be found on the town’s website***

Chair Curley Moved; Board Member Reinhart Seconded; and it was voted
to insert the article establishing a mixed housing stabilization fund into the
annual town meeting warrant.

Roll Call Vote: 5-0

Chair Curley Moved; Board Member Reinhart Seconded; and it was voted
to recommend the above article.

Roll Call Vote: 4-1 (Wilson voted no)

E. Amending Governing the use of Short-Term Rental Community Impact Fees
Chair Curley stated that because they board changed and voted to insert the
above articles
Board Member DeVasto Moved; Board Member Reinhart Seconded and it
was voted to reconsider and remove the article governing the use of short-
term rental community impact fees.

Roll Call Vote: 5-0

F. Amending short-term rental community impact on professionally managed units
(G.L .c64G S 3D (a))

Chair Curley explained these next two items on the agenda, informing the board
and public that the highest percent they can collect is 3%. He explained how this
works. The board discussed raising this percent to 3% and the importance to
have it raised to bring revenue to the town. This fee is only applicable to owners
who own a second property.

Chair Curley Moved, Board Member DeVasto Seconded; and it was voted
to raise the percentage rate of the short-term rental community impact to
3%, and insert said article in the annual town meeting warrant.

Roll Call Vote: 5-0

Chair Curley Moved; Board Member Reinhart Seconded; and it was voted
to recommend the above article.

Roll Call Vote: 5-0

G. Amending Short-term rental community impact fee professionally managed
units (G.L. c. 64G 3D (b))

Chair Curley Moved; Board Member Wolf Seconded; and it was voted to
reconsider the article for short term rental community impact fee
professionally managed units (G.L. c. 64G 3D (b) and to amend it as
drafted.

Roll Call Vote: 5-0

H. Annual Town Meeting Warrant & Budget review
Chair Curley spoke to the board about the warrant. Wilson stated that the board
needs to dedicate one meeting to just the warrant so they can get it done and
ready to print. Chair Curley stated the board that they are almost done with the
warrant and only had a few more articles that they needed to insert and
recommend. The board discussed the warrant and Chair Curley stated that if the
meeting goes to 10:30 they will stop. Sumner stated he would like to see the
board cover all the outstanding articles.

Sumner began with the budget, he stated they have voted to insert it but haven’t
recommended.



DRAFT »«+4 Sull recording of this meeting can be found on the town’s website***

Chair Curley Moved; Board Member Reinhart Seconded and it was voted
to recommend the operating budget article as drafted.

Roll Call Vote: 5-0

The next article was the OPEB (other post employee benefits) DeVasto spoke to
this article. Stating that he believed they should fund it because it is the future.
Chair Curley spoke to this as well. The board continued discussing this article.
Board Member Wilson Moved; Chair Curley Seconded; and it was voted to
reconsider Article 12, Other post employee benefits.

Sumner complimented the board that the town has a good amount of money in
that account, but it was contributed to last year, so it needs to be done this year.
Roll Call Vote: 5-0

Chair Curley Moved; Board Member Wilson Seconded; and it was voted to
amend Article 12, Other post-Employment Benefits procreation to read
“appropriate and or transfer from a available funds.”

Roll Call Vote: 5-0

Article 13 was the transfer to the stabilization fund.

Chair Curley Moved; Board Member Wilson Seconded; and it was voted to
recommend Article 13 The stabilization fund.

Roll Call Vote: 5-0

Chair Curley Moved; Board Member Reinhart Seconded; and it was voted
to amend Article 17, to read “appropriate the sum of $800,000.” To
recommend Article 17. (This will be from ambulance receipts fund moving
forward)

Roll Call Vote: 5-0

Article 22 was the next article that needed to be voted on. This is the fire
suppression system for the elementary school. Which was stated this is an
important article and must be done.

Chair Curley Moved; Board Member Wilson Seconded; and it was voted to
insert and recommend the article for the Wellfleet Elementary School Fire
suppression system.

Roll Call Vote: 5-0

The next item to discuss was the supplemental funding for the marina fuel tanks.
Chair Curley Moved; Board Member Reinhart Seconded; and it was voted
to insert and recommend the article for supplemental fuel storage.

Roll Call Vote: 5-0

The CPA articles were not voted on by the board because Lisa Souve isn’t ready
with them yet but should be ready on the 10% of May.

Chair Curley Moved; Board Member Wilson Seconded; and it was voted to
insert the Community Preservation Articles; Articles # 26, 27, 28. 29, 30, 31,
32, and 33 into the annual town meeting warrant.

Roll Call Vote: 5-0

Chair Curley moved; Board Member Reinhart Seconded; and it was voted
to recommend Article 34

Roll Call Vote: 4-0-1 (Chair Curley Abstained)



DRAFT #++4 Jull recording of this meeting can be found on the town’s website***

Chair Curley Moved; Board Member Wilson Seconded; and it was voted to
insert and recommend the article for affordable housing trust bylaw
amendment.

Roll Call Vote: 5-0

Chair Curley Moved; Board Member DeVasto Seconded; and it was voted
to insert and recommend the article for special detail account for the fire
department.

Roll Call Vote: 5-0

Chair Curley Moved; Board Member Reinhart Seconded; and it was voted
to recommend the article for the Herring River Restoration Easement,.
Roll Call Vote: 5-0

Chair Curley Moved; Board Member Wolf Seconded; and it was voted to
reconsider the article for the acquisition of access easement to Indian Neck
Tidal Flats and delete from the Annual town Meeting Warrant.

Roll Call Vote: 3-0-2 (DeVasto and Wilson abstained)

The Animal Bylaw was discussed and the idea to move it to the town meeting in
the fall. Wilson tried to explain to the board the amendments made or needed to
be made. The board discussed this.

No Action was taken on the Animal Bylaw

The board discussed the petitioned article regarding the trees and stated they
couldn’t recommend this article.

Chair Curley Moved; Board Member DeVasto Seconded and it was voted
to recommend the tree article inserted into the Annual Town Meeting
Warrant.

Roll Call Vote 0-5 Motion failed

Chair Curley Moved; Board Member Reinhart Seconded and it was voted
to insert and recommend the Nauset School Assessment Formula Article
into the Annual Town Meeting Warrant.

Roll Call Vote: 5-0

Sumner asked the board to look at the override questions at the back of the
warrant because they would need to vote on them at their next meeting. (May
10, 2022)

E. Chair Curley moved on to the COA Advisory Board and they discussed the vote.
Chair Curley Moved; Board Member DeVasto Seconded; and it was voted
to rescind the vote on the COA Advisory Charge at the date that it was
amended.

Roll Call Vote: 4-1 (Wilson abstained)

X.  Business ~ These items were moved to a future meeting.
A. Instructions to Public Bodies of Wellfleet on In-Person/Hybrid, and Remote
Meetings
B. Code of Conduct ~ Chair Curley
C. Comprehensive Financial Policies ~ Chair Curley
XI.  Selectboard Reports
Chair Curley spoke to the public about the Maurice’s Campground working group
which will be recorded and in person.



DRAFT +++4 Sfull recording of this meeting can be found on the town’s website***

XII. Town Administrator’s Report
Sumner gave a verbal update to the board discussing the fiber optics for virtual
meetings being installed.
He explained that he had met with the DOR this afternoon with the finance team in
Wellfleet and feels it was a productive meeting He stated they are close to closing
FY2020 and FY2021. He expressed his sincere gratitude to the finance team for all
their hard work and efforts in cleaning up these financial mistakes. He stated he
would be reaching out to the auditors to have them on standby to come in and do the
audit.
He explained that he will be meeting with department heads Thursday and explain
that they all need to work on their budgets to cut them.
Wolf discussed the budget and spoke to the public about delays with the audio
equipment.

Xl Topics for Future Discussion
Wilson stated that the executive Session Minutes need to be released regarding the
campground.

X1v. Correspondence and Vacancy Reports
Please check the packet for a full correspondence report.

XV. Adjournment
Board Member Wilson Moved; Board member Reinhart Seconded; and it was
voted to adjourn.
Roll Call Vote 5-0

Meeting adjourned 10:40pm

*% Public Records **
Application for use of town property from the Wellfleet Parent and Teachers Association
Letter from KP Law responding to the Open Meeting Law Complaint filed by Judith Ahern
Open Meeting Law Complaint Form filed by Judith Ahern
Letter regarding 95 Lawrence Road PEL
Water Enterprise Budget
Marina Enterprise Budget
2022 Annual Town Meeting Warrant (DRAFT)
Print out of the Selectboard Correspondence



DRAFT

Wellfleet Selectboard
Virtual Meeting ~ Zoom
Friday May 6, 2022; 7pm

Meeting Minutes

Members Present: Ryan Curley, Chair; Michael DeVasto, Vice Chair; Helen Miranda Wilson,
John Wolf, Barbara Carboni, new elected member

Others Present: Charlie Sumner, Town Administrator; Rebekah Eldridge, Executive Assistant;
Janet Reinhart, Previous Selectboard member; Sharon Rule-Agger, Housing Member

Chair Curley called the meeting to order at 7:02pm

L Announcement, Open Session, and Public Comments
NOTE: Public Comments must be brief. The board will not deliberate or vote on matters
raised solely during announcements and public comments.
Chair Curley Welcomed Carboni to her first meeting. She thanked him and the
board. She stated she is looking forward to working with the board.

There were no other

II.  Response to Open Meeting Law Complaint filed on April 12, 2022.
~ Judith Ahern

Sumner explained the response from Wellfleet’s Town Counsel regarding the
open meeting law complaint filed by Ahern. He stated that because the meeting
is now available on the town’s you tube channel. Wolf questioned the letter and
was informed that the board would be deciding the facts in the letter at this
meeting. Wolf stated his concern for the chain of command during a meeting via
zoom. The letter and complaint were discussed. Sumner stated that human
mistakes happen and an error was made. He stated that he will deal with the
employee in a office. He stated that this is rectified because the meeting is
available. To the public and the complainant.

Wilson asked Eldridge to explain what happened during that meeting. Eldridge
explained that she was asked to remove a picture that was offensive to the person
asking. She explained to the board the steps she took to try and report the picture,
once the report button was clicked Ahern was removed from the meeting.
Eldridge explained that zoom communicated with her asking if she would like to
report Ahern officially? Eldridge stated she clicked no and assumed Ahern would
be allowed back into the meeting. During the meeting it was stated by Wolf that
she was still unable to get into the meeting. Eldridge then stated she was trying to
fix the issue but heard she had rejoined by her phone so thought the matter was
resolved.



DRAFT

Wilson continued explaining that she feels the executive assistant, anyone in that
role has a unique position because she speaks to both the town administrator and
the Selectboard where she will make copies and do secretarial things for the
selectboard where they don’t go through the town administrator for.

He continued that this is a zoom meeting the participants are not separated from
the board members. It can become difficult to adjust the audience from the board.
DeVasto spoke to the board and stated that he had nothing to do with the removal
of Ahern and had no knowledge what was happening. He stated he felt that the
picture helped gain support for him. Wolf noted that Ahern was unable to hear
the meeting, Chair Curley stated the board had nothing to do with her abilities
not to hear the meeting.

They discussed the letter and questioned if there were any issues with the way
town counsel responded on their behalf.

They discussed the dates that need to be inserted into the letter tonight so that it
can be sent to Ahern and the state on behalf of the board.

Chair Curley Moved; Board Member Wilson Seconded; and it was voted to
ratify all substantiated discussions that Ms. Ahern may have missed during
the April 12, 2022, of the Wellfleet Selectboard meeting.

Roll Call Vote: 4-0-1 (Carboni Abstained)

The board then discussed when she was removed from the meeting and the dates
they would put into the letter. Chair Curley stated he believed Ahern was
removed from the meeting around 8:30pm which was an hour and thirty minutes
into the meeting.

Chair Curley Moved; Board Member Wilson Seconded; and it was voted to
insert that Ahern was removed from the meeting at approximately 8:30pm.

Chair Curley Moved; Board Member Wilson Seconded; and it was voted to
amend the dates of tonight’s meeting. May 6, 2022, at 7:00PM.

Roll Call Vote: 4-0-1 (Carboni Abstained)

Board Member DeVasto Moved; Board Member Wolf Seconded; and it was
voted to approve the amendments made in the letter.

Roll Call Vote: 4-0-1 (Carboni Abstained)

Wilson had a few amendments to make to the letter regarding grammar. Eldridge
stated she would send he a word document.

She also questioned the board if they understood what the “report” button on
zoom meant. The board all stated that they did.

Board Member DeVasto Moved; Chair Curley Seconded; and it was voted
to send the letter as amended from KP Law to be sent to Judith Ahern.

Roll Call Vote: 4-1-0 (Wolf Voted No)

Ahern addressed the board regarding her complaint. She argued that she doesn’t
believe it was a mistake, she wanted to know why she wasn’t allowed to
participate. Chair Curley stated this was previously addressed in the meeting.
Ahern continued stating she was removed more than once from the meeting and
argued that because of her sign she had up was because she was thrown out. She

2



DRAFT

i/A

1v.

continued arguing that she believed this was not an accidental and purposeful.
Eldridge tried to explain what happened in the meeting. Ahern interrupted
Eldridge and began yelling that it was a lie. They continued the discussion
regarding the Open Meeting Law and explained to Ahern that her civil rights
would not be addressed at this meeting. She continued interrupting and arguing
with the board and Chair Hurley spoke to Ahern giving her a verbal warning that
she was going out of the scope of the meeting. Finally Chair Curley asked Ahern
to be muted at this point.

Ahern left the meeting.

Press Release regarding Maurice’s Campground Proposal
A. Rule-Agger spoke to the board regarding the press release for the purchase of

Maurice’s Campground working groups. She gave details about the meeting that

took place and the subcommittees that were formed to get this project moving.
Rule-Agger spoke to the rumors that Kathleen Nagle is being compensated for
the sale of the Campground and she stated that Nagle in not being paid and is
doing this work voluntarily. Chair Curley agreed with that statement and
announced it for the record. He also stated the Gauthiers do not have a seller’s
agent this is all done between the town and the owners.

Chair Curley asked if there were any questions or comments. Wilson spoke to a

few amendments she had to the letter but otherwise spoke to how great the letter

is. She asked if the names of the members of the work group could be listed.
Carboni stated the working subgroups might need to have their meetings posted.
Chair Curley stated that they are treating their meetings as public meetings.

Board Member Wilson Moved; Chair Curley Seconded; and it was voted to

approve and send out the press release as amended at tonight’s meeting.
Roll Call Vote: 5-0

Adjourn

Board Member DeVasto Moved; Board Member Wilson Seconded; and it was
voted to adjourn.

Roll Call Vote: 5-0

Meeting adjourned at 7:45pm



SELECTBOARD

AGENDA ACTION REQUEST
Meeting Date: May 24, 2022

X1

ADJOURNMENT
REQUESTED BY: Selectboard Chair Ryan Curley
DESIRED ACTION: | To Adjourn
PROPOSED I move to Adjourn
MOTION:
ACTION TAKEN: Moved By: Seconded By:
Condition(s):
VOTED: Yea Nay Abstain




